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This Annual Report is dedicated to all the people who

decided to take a chance on us—to the clients who have

entrusted us with their business issues, to the individuals

who are Huron and to the families that support them, and

to our shareholders—to all the customers of Huron. 



Mary Sawall • Timothy Patterson • Daniel Wikel • Erika Wingate • Heather Albright • Latonya Bains • Lisa Berrus • Brooke Davis • Daniel Delaney • James Dondero 

Guy Galbreth • Eliza Gordecka • Robert Haskin • Dana Hayes • Thomas Healy • Wendy Hernandez • Phyllis Jones-Butler • Kerri Lin • David Majors • Katie McLean 

Marc Milanowski • Stacie Neeter • Joseph Pope • Isabelle Praud • Peter Resnick • Carol Sabransky • Kevin Sadowski • John Sawtell • Jeffrey Szafran • Carolina Woodard

Zachary Gamblin • Scott Hepburn • Susan Sallas • Melanie Sutton • Timothy Zeldenrust • James Zinn • T. Belton • Kelly Struck • Ellayne Famatid • Stephen Burns 

Diane Doherty • Kevin Eskew • Nathan Haines • LeeAnn Manning • Ryan McDaniel • Greg Naviloff • Kelley Schauenberg • John Steele • Anne Sullivan • Andrew Vahey

Laura Zimmermann • Arjun Aggarwal • Bret Baccus • Shahzad Bashir • Gregory Bedell • David Borghesi • Laura Burgos • Craig Casey • Paul Charnetzki • Kevin Clem 

Peter Eschenbach • Barbara Finnegan • Joseph Floyd • Susan Gallagher • Thomas Halloran • Gary Holdren • Andrew Horner • Pamela Hurlock • Shandy Husmann 

Michael Kennelly • Steven Korf • James Leach • Brian Linscott • James Lukenda • Michael O’Connor • Michael Phillips • Natalie Ponder • Gerald Richardson 

James Roth • Joy Saphla • Robin Snasdell • Lisa Snow-Turrinelli • Matthew Staman • Carrie Sudds • John Sullivan • Michael Sullivan • Lee Sweigart • Joseph Taylor 

Jennifer Tobin • Angela Tsai • Kathryn Vernau • Darrin Wald • Joy Walton • Greg Westfall • Laura Yaeger • Steven Young • Costa Magas • Matt Wise • Charles Nunemaker

Aurora Paragas • Marjorie Small • Linda Young • James Mitchell • Riccardo Nunziati • Nicole Pollack • Robert Lashway • Deborah Douglas • Patricia Sage 

Daniel Broadhurst • Sean Galligan • Jon Klerowski • David Mercier • Joel Ostiguy • Kimberly Richmond • Andrew Hayes • Loren Trimble • Mary Jo Anderson 

Maureen Hamner • Thomas Lepczynski • Veronica Santoyo • James Knight • Kevin McClean • Rich Seleznov • Brandi Long • Katie Penn • Javier Garza • Marc Mercier

George Massaro • Russell Bertuccelli • Michael Voutsinas • William Jenkins • Rosemary Quattrucci • John Hutchinson • Senthil Rajakrishnan • Salvatore Messina 

Michele Girdharry • Linda Delgado • Tonka Maljevic • Denise Metke • Jana Ames • Gary Burge • Joseph Decilveo • Brian Hastings • Adam Jaffe • Robert Allgyer 

Seth Palatnik • Jennifer Frost-Hennagir • Stephen Jozefowski • Susan McLeish • Kerry Vasta • Nick Zaccagnini • Jay Loudermilk • Allen Arnett • Nicholas Long 

Mark O’Connell • Brian Hacias • Beth Lange • James McGee • David Hanfland • Judith Roberts • Rebecca Aslin • Gary Arrick • Lisa Olson • Kellie Vujtech 

Christopher Meyer • Kelly Sova • Shawn Sullivan • Javier Gallegos • Richard Pimentel • Alison Schwarz • Mary Ann Signorelli • Stephen Burlone • David McLaughlin 

Kirsten Gross • Kimberly Fisher • Christopher Mackie • Lev Gerlovin • Timothy Lefkowicz • Kathy Naughton • Margaret O’Donnell • Christopher Rohn • Christopher Ryan

John Sasaki • Robert Sammon • Kristin Taylor • Ryan Newman • Loren Mann • David Brown • Elizabeth Freking • Margaret Kosirog • Jason Moebius • Kathryn O’Connell

Jessica Parisi • Eric Plutnicki • Scott Springer • Yvonne Starks • Lourdie Fabien • Troy Griffin • Marilizze Sayson • Benjamin Smith • Jeffrey Beecham • Iqbal Dhaliwal 

Robert Fraga • Kimberly Griffin • Mark Grover • Michael Connerty • John Hemingway • Andrea Greene • Robin Loundy • Ashoke Prasad • John Szymanski 

Rebecca Velez • Matthew Fisher • Cynthia Raaf • Richard Vanderbeek Jr. • Brian Buebel • Brent Johnson • Parijat Sharma • Christopher Apicerno • Jason Davenport 

Silke Gwinn • Joseph Piper • Michael Ruehlman • Elizabeth Scheib • Christina Thrall • Joseph Todd • Gary Byers • Sheila Ganir • Karen Iocca • John O’Connor III 

Scott Curtis • Jeffrey Feeley • Wayne Lipski • Colleen Scimeca • Laura Connor • Brandi Flanagan • Wanda Forrest • David Meilstrup • Dale Dreischarf • David Poehler 

Joel Turney • Kelly Robinson • Denise Crocker • Kevin Siena • Sumit Dangi • Tamika Tremaglio • Gregg Parks • Marc Sherman • Kevin McGowan • Douglas Tilghman 

Michael Weil • Mary Czyszczon • Paul Chiou • Lisa Beatty • Sarah Eisenberg • Bernard Trombley • Mary Walcott • Nancy Olvera • Vincent Panepinto • Derek Smith 

Christine Beliveau • Douglas Miller • Linda Bailey • Michael Gorman • Megan Morse • Donna Nauta • Kimberly O’Neil • Tiffany Campbell • Julie McKenzie • Syed Zamil

Dorothy DeAngelis • Nathan Averbeck • Catherine Buscemi • Nancy Jessen • Deborah Hackett • James Stuart • Elizabeth Bonacci • Brian Christie • Anaceli Leon 

Sally Hunneke • Ryan McHugh • Joseph Purri • Kathryn Renner • Kathleen McArthur • Michael Kalb • Lisa Robison • Nicholas Gallegos • Brian Goetsch • Cara Grib 

Suzanna Kenessey • Matthew Krizmanich • Thomas Laesch • Matthew Maclay • Julieta Mundo • Jarrell Perkins • John Piatek • Todd Tennell • Todd Glomb 

Duane Harrington • Parag Rajpal • Gregory Richards • Ellen Wong • Susan Fedorchak • Michael Ferson • Mark O’Hara • Darina Denkova • Tina Khatri • Gil Krakowsky 

Pratik Patel • Susan Quinlan • Sarah Scherrer • Joseph Wyss • Marisa Zuskar • Thomas Bechert • Herman Chen • Celia Gravely • Michael Landa • Jacqueline Pierce

Jonathan Vito • Matthew Wagnaar • Marilyn Butler • John Hanson • Johnny Tong • Colby Walter • David Weber • Evan Bartell • Elizabeth Kennedy • Dawn Aiello 

Abdellah El Bacha • William O’Hara • Joseph Pedota • Heather Rudy • Peter Shaw • Colleen Sullivan • Cheryl Wood • Andrew Chase • Natalia Delgado • Jeffrey Ellis

Christopher Yeagle • Thomas Champagne • Ann Harris • Charlie Alexander • Monica MacGregor • Mukesh Gangwal • Andrew Gastwirth • Amy Gonzalez • Blaine Hyde

Michelle Scheid • Michael India • Robbi Kramer • John Storino • Patrick Hennessy • Neeru Khanuja • Gregg Sutfin • John Weber • Vernon Dandridge • Clayton Green  

Robert Kordas • Duane Campbell • David Howard • Diane Ratekin • Dennis Rodriguez • Thomas Smith • CJ Striebinger • Richard Simon • Brian Asby • Charles Lazzara

Joshua Leventhal • Terry McDonald • Serena Matsunaga • Richard Merino • Jeffrey Ottens • Susan Ein • Brian Stang • Belinda Vela • Brian Bondad • Jeffrey Griffiths 

Kerry Gannon • Madhura Kulkarni • Juliet Caven • Albert Luk • Mark Murungaru • Purab Raipanchola • Chak Tsoi • Megan Budny • James Morrison • Paul Saias 

Eric Montanye • Gilberto Alcantar • Kimberly Counts • Susan Kalisewicz • Jeffrey Kawalek • Darcy DiPane • Edi Grgeta • Ana Barella • Thomas Burns • Timothy Fagan 

Shani Mahany • John Sudduth • Barry Sussman • David Briscoe • David McDonough • David Rock • Michael Smith • Patrick Young • Marc Johnson • Rajan Patel 

Allison Pirret • William Young • Ruben Estrada • David Kolodziejski • Jennifer Lau • Lisa Murtha • Alex Rice • Nashan Vassall • Tamra Aloi • Michael Ayres 

Rosemary Britt • Daniel Brooks • Meredith Colagiovanni • Thomas DeMinico • Dorothy DiCarlo-Rhoads • Gregory Dors • Jacqueline Gena • Dawn Gideon • Kathy Hunter

Nathan Kocon • Jan Radke • David Speltz • Otis Story • Gerald Swarzman • Sandy Sword • Timothy Weis • James Woods • Richard Beckman • Maureen Loftus 

Gregory Crane • Allecia Harley • Idris Khajanchi • Shabaki Lambert • Justin Mueller • Terrence Schaffner • Jeffrey Seymour • Kevin Delaney • John Jones 

Jacqueline O’Loughlin • Bradford Romano • Xiaoxuan Wang • William Bonner • Jennifer Chang • Heather Drennan • Kenneth Kratovil • Alexander Sekhniashvili 

Brett Anderson • Coley Brown • David Christensen • Robert Crissman • Dennis Loffredo • Shaina Newman • Abid Vhora • Jesse York • Liao Chang • Daniel Coppola 

Laura Hajovsky • Evan Katzman • Shuk Lee • John VerMeulen • John VerMeulen Jr. • Elizabeth Weir • Paul Zimmerman • Kimberly Kordecki • David Paris 

Allyn Strickland • Joseph Hendrickson • Irene Balotro • Elizabeth Barraza-Redd • Anjali Deshmukh • David Jett • Jeanene Johnson • Ryan Knickerbocker • Sook Lee 

Jared Adler • Moriah Britt • Samuel DiSalvo • Peter Eilhauer • Kari Grendahl • Brian Haveri • Ryan Higgins • Julie Johnson • Joseph Lam • James McHugh 

Jennifer Moskowitz • Barry Radick • Lauren Reynolds • Michael Sullivan • Paul Wolfert • Stephanie Yang • Lonnie Yates • Draco Forte • Carey Koenitz • John Morris

Janeanne Nemeth • Amber Rychetsky • Fraya Hirschberg • Karissa Marsh • Michael Mavros • Joseph Gow • Clayton Benn • Ashley Mullen • Julie Sotiropoulos 

Jason Weaver • William Webb • Elhajamin Young • Carrie Baumgardner • Janice Jacobs • Michael Shea • Shawn Lemerise • Christy Mignacca • Ryan Sutherland 

Kevin Gaudet • Joe Ament • Rajesh Bandla • Brian Brate • Porsha Cills • Kali Crocker • Timothy Fetter • Shari Harrington • Brian Heinimann • Tejas Kheradiya • Heidi Kim

Frank Krakowski • Nathan Lohmeyer • Brian Niksa • David Olson • Adam Rhodes • Aarti Rupani • Deepak Sabiki • Alma Sahmanovic • Kabir Sawhney • Michael Shea 

Zhi Tan • Rachel Trafford • Andrew Vachris • David Wong • Wilma Wyngaart • Kevin Albert • John Curry • Kristen Demeo • Jordan Donsky • Dan Gordish 

Stephen Holloway • Hong-Shik Kim • Thomas Korf • Paul Marcus • Madhav Nadendla • James Wren • Brian Lee • Mohammad Ali • Shawn Christen • Erik Harssema  

Ann Marie Kartsounes • David Klipa • Yimara Manzano • Venice Meyer • Brian Notz • LaTia Renfrow • Dhyia Thompson • Karla Kauffman • Kathy Adair • Arleen Bernardi

Susan Chapdelaine • James Coulson • Kay Gregory • Craig Lippman • Teresa Harrington • Dwight Alden • Kamal Calloway • James Kemp • Phillip Kim • Maricel Ramos

Domenic Champa • Susan Storey • Timothy Wondolowski • Maria Zullo • Harry Weis • Danish Butt • Sandra Storey • Kimberly Basmajian • Michael Dansky 

James DeVaney • Michael Kim • Gary Brown • Meghan Davis • Delphine Mendez de Leon • Peter Chun • Leah Guidry • Alison Sawyer • Thomas Winston 

Jeffrey McLaren • Robert Puckett • Alicia Bakowski • Mi-Goung Choi • Cathy Grzela • Matthew Hakoun • Jean McIntyre • Christopher Powers • Jessica Richardson 



Jim O’Malley • Gayla Dodson • Chetan Joshi • Douglas Kell • Maneesha Khandelwal • Scott Lyons • Samuel Renwick • Udayan Vyas • John Bain • Darryl Chapman 

Craig Richmond • Richard Rohrbach Jr. • John Sites Jr. • Titania Tzeng • Sidney Bradley • Andrew Brown • Justin Grisham • Dragan Kosanovic • Diana Teri 

Katherine DaRin • Scott Willoughby • Jerry Bitter • Daniel Vergauwen • Suzanne Hawkins • Bernard Hillengas • Michael Stevens • Hyun U • Kevin Byerly • Carrie Clark  

Kevin Curry • Deborah Dotson • Trent Haines • Dinesh Jotwani • Kathryn Parolin • John Moose • Kathleen Dasko • James Holland • Kristen Pawlowski • Maura Driscoll 

Scott Gillis • Paul Giudice • Anil Gupta • Pranav Gupta • John Howlett • Lawrence Jones • Chris Lyon • Julie Malvasi • Jennifer Martin • Lindsey May 

Edmond McCarthy • Matthew Meehan • Ravi Mehta • Leroy Mergy • Jason Milesko • Daniel Rachlis • John Reuter • Joseph Shalleck • Tanuja Shukla • Vimal Vora 

Marla Weinstein • Michelle Conforti • Steven Ginsburg • Manfred Krebs • Brent Griffy • Michael Abasciano • Jennifer Bezdicek • Vishal Bhandari • Timothy Flake 

Scott Friedman • Jennifer Richards • Katherine Crawford • Mark DeWyngaert • Maisha Emmanuel • Anita Golden • Gary Long • Susan Santoro • Rebecca Shepkowski 

Paul Silver • Michael Brunson • Joseph DiSalvatore • Jerome Foster • William Stewart • Adam Farber • Sammie Huang • Andrew Laws • Matthew Anderson 

Megan Becwar • Kelley Clark • Kenneth Evola • Byong Kim • Debra Korak • Stanley Logan • Derick Champagne • Frank Conte • Kevin Cook • Carol Gadbois • Brian Gephart

Debjit Ghosh • Beth Hunt • Ryan Mittman • Jason Sevier • Drew Shinick • Brandon Solomon • Jalil Ahad • Olaoluwa Akinyele • Kenneth Chan • Vinjola Dhamo • Jeffrey Gray

Rohit Gulati • Nitin Gupta • Stephanie Hunter • Caroline Johnston • Hessun Kim • Laura McCarthy • Glenn Messenger • Isaac Sessoms • Amer Shaikh • Jeremy Stenger 

Elizabeth Davis • Faye Adams • David Burris • Matthew Lester • Jennifer Miller • David Reiter • Neema Thachet • Thomas Christman • Tarek Ahmad • Buffy Beattie 

Sheetal Rami • Destiny Thompson • Amanda Cenicola • Snow Cheng • Jay Chi • Dean Christopher • Christina Davis • Geneva Edwards • Kelly Fallon • Jorge Flores

Jennifer Glusica • Philip Grodin • Cherie Hauck • Thai-Chau Hoang • Katherine James • Dylan Kalbacher • Thomas Kim • Bradley Koehler • Alex LeBuffe • Dedi Matayo • Robert Meier 

Patrick Muzin • Ricardo Nieto • Rebecca Paluch • Marena Pickering • Ashley Proscia • Susan Pukszta • Arjun Ravi Gopu • Kanika Rustagi • Humair Sabir • Kavitha Viswanath

Shannon Weiner • Brian Williams • Gigi Wong • Michael Wright • Hannah Zeffiro • Nikki Doble • Joanne McCollum • Kevin Baker • Jennifer Brown • Hsi Ying Chen  

Randall DeGeer • Kameswari Devaguptapu • Brian Feller • David Interdonato • Shaibal Mandal • Nicole O’Grady • Matthew Olson • Vivek Soneja • Siwat Vilassakdanont 

Adam Udell • Aklilu Amsalu • Brian Ansley • Eric Ansley • Maureen Atta • Mintamir Ayele • Mitslal Berha • Frank Bernatowicz • Matt Brock • Marc Bromstad 

Christopher Catalano • Vineet Chopra • Daniel Clarin • Dejene Debela • Andrew Digby • Adugna Dinku • Donnalyn Downs • Samuel Ergete • Eric Fierro • Shamus Flower

Bisrat Gebru • Christopher Getner • Edmond Golden • Michael Golden • Laurey Harris • Steven Hedrick • Susan Henry • Cindi Higgs • Josh Hogue • Peggy Hong • Ari Jordon 

Christopher Kenna • David Koch • Rebecca Lembo • Matthew Levy • Melanie Lilla • Keena Lyons • Jill Marano • Scott McCray • Serkalem Mideksa • Richard Miller 

Wayan Mullins • Krystyne Newton • Monta Ormond • Piotr Ostrega • DeWayne Ovard • Nicholas Pantazi • Robert Rowe • Vincent Sachar • Adam Self • Jennifer Shellhammer

Derej Siyoum • Jonathan Sobray • Michael Spinn • Vincent Stoessel • Minwylet Tadesse • Aster Tarekegn • Eyerusalem Tefere • Wondwossen Tekle • Christopher Thorn

Chidinma Ukoha • Robert Armour • Mahmoud Bah • Pamela DePierre • Anthony DiMaio • Catherine Dowsley • Joseph Gehm • Jennifer Hobbs • Michael Kenney 

Brian McCarthy • Sharon Muldoon • Paul Nacon • Hanoch Papoushado • Shrijeet Saiyad • Andrea Schmitz • Kathleen Tench • Irene Torino • Anil Varghese • Aref Bajwa 

Clare Brophy • Sylvia Cho • Brendan Donegan • Heather Drobish • Omar Elshahawi • Rachel Fish • Patrycjusz Grobelny • Tamara Hamdan • John Hamilton • Willa Hu 

Marya Jafri • Zachary Kelsey • Matthew Lawrence • Robert Lemein • Katherine Lorenz • Rachael Luthy • Driss Mechiche-Alami • Stephen Muto • Justin Oldham

Zhengyi Qin • Krinal Rami • Maureen Rocchio • Eliana Romero • Melinda Rubinfeld • Rasa Virsilaite • Ching Chung Wong • Rada Yovovich • Charles Blank • Eugene Canjels

Michael Choo • Nicola Ellis • Michael Fenske • Wendell Grantlen • Mike Grubisich • Laquette Lewis • Martin McKittrick • Timothy Nugent • Marta Porowski • Ana Rozas

Judith Savino • Mohammad Shah • Karina Stoltz • JeAnna Stovall • Michel Vanderhart • Jane Vehrs • Matthew Vogelien • Karen Yip • Michael Kemper • Roberto Pacheco

Emily Petren • Catherine Ray • Craig Smith • Rosemary Weghorst • Veronica Decker • Ross Holdren • Man Ki Hung • Christopher Ivancich • Judith Jack • Maria Radeva 

Theresa Steinkamp • Madeleine Williams • Bryan Willis • Peter Betts • Andrew Bissell • Philip Infurna • Jared Stern • Geoffrey Cotti • Dianne Haas • Kate Hecht • Eva Louie

Rebecca Mendez • Alpa Prashar • Erik Sternisha • Neil Tenzer • Christopher Branson • Sandra Curiel • Colleen Gallagher • Willmore Hastings • Wanda Hofman

Richard Poling • Sigma Smith • Nikkia Squires • Ciara de los Reyes • Frances Ferguson • Amy Hale • Elizabeth Lim • Nancy Tartt • Allan Van Ness • Christopher Fox

Charles Campbell • Catherine Cote • Robert Dillon • Hassan El Asraoui • Narsid Golic • Terri Graser • Glen Kabumoto • Jennifer McConnell • Brett Rudduck • Ryan Schulz

Kevin Sharlow • Michael Smith • Shane Turner • Richard Underwood • Grant Abernethy • David Lerman • Vishal Dave • Kenneth DeVaney • Michelle Fountain • Jenna Lee

Jay Pilkington • Scott Rosenberg • Julie Anderson • Aashiq Asanar • Lukasz Blaszczyk • Troy Burk • Rajiv Diwan • Shannon Hoffman • Jennifer Hubert • Elizabeth Becker

Stephanie Scheitler • Bradley Archer • Jon Canty • Jeffrey Dineen • Kyle Featherstone • Adam Grossman • Lauren Halloran • Jeffrey Hustis • Andy Lai • Gerard McGeary

Johanna Tighe • John Yocum • Lauren Zopatti • Melissa Wells • Rajesh Ankalkoti • Mark Berger • Michael Champa • Audrius Girnius • Stuart Horowitz • John Kelly

Timothy Kinney • Kristen Maalouf • Tracy Mastro • Miriam Nieves • Aysha Somasundaram • James Tompkins • Tina Tyler • Douglas Veliky • Albert Yu • Morgan Bainbridge

Szilvia Bercsenyi • Eugene Kim • Kevin Krabbenhoeft • Ryan McKinney • Lee Rappaport • Timothy Tardiff • Laurence Abramson • Christopher Alberta • Joseph Alfirevic 

Timothy Baker • Linda Banass • Jeffrey Beard • Jason Beirne • Stephanie Bell • Anthony Bergen • Daniel Boverman • Thomas Buck • Michael Cadwell • Linda Cagle

Bryan Cali • Robert Campeau • Richard Caruso • Brenda Casey • Michael Castro • Brian Channon • Daniel Chartrand • Alice Chen • Adam Cook • Michael Correra 

David Counts • Antoinette Courtney • Michael DeCarlo • William Denton • John DiDonato • Thomas Dixon • Sandra Dodds • Laura Dowling • David Drinan • Dalton Edgecomb

Sanford Edlein • Sherman Edmiston • Thomas Evans • Neil Faux • Gary Fletcher • Frank Flosman • Thomas Fox • Stephen Furry • Stephen Gawrylewski • Conor Gillen 

Laura Goodin • Shane Goss • Mike Graf • Thomas Griffith • Caroline Guzniczak • Todd Hakala • Katherine Hall • Kevin Hamilton • Kristi Hanson • Matthew Harrison

Sam Heigle • Jovita Helms • Cheryl Herndon • Siraj Hilton • Edward Hofherr • Kris Horner • Tony Howard • Dijana Icitovic • Janice James • Gerard Keena • Angela Kerins 

George Kis • Christine Kurban • Ramona Lacy • Dionne Lee • Alix Lopez • Jerome Loughren • Nelson Lowman • Richard Mackessy • Alexandra Mahnken • James Martin 

Lorin Martin • Shaun Martin • James Medendorp • Greg Mercer • Roselyn Montero • George Mootz • Michael Morioka • Gordon Mountford • Dion Oglesby

Kenneth Ollwerther • Paul Osborne • Jack Partridge • Douglas Pedersen • Fernando Pena-Alfaro • Mariateresa Perez • Joseph Raschke • Michael Roberts

Kathleen Rudolph • Justin Sampson • Sallie Schiller • Hazel Seabrook • Jerome Sepich • David Shade • Paul Shade • John Sharp • Justin Skelton • Diane Smith

Joyce Smith • David Sobkowiak • Daniel Soglin • Sandra Spann • Manfred Steiner • James Stephenson • Malcolm Sutherland • Susan Swanson • Bridgette Thomas

Kannan Thulasidas • John Tiscornia • Clarissa Tuttle • Beata VanderVeen • Gary VanHouse • John VanSanten • Stuart Walker • Kelly Walpole • Carl Watkins 

George Whetsell • Allan Wiinamaki • Mary Wolf • Emily Wollman • Shannon Yasseri • Mary Ann Zarkin • Claudia Ross • Sumeet Bhatnagar • Lisa Branciforte 

Ann Marie DiLorenzo • John Dur • Tiesha Ellis • Cordelia Flickinger • Alex Grecu • Matthew Greene • Michelle Henriksen • Preston Holdren • Kandz Kelly-Daigle

Mariama Mitchell • Amy Pemble • Christine Phillips • Umang Shastri • Simpsy Teckchandani • Eugenia Brumm • Bradley Calise • Mary Haider • Grisel Mauras • Barak Tulin

John Voloudakis • Nina Pukonen • Kenneth Lowrie • Ndeye Ba • Manan Bahri • Neeraj Bajaj • Ann Marie Gdowski • Devdeep Ghosh • Brian Hartford • Mugdha Joglekar 

Marc Kronenberg • Andrea McKay • Neill Mohammad • Dan Moody • Dawei Qian • Kosalai Rasanayagam • Jamal Salem • Robert Strauss • Xiaoyan Su • Madan Sundaresan 

Meetu Swaroop • Terrill Thomas • Michael Unhoch • Stephanie Williamson • Andrew Guthrie • Thomas McCawley • Gabriela Alvarado • Karolina Arias • Elliot Bishow

Naoko Cancela • Anthony Chiappetta • Dennis Lewis • Douglas Magnuson • Chinyere Okwu • Alexander Ong • Trenton Terry • Sean Cronley • Lisa Howard • Linda Wagman 

Curtis Culberson • Oliver Cooke • Jared Darrington • Ronald DeMatteo • Sarah Fluent • Mark Grant • Jeffrey Kiger • Chaundra Lewis • Tammy McGinn • Mark Mercer

Anthony Pirraglia • Nicholas Repucci • Aashiv Shah • Anne Siders • Nancy Totten • Jason Tung • Sherrie Gallagher • Jennifer Throckmorton • Elizabeth Tushaj





Nearly five years ago, the founders of Huron were faced with the great

opportunity (and challenge) to build a consulting company from scratch.

We had a clear vision of the kind of company we wanted to create and 

the kind of people with whom we wanted to work. 

Fundamentally, we wanted to create an organization built around serving

the customer. But by customer, we didn’t mean just the external client

base. By customer we also meant our people—the lifeblood of any 

consulting organization. Our goal was, and still is, to build a truly 

customer-centric organization and make it successful. 

Early on, we articulated a simple credo for success: Huron would be a company that would evaluate, promote and

compensate its people based on performance, not title or seniority. Respect and teamwork would be paramount in

relationships with our colleagues, our clients, and since going public in 2004, our shareholders. 

The Internal Customer – Our People

The foundation for success in the consulting industry lies in finding and retaining the best talent available. In the 

consulting business, the ‘product’ is your people—their interpersonal skills, their experience and their expertise. 

It’s the people, not the services, who identify with clients, and it’s the people who must understand client needs 

and effectively deliver those services and demonstrate results.  

What’s more, staffing the organization from top to bottom with top-quality talent gives consulting firms added 

operational strength. With the right people, a firm can generate a strong market presence through the superior 

delivery of its services and its ability to quickly and accurately identify a client’s wants and needs. This in turn 

generates additional revenue, which leads to growth, which allows a firm to expand its service offerings and hire 

new talent to meet evolving needs of the marketplace. 

Customer-Centric Branding 

With the right people in place, consulting firms must begin to create a brand name and gain market awareness. At

Huron, our brand is designed to extend our vision of a company known for serving customers through relationships

based on integrity, care and respect, and delivering the utmost quality.

As a result, branding is not relegated to one individual or to a marketing department. Instead, branding is the 

responsibility of each and every employee. We firmly believe that the quality of our people and the quality of our 

services are the greatest branding tools we possess. In addition, we employ a combination of tactics to generate

strong brand awareness among our clients including: 

One Brick at a Time. We treat our external customers (clients) as individuals, not as targets or markets; our goal is

to build our business one client at a time. As a result, we strive to serve each and every client with the utmost skill,
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integrity and care. Huron employees are encouraged to build strong relationships with their clients and demonstrate 

a deep understanding of their business, the industry and the unique challenges they face.

Thought Leadership. We sponsor and/or co-sponsor events and conferences, and encourage individuals to publish

articles and speak at conferences to build not only their personal reputation, but also that of Huron. We proactively

promote our experts to the media, publish original research on financial reporting matters, and contribute to trade and

business publications. Two of our most successful examples to date have been the Perspectives in Healthcare Forum
we co-sponsored with the Kellogg School of Management at Northwestern University, where the keynote speaker

was former President William J. Clinton, and our “Annual Review of Financial Matters” featured in The Wall Street
Journal, The New York Times, The Washington Post and other leading national and regional publications.

Media Outreach. At Huron, we carefully and steadily promote our successes to the media offering tangible examples

of the value we bring to the marketplace and the skills our colleagues possess. Over the past few years, our media

coverage has increased considerably, which has further solidified employee pride in being associated with the Huron

brand, as well as building our name recognition in the marketplace. We have most recently been recognized for our

performance (for the second year in a row) as the Top Company on Entrepreneur magazine’s Hot 100 list, and one of

The Best Firms to Work For by Consulting Magazine. I believe that these awards are a direct result of focusing on

the customer, both internal and external. These results are not mine; they belong to each of the individuals who have

had the faith to entrust us with their business issues and those who have entrusted us with their careers. 

Retaining Our Internal Customer 

As with any industry that relies almost exclusively on the talents of its people, one of Huron’s greatest challenges 

is employee retention. At Huron, we believe that high productivity is directly related to employee satisfaction. We 

recognize that our people are not only our best, but also are our only true asset, and as a company, we constantly

strive to create a positive work environment where everyone is treated with respect and given the opportunity to 

succeed. We accomplish this in a number of ways: 

Walking the Talk. It’s not enough to say that people are a company’s greatest asset; a company must actively live 

its words and beliefs — through its leadership, policies and procedures, benefits, training and development programs,

and reward systems. At Huron, we view our people as ‘internal customers’ and have created what we believe is a

unique leadership development program. Called “The Masters,” this multi-year program has a dual focus: developing

individual, interpersonal skills and relationships; and expanding the individual consulting talents throughout the 

organization, beyond one’s specific area of consulting expertise. Participants are Managing Directors at all levels of

their careers, some newly promoted, some very experienced. And, realizing the high demands that a consulting

career has on one’s personal life, we also include spouses or significant others. From my own personal experience, 

I know that I could not have achieved what I have today without the incredible support of my family. 

Competitive Compensation. We hire the best people by paying them well and by valuing their contribution. We are

a performance-based organization, and while we may have a lower guaranteed base salary than some companies,

we pay our people a lot more to perform, which is attractive to hard-working individuals. 



Supportive Culture. We strive to create an environment where our people will want to stay. Our culture is built

around the values of collaboration and teamwork, accountability and personal responsibility, respect, integrity and

excellence. By providing challenging and rewarding assignments, and making sure that the services we offer are new

and not commoditized, we hope to develop career-long relationships with our people. 

Professional Development. When you hire the best, you have to offer training and development opportunities to

keep them sharp and challenged, and to allow them the opportunity to reach their full potential. Although Huron is 

a young company, we make significant investments in training people on technical and “soft” management skills. 

We support certifications like the CFA and CPA, and for top performers we will also support them in earning an MBA.

The External Customer – Our Clients

In today’s competitive environment, consulting companies must never lose sight of the fact that consulting is a 

relationship business and must resist the temptation to market their services as products. The work itself becomes

routine and unrewarding, and ultimately less valuable for the client. Clients will begin to view the consultant as simply

one vendor among many, and base their purchasing decisions solely on price. When this happens, profit margins will

decrease and attrition rates will climb. 

The answer is to focus on value, which is demonstrated by results that meet the client’s overall objectives. These

results can only be achieved through the implementation of specialized services delivered by teams of talented 

consultants who understand the needs and wants of their clients. 

The delivery of value requires constant vigilance. To keep the edge with your clients, a best practice is to survey

them about the quality and delivery of services. This doesn’t have to be a formal written policy; it can be an

extemporaneous conversation. One of the best indicators of client satisfaction is when a client gives you a reference.

Conversely, if the client will not give you a reference, you know you have a problem. 

We are constantly monitoring marketplace trends and work very hard to stay current with the changing needs of our

customers. As the market evolves, we continuously analyze our current capabilities to ensure we have the skills to

meet client needs. We maintain these skills through our education and development programs or, if needed, we 

consider other avenues such as alliances or acquisitions. For example, in the past year, in direct response to market

demands and the changing needs of our clients, we have significantly increased our New York presence, added 

credentials in the pharmaceutical industry, and increased our depth of experience in the areas of economics, 

valuation, complex accounting and financial reporting. 

Above all, we believe the best way to manage client relationships is by consistently providing superior service. Each

and every client must be treated with respect and receive value for the services purchased. They need to know that

their consultants are more concerned about them than they are about themselves. And we expect that same level of

respect from our clients. If a client makes unreasonable demands for more services without committing additional

resources, we will end the relationship. In my experience, the most successful client relationships are those that are

mutual—where value and respect are both given and received. 
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The External Customer – Our Shareholders 

Since going public in the fall of 2004, Huron has added a new group of external customers – our shareholders. We

now have a responsibility to deliver consistent business results that meet or exceed shareholder expectations. The

financial statements that follow report to our investors where we stand on meeting that responsibility. We are proud 

of our financial accomplishments to date and strive to continue to achieve strong results. 

The Consulting Industry

During the past few years, the consulting industry has undergone tremendous change.

Clients are looking for result-driven approaches on which they can measure their return on investment. 

Consequently, consulting companies will need to focus more than ever on meeting the needs of their clients through

the exceptional delivery of innovative services. The most successful consulting companies will be those that have 

an in-depth understanding of their clients’ businesses and the industries in which they operate, and proactively 

develop solutions to meet the evolving needs of their customers.

There is an increasing trend for companies to re-examine their business, and to identify and stick to their core 

competencies. This allows them to run lean, creating an opportunity for consultants and others who provide 

variable labor.

A war for talent places pressure on the consulting industry. When companies merge, they typically cut costs, thus 

creating opportunities for variable cost labor such as consultants, which will put increasing pressure on the consulting

industry to provide high-level services. This pressure also increases overall demand for services and generates

career opportunities for consultants who traditionally have been a very mobile workforce. 

The continuing evolution of the United States regulatory environment also drives an increase in consulting services.

For example, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 prohibits accounting firms from performing many kinds of consulting

work for their audit clients. This restriction, as well as increased public scrutiny, have forced companies and their

boards to look for consulting services from independent consulting companies such as Huron.  

Clearly, the future looks bright for the consulting industry. However, we must guard against developing an inflated

sense of confidence. The biggest mistake a consulting company can make is to become arrogant and take its 

customers for granted. 

To each of our customers, both internal and external, I thank you for the success we have experienced in these few

short years, and I give you my personal promise that we will strive every day to deserve your trust by serving you

with integrity, care and respect. 

Gary E. Holdren
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President
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(In thousands, except per share data, number of 
consultants, average billing rates, and percentages) 

Year Ended December 31 March 19
(inception) 
to Dec. 31,

2002
2006 2005 2004 2003

Revenues (before reimbursable expenses) $288,588 $207,213 $159,550 $101,486 $35,101

Operating Income (Loss) $47,509 $31,581 $19,684 $(217) $(6,530)

Operating Margin 16.5% 15.2% 12.3% N/A N/A

Net Income (Loss) $26,689 $17,769 $9,933 $(2,129) $(4,812)

Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Share $1.63 $1.13 $0.77 $(0.18) $(0.41)

Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share $1.54 $1.05 $0.72 $(0.18) $(0.41)

Cash and Cash Equivalents $16,572 $31,820 $28,092 $4,251 $4,449

Working Capital $36,047 $52,272 $42,898 $10,159 $9,780

Total Assets $199,444 $129,699 $83,219 $39,889 $26,583

Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) $116,580 $75,532 $49,233 $(6,624) $(4,543)

Return on Assets 16.5% 17.4% 11.9% N/A N/A

Return on Equity 28.0% 28.4% 20.2% N/A N/A

Number of Revenue-Generating Professionals 

(at end of period) (1)
842 632 483 477 262

Average Number of Revenue-Generating 

Professionals (for the period) (1)
716 564 485 361 247

Utilization Rate (2) 77.8% 76.5% 72.2% 66.1% 57.3%

Average Billing Rate Per Hour (3) $260 $249 $239 $217 $206

Financial and Operating Highlights

(1) Revenue-generating professionals consist of our billable consultants and other professionals. Billable consultants generate revenues primarily based on number of hours 
worked while our other professionals generate revenues based on number of hours worked and units produced, such as pages reviewed and data processed. Revenue-
generating professionals exclude interns and independent contractors.

(2) Utilization rate calculated by dividing billable consultant hours worked (as defined in (1) above) on client assignments during a period by total available working hours for 
billable consultants during the same period, assuming a forty-hour workweek, less paid holidays and vacation days. 

(3) For engagements where revenues are based on number of hours worked by billable consultants (as defined in (1) above), average billing rate per hour is calculated by 
dividing revenues for a period by the number of hours worked on client assignments during the same period.

Revenue Representation 
for the year ended December 31, 2006

Operational

Consulting

52%
48%

Financial

Consulting
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Revenue Per Consultant 2

(in thousands) 

2002 3 2003 2004 2005 2006

$214 281 323 356 381

Average Revenue Per Day 1

(in thousands) 

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

$210 403 628 816 1,145

Revenues and EBITDA
(in millions)

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

$35.1 101.5 159.6 207.2 288.6

EBITDA (in millions)

53%
CAGR 

2002-06

(1) Number of workdays excluding holidays. 
(2) Revenue generated by billable consultants (excluding interns, contractors and other revenue sources) divided by average number of 

billable consultants.    
(3) Revenues for 2002 have been annualized based on revenues from May 2002, when we commenced operations, to December 2002.    

0.2

5.1

22.0

38.2

58.9

Our People 

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

477

62

572

262

36

314

483

56

612

632

75

773

842

99

1,035

• Total Employees (excluding interns)
• Total Revenue-Generating Professionals
- Total Revenue-Generating Managing Directors
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In this annual report on Form 10-K, unless the context otherwise requires, the terms “Huron,” “company,”
“we,” “us” and “our” refer to Huron Consulting Group Inc. and its subsidiaries.

This annual report on Form 10-K, including the information incorporated by reference, contains forward-
looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. Forward-looking statements are identified by words such as “may,” “should,” “expects,”
“plans,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates” or “continues” or the negative of such terms or other comparable
terminology. These forward-looking statements reflect our current expectation about our future results, levels of
activity, performance or achievements, including, without limitation, that our business continues to grow at the
current expectations with respect to, among other factors, utilization rates, billing rates and number of revenue-
generating professionals; that we are able to expand our service offerings; that we successfully integrate the
businesses we acquire; and that existing market conditions do not change from current expectations. These
statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, including, among others, those
described under “Risk Factors,” that may cause actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to
be materially different from any future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements expressed or im-
plied by these forward-looking statements.

PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

OVERVIEW

We are an independent provider of financial and operational consulting services. Our highly experienced pro-
fessionals, many of whom have a master’s degree in business administration, have doctorates in economics, are
certified public accountants, or are accredited valuation specialists and forensic accountants, employ their ex-
pertise in accounting, finance, economics and operations to provide our clients with specialized analyses and cus-
tomized advice and solutions that are tailored to address each client’s particular challenges and opportunities.

Huron was formed in March 2002 and commenced operations in May 2002. We were founded by a core
group of experienced financial and operational consultants that consisted primarily of former Arthur Andersen LLP
partners and professionals, including our Chief Executive Officer, Gary E. Holdren, with equity sponsorship from a
group of investors led by Lake Capital Management LLC. In October 2004, we completed our initial public offering
and became a publicly traded company.

From the date of our initial public offering through December 31, 2006, we completed the following acquis-
itions:

• In May 2005, we acquired Speltz & Weis LLC (“Speltz & Weis,” renamed in 2007 to Wellspring Manage-
ment Services LLC), a specialized consulting firm that provides interim management and crisis manage-
ment services to healthcare facilities. Speltz & Weis helps hospitals and other healthcare facilities
improve their financial, operational and market performance through organizational renewal. With this
acquisition, we began to provide full-service offerings to distressed hospitals and other healthcare facili-
ties.

• In April 2006, we acquired MSGalt & Company, LLC (“Galt”), a specialized advisory firm that designs and
implements corporate-wide programs to improve shareholder returns. With the acquisition of Galt, we
expanded our value and service offerings to the office of the chief executive officer and boards of Fortune
500 companies.

• In July 2006, we acquired Document Review Consulting Services LLC (“DRCS”), a consulting firm that
provides comprehensive document review using experienced contract reviewers. Also in July 2006, we
acquired Aaxis Technologies Inc. (“Aaxis”). Aaxis provides full-service electronic data discovery support
to litigation teams and corporate counsel with a focus on forensics and data gathering, end-to-end data
processing, and information consulting. The acquisitions of DRCS and Aaxis enhance our service offer-
ings to the office of the general counsel and law firms by helping them manage digital information in a
comprehensive manner during litigation, investigations, mergers and acquisitions, and other major trans-
actions.
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Subsequent to December 31, 2006, we completed two additional acquisitions:

• In January 2007, we acquired Wellspring Partners LTD (“Wellspring”), a management consulting firm
specializing in integrated performance improvement services for hospitals and health systems. With the
acquisition of Wellspring, we expand our national presence in the healthcare provider sector. Combined,
Huron and Wellspring can provide a full complement of services to a wide spectrum of hospitals and
multi-hospital systems.

• Also in January 2007, we acquired Glass & Associates, Inc. (“Glass”), a turnaround and restructuring
consulting firm that provides advice and leadership to troubled businesses in the United States and Eu-
rope. With the acquisition of Glass, we expand our position in the consulting and restructuring market-
place, as well as expand our interim management capabilities to distressed companies in industries
beyond healthcare.

We have grown significantly since we commenced operations, nearly quadrupling the number of our revenue-
generating professionals from 213 as of May 31, 2002 to 842 as of December 31, 2006 through hiring and acquis-
itions of complementary businesses. We have hired experienced professionals from a variety of organizations,
including the four largest public accounting firms, referred to as the Big Four, and other consulting firms. As of
December 31, 2006, we had 99 managing directors who have revenue-generating responsibilities. These in-
dividuals have an average of 22 years of business experience. In addition to our headquarters in Chicago, we
have other offices located in Boston, Charlotte, Houston, Los Angeles, New York city, San Francisco and Wash-
ington D.C. We also have three document review centers located in Miramar, Florida, Raleigh, North Carolina and
Rock Hill, South Carolina.

OUR SERVICES

We provide our services through two segments: Financial Consulting and Operational Consulting. For the
year ended December 31, 2006, we derived 48.0% of our revenues from Financial Consulting and 52.0% from
Operational Consulting. For further financial information on our segment results, see “Item 7. Management’s Dis-
cussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” below and note “17. Segment Information”
in the notes to consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K.

Financial Consulting

Our Financial Consulting segment provides highly specialized financial and economic analyses and advice to
help clients effectively address complex challenges that arise from litigation, disputes, investigations, regulation,
financial distress and other sources of significant conflict or change. Our Financial Consulting segment consisted
of 344 billable consultants as of December 31, 2006. This segment’s practices and the services they offer include:

• Disputes and investigations. Our disputes and investigations practice provides financial analyses to
support law firms and corporations in connection with business disputes, lawsuits and regulatory or in-
ternal investigations. We have extensive experience in the areas of financial investigations and forensic
accounting, including matters involving the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
or other regulatory inquiries or investigations, financial restatements and special accounting projects. We
provide specialized accounting services to gather and analyze voluminous financial data and reconstruct
complex transactions and events.

• Economic consulting. Our economic consulting team works with clients to provide economic and stat-
istical analyses in situations that arise in connection with litigation, regulatory hearings, complex trans-
actions or public policy issues. Our team includes consultants with doctorates in economics and leading
academics that perform event studies, sales and claims forecasting, economic damages calculations,
policy analysis and compliance studies.

• Corporate advisory services. Our corporate advisory services practice provides consulting assistance
to financially distressed companies, creditor constituencies and other stakeholders in connection with
out-of-court restructurings and bankruptcy proceedings. For companies in financial distress, we work with
management to assess the viability of their business, to develop and implement a turnaround plan to im-

2



prove cash flow, and to implement a debt-restructuring plan to improve the balance sheet. In some in-
stances, we serve in interim management roles. When out-of-court solutions are not achievable, we assist
clients in preparing for a Chapter 11 bankruptcy filing and with all aspects of the bankruptcy process by
gathering, analyzing and presenting financial and business information needed to achieve a successful
reorganization. We also provide claims management services to help companies process and analyze
complex and voluminous claims filed in bankruptcies and related litigation matters. For creditor con-
stituencies, including committees of creditors and lenders, we provide similar financial and operational
analyses and recommendations designed to assess the viability of a debtor’s planned actions and to posi-
tion our clients to maximize the recovery of amounts owed.

• Valuation services. Our valuation team delivers expert valuation analyses to clients and their advisors.
We perform valuations of businesses, financial interests, intellectual property, real property, machinery
and equipment and other tangible and intangible assets. Our valuation group typically supports client
needs in the following contexts:

• Transactions: supporting clients’ financial and tax reporting, especially in the context of acquisitions
and other corporate transactions;

• Litigation or disputes: valuing businesses or assets; and

• Bankruptcies: supporting the restructuring process or the sale of business assets.

• Interim management/Focused consulting. Our interim management/focused consulting practice typi-
cally provides the following services to distressed hospital systems:

• Interim management: serving as on-site senior management, including assuming the positions of
interim chief executive officer, chief operating officer and chief financial officer, with a specialization in
managing distressed hospital systems and healthcare facilities; also providing chief restructuring offi-
cers to healthcare facilities in bankruptcy;

• Focused consulting: the interim managers are supported by consultants who provide revenue cycle
improvements, cost reduction initiatives, clinical support, revenue generation, business development,
financial planning and analysis and litigation support; and

• Bankruptcies, workouts and restructuring advisory services: in addition to providing chief restructuring
officers to healthcare facilities in bankruptcy, we provide creditor relations assistance, reorganization
planning and out-of-court workouts.

Operational Consulting

Our Operational Consulting segment provides services designed to help clients improve the overall efficiency
and effectiveness of their operations by enhancing revenue, reducing costs, managing regulatory compliance and
maximizing procurement efficiencies. Our Operational Consulting segment consisted of 498 revenue-generating
professionals as of December 31, 2006. This segment’s practices and the services they offer include:

• Higher education. Our higher education practice provides operational consulting services to colleges,
universities, hospitals and academic medical centers. We have worked with the majority of the largest
research institutions to develop and implement solutions in a manner consistent with each institution’s
unique culture. Our professionals have worked on engagements that have provided us substantial under-
standing of the issues facing higher education and healthcare institutions. We provide high-quality
consulting services designed to address our clients’ most pressing issues in the areas of research admin-
istration, regulatory compliance, clinical research, technology planning and implementation, and financial
management and strategy.

• Legal business consulting. Our legal business consulting practice helps both in-house legal depart-
ments and outside counsel enhance the quality of legal services while reducing costs by more efficiently
aligning strategy, people, processes and technology. We provide strategic advice to help legal depart-
ments and law firms improve their organizational design and business processes, and to help manage-
ment in their use of outside counsel. We also work with corporations and law firms to provide solutions to
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enhance their discovery process management and electronic discovery needs. One area of emphasis is
helping clients choose and implement technology solutions that improve legal department operations. We
provide a full array of digital evidence, discovery and records management services that include discovery
process execution, electronic discovery services, computer forensics, data management, document proc-
essing, document review, records program development, records improvement planning and process,
and program management, all aimed at reducing costs, coordinating matters and people, streamlining
processes and reducing risks. We also have extensive experience in selecting, customizing and success-
fully rolling out engagement management systems and electronic billing systems that help legal depart-
ments track and manage lawsuits and other legal matters. These systems are powerful tools for
managing budgets, spending and resources. We provide similar services for document management sys-
tems and patent management applications.

• Healthcare. Our healthcare practice helps healthcare providers and payors effectively address their stra-
tegic, operational, management and financial challenges. On the provider side, we help hospitals, physi-
cians and other healthcare providers improve operations by performing assessments and implementing
solutions designed to reduce costs and increase effectiveness. Our engagements typically focus on rev-
enue cycle and cash acceleration, supply chain improvements, strategic growth and planning, financial
planning and physician/ancillary services. Additionally, we provide risk management and regulatory com-
pliance solutions. For healthcare payors, we focus on compliance and government contracting issues re-
lated to federal healthcare programs. Our Medicare contract services include Medicare contract transition
and termination assistance, implementation of cost accounting standards, secondary payer analyses,
strategic assessments, proposal support services and assistance related to implementation of the Medi-
care Modernization Act. We assist pharmaceutical companies with pricing analyses and related aspects
of regulatory disclosures and calculations. We also assist health plans with various operational issues,
including claims processing over and under-payments, Pharmacy Benefit Manager audits and business
performance reporting.

• Strategic sourcing. Our strategic sourcing practice assists clients in all areas of the procurement proc-
ess. Our services are geared to address the needs of the chief financial officer and chief procurement
officer (CPO): strategic sourcing, supply market category expertise, demand management, contract com-
pliance, spend analysis, accounts payable and invoice audits, procurement assessments and trans-
formations, eProcurement, off-shoring and outsourcing advice, and serving as interim CPO, director of
purchasing and key staff augmentation. We specialize in the delivery of sustainable, non-salary cost re-
ductions. We help clients achieve significant savings by first understanding the needs and goals of our
clients’ businesses and then customizing a total economic cost approach to procurement. Our approach
may include strategy formulation, incumbent vendor strategy, negotiation support, partner selection and
knowledge transfer to our clients.

• Galt & Company. Our Galt & Company division focuses exclusively on helping well-managed companies
deliver superior shareholder returns. Galt works with management to develop the strategies and organiza-
tional capabilities that accelerate profitable growth and improve shareholder value. In effect, Galt brings
the discipline of the capital markets inside an organization, building the capabilities to effectively manage
and maximize shareholder value growth.

• Performance improvement. Our performance improvement practice has three primary service offerings:

• Strategic alignment: Our team helps companies align their business models to allow them to better
serve their clients.

• Efficiency improvement: We help companies identify and execute programs to improve the efficiency
of their business. These programs can include a range of functional areas of the business, including
supply chain, customer care and finance and accounting.

• Integration: Our team works closely with companies to successfully complete and accelerate value real-
ization from complex strategic transactions, including mergers and spin-offs. We work with clients to
establish the project management structures necessary to ensure that these high-stakes transactions
are successful. Additionally, we assist clients with particularly complex or high-risk elements of the in-
tegration, such as organizational structure, order-to-cash process, product and sales force integration.
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We are hands-on and work side-by-side with our clients to understand organization dynamics and to set
plans and accountabilities necessary to generate sustainable results.

OUR CLIENTS

We provide financial and operational consulting services to a wide variety of both financially sound and dis-
tressed organizations, including Fortune 500 companies, medium-sized businesses, leading academic in-
stitutions, healthcare organizations, and the law firms that represent these various organizations. Our clients are
in a broad array of industries, including education, professional services, transportation services, healthcare, tele-
communications, financial services, electronics, consumer products, energy and utilities, industrial manufacturing,
and food and beverage. Since commencing operations in May 2002, we have conducted over 3,400 engage-
ments for over 1,700 clients, and we have worked on engagements with 39 of the 40 largest U.S. law firms listed
in The American Lawyer 2006 Am Law 100. Our top ten clients represented 31.2%, 38.3% and 27.8% of our rev-
enues in the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Revenues from one client repre-
sented 10.2% of our revenues in 2006. Revenues from another client represented 11.1% of our revenues in 2005.
No single client accounted for more than 10% of our revenues in 2004. The following are examples of engage-
ments that we have performed for our clients.

Financial Consulting

Practice Client Need Huron Solution

Disputes and
investigations

Assist legal counsel
representing a
major retail
company with
analyzing various
accounting and
disclosure issues
that were subject to
an investigation by
the SEC.

➤Forensic accounting experts conducted in-depth financial
analyses of accounting records and analyzed issues such as
compliance with debt covenants, warranty arrangements,
accrual calculation methodology, lease accounting and
financial statement disclosures.

➤Provided client with electronic discovery, computer forensics
and data preservation services.

➤Assisted the client in presentation of facts and investigation
findings to the SEC.

Assist legal counsel
for a debtor estate
and unsecured
creditors committee
with financial and
economic analyses
related to litigation
involving breach of
fiduciary duty by a
parent company.

➤Synthesized large volumes of financial data and other
documents and performed solvency tests of the subsidiary.

➤Calculated damages arising from the termination of funding
by the parent company based on valuations of the company
under various scenarios.

Corporate advisory
services

The Unsecured
Creditors
Committee in the
Chapter 11
bankruptcy of a Tier
1 supplier to the
automotive industry
required broad-
ranging and prompt
financial and
operational advice
and counsel.

➤Advised the Committee in its review and analysis of the
debtor’s debtor-in-possession financing, key employee
retention program, critical vendor program and sale of
assets.

➤Played a key role in negotiating recoveries under the
debtor’s proposed plan of reorganization as well as
evaluating the debtor’s exit financing and enterprise
valuation.

➤Monitored the debtor’s liquidity position, earnings
performance, operational and strategic restructuring
initiatives, and assessed the debtor’s long-range sales
forecast by business segment, plant and platform, including
the underlying assumptions regarding volume, price
givebacks and overall market conditions.
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Practice Client Need Huron Solution

Valuation services Value assets of
acquired company
for purchase price
allocation by a
global media
company.

➤Analyzed the fair market value of the assets of the acquired
company, including tangible assets, customer relationships,
favorable contracts, franchise value and goodwill.

➤Determined the remaining life of the assets as well as tested
for impairment of the assets in other operating units to
support financial reporting requirements.

Interim management /
Focused consulting

Provide interim
management and
perform focused
consulting services
for a large hospital
system in the
United States.

➤Provided experienced senior executive management,
including the chief executive officer, the chief financial officer,
the chief operating officer and various department managers.

➤Made revenue cycle improvements by analyzing and
correcting back-office operations, monitoring tools that report
key metrics, improving coding and automation, as well as
analyzing and renegotiating payor contracts to improve
performance, including achieving significant increases in
cash flow, improved relations with trade creditors and system
improvements for the long term.

Operational Consulting

Practice Client Need Huron Solution

Higher education Assess and identify
the economic
impact of a leading
university on the
immediate region
and state; deliver
strategic
recommendations
to the university to
optimize future
impact and improve
competitive
position.

➤Identified the economic impact that the university has had on
the state and regional economies.

➤Outlined the key factors that have enabled other research
institutions and regions to be leading economic performers.

➤Reviewed the unique circumstances that exist in the state
that relate to future economic development in a technology-
based global economy.

➤Identified issues and constraints, including structural and
policy areas, which were impeding the ability of the university
to compete with peer institutions and serve as a key driver of
high-end economic development.

➤Identified strategies and recommendations to enhance the
university’s contribution to the future growth and
development of the state’s and region’s economies,
including:

Š Expansion of a vibrant research enterprise,

Š Improved access to intellectual capital,

Š Creation of new private-public partnerships and joint
ventures, and

Š Expansion of an infrastructure primed to anticipate and
react immediately to market changes; to make investments
to get to the market first; and to ultimately increase
economic growth.
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Practice Client need Huron solution

Legal business consulting Implement
management
system for the
management and
control of e-mail to
reduce storage
cost, improve
performance and
ensure the retention
of e-mail in
accordance with
company records
retention
requirements for a
global chemical
company.

➤Developed electronic records management strategy, policy
and standards.

➤Reviewed and updated records retention policy and
metadata standards.

➤Developed technical, legal/regulatory and user specifications
for e-mail management system.

➤Provided technical and records management expertise for
the development of request for proposal and system
selection.

➤Conducted a proof of concept to ensure technical
compatibility with their IT infrastructure, a second proof of
concept to ensure adequate risk and regulatory functionality
and a full production pilot to ensure that the system met end
user ease of use acceptance.

➤Developed change management process for company-wide
roll-out of the system.

Provide project
management and
comprehensive
document review
services for a
multinational
company with more
than 6 million pages
that had to be
produced to the
opposing party
within 14 days from
the start of the
project.

➤Worked with outside counsel to develop a work flow for the
processing, review and production of responsive, non-
privileged documents.

➤ Conducted the review at Huron’s customized review
facilities, using more than 150 review professionals working
around the clock.

➤Redacted confidential information from responsive
documents.

➤ Managed the production of documents to opposing counsel.

Assist a Europe-
based global energy
company in the
implementation of a
new law department
global technology
platform consisting
of matter
management,
spend management
and document
management. Our
team of consultants
led the
requirements
gathering, process
re-engineering and
design efforts, as
well as other
implementation
tasks.

➤Conducted user requirements gathering sessions across the
globe.

➤ Developed a global requirements document for the complete
technology platform solution.

➤Designed the global matter management system, document
management system and spend management system.

➤ Created policies and procedures for the law department.

➤Developed change management process for roll-out of the
system.
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Practice Client need Huron solution

Assist the law
department of a
major oil and gas
company in cost-
saving initiatives.

➤Implemented a matter management system involving the
merging of processes and data from two legacy law
departments. The department focused on system design,
conversion mapping, system testing, rollout and
implementation of matter management, electronic billing and
legal liability accrual management.

➤ Created an in-house document discovery process and
capability that is supplemented as needed by outside
contract resources for peak demand. These initiatives
resulted in substantial cost savings and created a strong
foundation for future endeavors.

Healthcare Improve operating
margins of
healthcare provider.

➤Comprehensive assessment of performance levels related to
operating costs, supply costs, revenue cycle and
organizational structure efficiency.

➤Quantified and prioritized areas of potential opportunity for
change, growth and/or improvement, including revenue
management, use of supplies and efficiency of information
systems.

➤Developed and implemented plans for sustained
improvements in supply chain, revenue cycle and
organizational effectiveness.

Assist in recovering
overpaid claims.

➤Assisted a large health insurance organization perform a
detailed analysis of its coordination of benefits programs.

➤Identified a significant number of claims that had been paid
in error by the client and assisted the client in recovering
these overpayments.

Strategic sourcing Significantly
reduced the total
delivered costs of
procured products,
services, equipment
and select operating
expenses for a
major international
airline.

➤Critical assessment of client’s current state, business needs
and culture.

➤Conducted thorough data analysis and savings opportunity
identification.

➤Implemented strategic sourcing, demand management and
contract compliance.

➤Targeted non-salary expenditures with goal of achieving
significant recurring annual cost reductions within a
compressed timeframe.

➤Exceeded targets and achieved first year cost savings of up
to 30% in the following expenditure areas:

Š Janitorial services

Š Office related products

Š Ground support equipment spare parts

Š Uniforms

Š Telecommunications

Š On-board food services

Š Ground transportation

Š Temporary labor
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Practice Client need Huron solution

Galt & Company Help client achieve
and sustain superior
shareholder value
growth over time.

➤Work with client management to:

Š Establish agreement to a clear definition of “winning” and
implement financial goals and measures consistent with
success in both the customer and capital markets

Š Deepen understanding of sources and drivers of
shareholder value growth by recognizing where and why
profitable growth will be concentrated

Š Establish an explicit and ongoing value growth agenda,
focusing on the 5-10 key priorities that will drive
shareholder value growth

Š Develop and deploy differentiated business models and
reallocate resources to gain a disproportionate share of
market profitability

Š Enhance management decision standards, processes and
capabilities to sustain the improvements and identify and
capture future value growth opportunities

Performance improvement Pharmaceutical
client made a
significant
acquisition and
needed a plan and
process to manage
the integration of
the two
organizations
including all key
business functions.
Additionally, the
client needed a
strategic
assessment of
overlapping product
offerings and
customer
relationships in
order to determine
its go forward
strategy.

➤Established the program management structure and
planning tools. Worked with the client to create functional
integration plans.

➤Oversaw the program management office to identify
interdependencies between functions and surfaced key risks
and decisions, as well as tracked the program to ensure that
the integration accomplished key milestones and that
synergies were achieved.

➤Provided leadership for key high-risk areas of integration
including domestic and international order to cash,
international sales force integration and supply chain.

➤Developed a detailed analysis of product and customer
strategic positioning and profitability and facilitated clients
through a series of working sessions to agree on a product
rationalization plan.

In response to our continued growth and acquisitions of complementary businesses, effective January 1,
2007, we have reorganized our practice areas and service lines to better align ourselves to meet market demands
and serve our clients. See “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Subsequent Events” below for further details.

INDUSTRY BACKGROUND

We believe many organizations are facing increasingly large and complex business disputes and lawsuits, a
growing number of regulatory and internal investigations and more intense public scrutiny. Concurrently, we be-
lieve increased competition and regulation are presenting significant operational and financial challenges for
organizations. Distressed companies are responding to these challenges by restructuring and reorganizing their
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businesses and capital structures, while financially healthy organizations are striving to capitalize on opportunities
by improving operations, reducing costs and enhancing revenue. Many organizations have limited dedicated re-
sources to respond effectively to these challenges and opportunities. Consequently, we believe these orga-
nizations will increasingly seek to augment their internal resources with experienced independent consultants like
us.

We believe the demand for our services is driven by the following factors:

• SEC and internal investigations. The increased scrutiny of accounting practices, internal controls and
disclosure has contributed to a large number of financial restatements by public companies. According to
Glass Lewis & Co., an institutional investor advisory firm, the number of financial restatements by U.S.
public companies reached 1,195 in 2005, an increase of 95% from 2004. In response to a number of re-
cent incidences of corporate malfeasance and accounting irregularities, the SEC has conducted an in-
creasing number of public company investigations over the past few years. For fiscal 2008, the
President’s budget request for the SEC is $905.3 million, a 3.2% increase over the $877.1 million funding
level. In addition, an increasing number of boards of directors, audit committees and special independent
committees of companies that have had to review their historical financials or respond to complaints by
whistleblowers have conducted internal forensic investigations to determine the underlying facts. These
dynamics have driven demand for independent financial consultants like us who help clients respond to
SEC investigations, evaluate restatements of financial statements and support internal investigations by
combining investigative accounting and financial reporting skills with business and practical experience.

• Litigation and disputes. Litigation and business disputes are prevalent in the United States and, we be-
lieve, the volume of this activity does not necessarily correlate with the economic cycle. The breadth and
magnitude of these matters is increasing. For example, antitrust investigation and enforcement activities
by federal, state and local authorities present heightened complexities and risks for companies in the
areas of mergers and acquisitions, pricing policies, distribution relationships and patent and intellectual
property matters. In addition, private parties can bring antitrust claims asserting a variety of violations. In
complex litigation and disputes, organizations and the law firms that represent them regularly engage
experienced consultants to provide or support expert testimony or perform data analyses involving finan-
cial, economic and accounting issues.

• Sarbanes-Oxley and stockholder activism. The enactment of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has
substantially limited the scope of non-audit services that large public accounting firms, such as the Big
Four, can provide to their audit clients. These limitations represent a significant opportunity for in-
dependent consulting firms. Further, certain influential institutional investors, citing concerns over per-
ceived conflicts of interest, have opposed the ratification of auditors and the election of directors of
companies that engage their auditors to perform permissible non-audit services. The restrictions of
Sarbanes-Oxley, stockholder opposition to auditors performing consulting services for their audit clients
and the relatively small number of large public accounting firms has led many clients to choose in-
dependent consulting firms over the Big Four when seeking providers of various consulting services.

• Operational challenges and opportunities. Organizations must constantly reevaluate business proc-
esses in order to manage change and risk, and minimize or recover costs. For example, in the healthcare
industry, the steady flow of changes that affect healthcare funding, treatments, delivery and admin-
istration increase the difficulty in managing a complex mix of factors, including rising healthcare costs and
insurance premiums and the increasing number of uninsured citizens. In the higher education industry,
research universities and academic medical centers must develop and maintain programs to effectively
manage research compliance risks and implement systems that support the recovery of research costs.
Additionally, the difficulties of managing a large number of legal matters prompted in-house legal depart-
ments to seek ways to improve their efficiency and effectiveness, which drives the demand for con-
sultants specializing in legal department operations. The recent changes to the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure have compelled corporations and their outside counsel to be in command of their obligations in
responding to discovery much earlier in the process. The demand for consultants to assist them with the
technical, business and process challenges associated with the new rules and electronic discovery has
never been greater. In general, a variety of organizations seek to improve their procurement efficiencies,
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improve operational processes and reduce costs. We believe that in seeking to meet these challenges
and capitalize on these opportunities, organizations will increasingly augment their internal resources with
consultants who can provide a combination of industry expertise and strong technical skills.

• Improving economic conditions and merger and acquisition activity. Despite depressed levels in
recent years, there was a rebound in mergers and acquisitions, or M&A, activity amidst an improvement
in general economic conditions. According to Mergers & Acquisitions, The Dealmaker’s Journal, the ag-
gregate dollar value of completed M&A transactions increased approximately 38% from $997 billion in
2005 to $1,371 billion in 2006, the highest level since 2000. We believe M&A activity creates demand for
financial consulting services, such as purchase price allocations and other similar valuation services and
dispute and litigation services, as well as operational consulting services, such as merger integration,
margin improvement and strategic sourcing.

• Financial distress. Despite the decline in corporate bankruptcy filings, we believe there will continue to
be a sufficient number of bankruptcies of the size and complexity that typically require debtors and other
constituents to retain the services of financial advisors. Additionally, there is an ongoing need for re-
structuring and turnaround consulting services to assist financially distressed, under-performing and debt-
laden companies and their stakeholders outside of the bankruptcy process.

EMPLOYEES

Our ability to bring the right expertise together to address client issues requires a willingness to work and
think outside the bounds of a single practice or specialty. Our success depends on our ability to attract and retain
highly talented professionals by creating a work environment where both individuals and teams thrive and in-
dividuals are rewarded not only for their own contributions but also for the success of our organization as a whole.
To accomplish those goals and recognize performance, we have adopted a comprehensive rewards program in-
corporating compensation, training and development opportunities, performance management and special recog-
nition plans that motivates individual performance and promotes teamwork.

As of December 31, 2006, we had 1,035 employees, consisting of 842 revenue-generating professionals and
193 non-revenue-generating professionals. The 842 revenue-generating professionals included 99 managing di-
rectors and 743 directors, managers, associates, analysts and assistants. Many of these individuals have a mas-
ter’s degree in business administration, have doctorates in economics, are certified public accountants, or are
accredited valuation specialists and forensic accountants. Our revenue-generating managing directors serve cli-
ents as advisors and engagement team leaders, originate revenue through new and existing client relationships,
and work to strengthen our intellectual capital, develop our people and enhance our reputation. Our directors and
managers manage day-to-day client relationships and oversee the delivery and overall quality of our work prod-
uct. Our associates and analysts gather and organize data, conduct detailed analyses and prepare presentations
that synthesize and distill information to support recommendations we deliver to clients. In addition to our full-time
professionals, in certain cases we also utilize independent contractors.

Our 193 non-revenue-generating professionals at December 31, 2006 included 10 managing directors and
183 directors, managers, associates, analysts and assistants. Our non-revenue-generating professionals include
our senior management team, senior client relationship managers, and finance, human resources, information
technology, legal and marketing personnel.

We assimilate and support employees in their career progression through training and development pro-
grams. We have structured orientation and training programs for new analysts, “milestone” programs to help re-
cently promoted employees quickly become effective in their new roles, and opportunities for self-directed
training, including technical and consulting courses. We assign employees internal performance coaches to
identify opportunities for development, formal training or certifications.

Our compensation plan includes competitive base salary, incentives and benefits. Under our incentive plan,
directors, managers, associates and analysts set goals each year with a performance coach. These goals are
aligned with our business goals as well as individual interests and development needs. Managing directors set
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goals with their practice leader using a balanced scorecard. The incentive plan balances our value of teamwork
with recognition of individual performance, and incentive compensation is tied to both team and individual
performance. Incentives for managing directors are based on their individual performance and their contribution to
their practice and to our business as a whole. Funding of the incentive pool is based on our achievement of
annual financial goals and each practice’s achievement of its financial goals. In addition, managing directors and
certain high-performing directors may receive long-term equity incentives.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AND MARKETING

Business development

Our business development activities aim to build relationships and a strong brand reputation with key sources
of business and referrals, especially top-tier law firms and the offices of the chief financial officer and general
counsel of organizations. We believe that excellent service delivery to clients is critical to building relationships
and our brand reputation, and we emphasize the importance of client service to all of our employees.

We generate most of our new business opportunities through relationships that our managing directors have
with individuals working in corporations, academic institutions, existing or former clients and top-tier law firms. We
also view cross selling as a key component in building our business. Often, the client relationship of a managing
director in one practice leads to opportunities in another practice. Although some managing directors spend more
time on service delivery than new business development, all of our managing directors understand their important
role in ongoing relationship and business development, which is reinforced through our compensation and in-
centive program. We actively seek to identify new business opportunities, and we frequently receive referrals and
repeat business from past and current clients and from the law firms with which we have worked.

We also host conferences that facilitate client development opportunities and promote brand recognition. For
example, in the second quarter of 2006, along with the Kellogg School of Management of Northwestern Uni-
versity, we co-hosted the Perspectives in Healthcare Forum: Leadership Transformation—From Policy to Practice
where The Honorable William Clinton provided the keynote address. We also hosted The Summit GC 2006: Busi-
ness Strategy: A Mandate for General Counsel in Today’s Environment. In the third quarter of 2006, along with
Columbia Law School’s Center on Corporate Governance, we co-hosted Gatekeepers Today: The Professions
After the Reforms. These programs provided a forum to develop and strengthen new and existing client relation-
ships in the healthcare and legal areas.

In addition, to complement the business development efforts of our managing directors, we have a group of
senior client relationship managers who are focused exclusively on developing client relationships and generating
new business through their extensive network of contacts. We also have formed relationships with prominent
academics, which generate new business opportunities.

Marketing

We have a centralized marketing department with a marketing professional assigned to each of our practices.
These professionals coordinate traditional marketing programs, such as participation in seminars, sponsorship of
client events and publication of articles in industry publications to actively promote our name and capabilities. The
marketing department also manages the content delivery on Huron’s website, develops collateral materials, per-
forms research and provides database management to support sales efforts.

COMPETITION

The consulting services industry is extremely competitive, highly fragmented and subject to rapid change. The
industry includes a large number of participants with a variety of skills and industry expertise, including other busi-
ness operations and financial consulting firms, general management consulting firms, the consulting practices of
major accounting firms, technical and economic advisory firms, regional and specialty consulting firms and the in-
ternal professional resources of organizations. We compete with a large number of service providers in both of our
segments. Our competitors often vary depending on the particular practice area. In addition, we also expect to con-
tinue to face competition from new entrants because the barriers to entry into consulting services are relatively low.
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We believe the principal competitive factors in our market include firm and consultant reputations, client and
law firm relationships and referrals, the ability to attract and retain top professionals, the ability to manage
engagements effectively and the ability to be responsive and provide high quality services. There is also competi-
tion on price, although to a lesser extent due to the critical nature of many of the issues that the types of services
we offer address. Many of our competitors have a greater geographic footprint, including an international pres-
ence, and name recognition, as well as have significantly greater personnel, financial, technical and marketing
resources than we do. We believe that our independence, experience, reputation, industry focus, and a broad
range and balanced portfolio of service offerings enable us to compete favorably and effectively in the consulting
marketplace.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amend-
ments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act are available free
of charge on our website, www.huronconsultinggroup.com, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electroni-
cally file such material with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

An inability to retain our senior management team and other managing directors would be detrimental to

the success of our business.

We rely heavily on our senior management team, including Gary Holdren, our Chief Executive Officer, Daniel
Broadhurst, our Vice President, Operations and Business Strategy, Gary Burge, our Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer, and other managing directors, and our ability to retain them is particularly important to our future suc-
cess. Given the highly specialized nature of our services, the senior management team must have a thorough
understanding of our service offerings as well as the skills and experience necessary to manage an organization
consisting of a diverse group of professionals. In addition, we rely on our senior management team and other
managing directors to generate and market our business. Further, in light of our limited operating history, our se-
nior management’s and other managing directors’ personal reputations and relationships with our clients are a
critical element in obtaining and maintaining client engagements. Although we enter into non-solicitation agree-
ments with our senior management team and other managing directors, we generally do not enter into
non-competition agreements. Accordingly, members of our senior management team and our other managing
directors are not contractually prohibited from leaving or joining one of our competitors, and some of our clients
could choose to use the services of that competitor instead of our services. If one or more members of our senior
management team or our other managing directors leave and we cannot replace them with a suitable candidate
quickly, we could experience difficulty in securing and successfully completing engagements and managing our
business properly, which could harm our business prospects and results of operations.

Our inability to hire and retain talented people in an industry where there is great competition for talent

could have a serious negative effect on our prospects and results of operations.

Our business involves the delivery of professional services and is highly labor-intensive. Our success de-
pends largely on our general ability to attract, develop, motivate and retain highly skilled professionals. The loss of
a significant number of our revenue-generating professionals or the inability to attract, hire, develop, train and re-
tain additional skilled personnel could have a serious negative effect on us, including our ability to manage, staff
and successfully complete our existing engagements and obtain new engagements. Qualified professionals are in
great demand, and we face significant competition for both senior and junior professionals with the requisite cre-
dentials and experience. Our principal competition for talent comes from other consulting firms, accounting firms
and technical and economic advisory firms, as well as from organizations seeking to staff their internal pro-
fessional positions. Many of these competitors may be able to offer significantly greater compensation and bene-
fits or more attractive lifestyle choices, career paths or geographic locations than we do. Therefore, we may not
be successful in attracting and retaining the skilled consultants we require to conduct and expand our operations
successfully. Increasing competition for these revenue-generating professionals may also significantly increase
our labor costs, which could negatively affect our margins and results of operations.
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We have experienced net losses for the first part of our history, and our limited operating history makes

evaluating our business difficult.

We have a limited operating history and although we generated net income of $10.9 million, $17.8 million and
$26.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively, we may not sustain profit-
ability in the future. Our net losses, among other things, have had, and should net losses occur in the future, will
have, an adverse effect on our stockholders’ equity and working capital. To sustain profitability, we must:

• attract, integrate, retain and motivate highly qualified professionals;

• achieve and maintain adequate utilization and suitable billing rates for our revenue-generating pro-
fessionals;

• expand our existing relationships with our clients and identify new clients in need of our services;

• maintain and enhance our brand recognition; and

• adapt to meet changes in our markets and competitive developments.

We may not be successful in accomplishing these objectives. Further, our limited operating history makes it
difficult to evaluate our business and prospects. Our prospects must be considered in light of the risks, un-
certainties, expenses and difficulties frequently encountered by companies in their early stages of development,
particularly companies in highly competitive industries. The historical information in this report may not be in-
dicative of our future financial condition and future performance. For example, we expect that our future annual
growth rate in revenues will moderate and likely be less than the growth rates experienced in the early part of our
history.

If we are unable to manage the growth of our business successfully, we may not be able to sustain

profitability.

We have grown significantly since we commenced operations, nearly quadrupling the number of our revenue-
generating professionals from 213 as of May 31, 2002 to 842 as of December 31, 2006. As we continue to in-
crease the number of our employees, we may not be able to successfully manage a significantly larger workforce.
Additionally, our considerable growth has placed demands on our management and our internal systems, proce-
dures and controls and will continue to do so in the future. To successfully manage growth, we must add admin-
istrative staff and periodically update and strengthen our operating, financial, accounting and other systems,
procedures and controls, which will increase our costs and may adversely affect our gross profits and our ability to
sustain profitability if we do not generate increased revenues to offset the costs. This need to augment our sup-
port infrastructure due to growth is compounded by our decision to become a public reporting company and the
increased expense that has arisen in complying with existing and new regulatory requirements. As a public com-
pany, our information and control systems must enable us to prepare accurate and timely financial information
and other required disclosure. If we discover deficiencies in our existing information and control systems that im-
pede our ability to satisfy our reporting requirements, we must successfully implement improvements to those
systems in an efficient and timely manner.

Our financial results could suffer if we are unable to achieve or maintain adequate utilization and suitable

billing rates for our revenue-generating professionals.

Our profitability depends to a large extent on the utilization and billing rates of our professionals. Utilization of
our professionals is affected by a number of factors, including:

• the number and size of client engagements;

• the timing of the commencement, completion and termination of engagements, which in many cases is
unpredictable;

• our ability to transition our consultants efficiently from completed engagements to new engagements;

• the hiring of additional consultants because there is generally a transition period for new consultants that
results in a temporary drop in our utilization rate;
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• unanticipated changes in the scope of client engagements;

• our ability to forecast demand for our services and thereby maintain an appropriate level of consultants;
and

• conditions affecting the industries in which we practice as well as general economic conditions.

The billing rates of our consultants that we are able to charge are also affected by a number of factors, includ-
ing:

• our clients’ perception of our ability to add value through our services;

• the market demand for the services we provide;

• introduction of new services by us or our competitors;

• our competition and the pricing policies of our competitors; and

• general economic conditions.

If we are unable to achieve and maintain adequate overall utilization as well as maintain or increase the bill-
ing rates for our consultants, our financial results could materially suffer.

A significant portion of our revenues is derived from a limited number of clients, and our engagement

agreements, including those related to our largest clients, can be terminated by our clients with little or

no notice and without penalty, which may cause our operating results to be unpredictable.

As a consulting firm, we have derived, and expect to continue to derive, a significant portion of our revenues
from a limited number of clients. Our ten largest clients accounted for 31.2%, 38.3% and 27.8% of our revenues
for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Revenues from one client accounted for
10.2% of our revenues in 2006 while revenues from another client accounted for 11.1% of our revenues in 2005.
No single client accounted for more than 10.0% of our revenues in 2004. Our clients typically retain us on an
engagement-by-engagement basis, rather than under fixed-term contracts; the volume of work performed for any
particular client is likely to vary from year to year and a major client in one fiscal period may not require or decide
to use our services in any subsequent fiscal period. Moreover, a large portion of our new engagements comes
from existing clients. Accordingly, the failure to obtain new large engagements or multiple engagements from
existing or new clients could have a material adverse effect on the amount of revenues we generate.

In addition, almost all of our engagement agreements can be terminated by our clients with little or no notice
and without penalty. For example, in engagements related to litigation, if the litigation were to be settled, our en-
gagement for those services would no longer be necessary and therefore would be terminated. In client engage-
ments that involve multiple engagements or stages, there is a risk that a client may choose not to retain us for
additional stages of an engagement or that a client will cancel or delay additional planned engagements. For cli-
ents in bankruptcy, a bankruptcy court could elect not to retain our interim management consultants, terminate
our retention, require us to reduce our fees for the duration of an engagement or approve claims against fees
earned by us prior to or after the bankruptcy filing. For example, shortly after we acquired Speltz & Weis LLC, its
largest client, which accounted for approximately 82.8% of its 2004 revenues and which accounted for approx-
imately $14.5 million, or 7.0%, of our revenues in the year ended December 31, 2005, filed for bankruptcy. While
the Bankruptcy Court approved our retention, it did so subject to certain fee reductions that we negotiated with the
client and certain other interested parties. Depending on the outcome of the bankruptcy proceeding, we may not
receive the full amount of these negotiated amounts. Moreover, several parties to the bankruptcy case have re-
served their right to challenge fees earned by us and Speltz & Weis LLC prior to the bankruptcy filing on July 5,
2005. Although no such claim has been brought to date, if a claim is brought in the future, the claim could have a
material adverse impact on our financial position, results of operations, earnings per share or cash flows in the
period in which such claim were resolved. Terminations of engagements, cancellations of portions of the project
plan, delays in the work schedule or reductions in fees could result from factors unrelated to our services. When
engagements are terminated or reduced, we lose the associated future revenues, and we may not be able to re-
cover associated costs or redeploy the affected employees in a timely manner to minimize the negative impact. In
addition, our clients’ ability to terminate engagements with little or no notice and without penalty makes it difficult
to predict our operating results in any particular fiscal period.
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Our ability to maintain and attract new business depends upon our reputation, the professional

reputation of our revenue-generating employees and the quality of our services.

As a professional services firm, our ability to secure new engagements depends heavily upon our reputation
and the individual reputations of our professionals. Any factor that diminishes our reputation or that of our
employees, including not meeting client expectations or misconduct by our employees, could make it substantially
more difficult for us to attract new engagements and clients. Similarly, because we obtain many of our new en-
gagements from former or current clients or from referrals by those clients or by law firms that we have worked
with in the past, any client that questions the quality of our work or that of our consultants could impair our ability
to secure additional new engagements and clients.

The consulting services industry is highly competitive, and we may not be able to compete effectively.

The consulting services industry in which we operate includes a large number of participants and is intensely
competitive. We face competition from other business operations and financial consulting firms, general
management consulting firms, the consulting practices of major accounting firms, technical and economic advi-
sory firms, regional and specialty consulting firms and the internal professional resources of organizations. In
addition, because there are relatively low barriers to entry, we expect to continue to face additional competition
from new entrants into the business operations and financial consulting industries. We have offices in the United
States and do not have any international offices. Many of our competitors have a greater national presence and
are also international in scope, as well as have significantly greater personnel, financial, technical and marketing
resources. In addition, these competitors may generate greater revenues and have greater name recognition than
we do. Our ability to compete also depends in part on the ability of our competitors to hire, retain and motivate
skilled professionals, the price at which others offer comparable services and our competitors’ responsiveness to
their clients. If we are unable to compete successfully with our existing competitors or with any new competitors,
our financial results will be adversely affected.

Additional hiring and acquisitions could disrupt our operations, increase our costs or otherwise harm our

business.

Our business strategy is dependent in part upon our ability to grow by hiring individuals or groups of in-
dividuals and potentially by acquiring additional complementary businesses. However, we may be unable to
identify, hire, acquire or successfully integrate new employees and complementary businesses without substantial
expense, delay or other operational or financial problems. Competition for future hiring and acquisition oppor-
tunities in our markets could increase the compensation we offer to potential employees or the price we pay for
businesses we wish to acquire. In addition, we may be unable to achieve the financial, operational and other
benefits we anticipate from any hiring or acquisition, including with respect to Speltz & Weis, Galt, DRCS, Aaxis,
Wellspring, and Glass. Hiring additional employees or acquiring complementary businesses could also involve a
number of additional risks, including:

• the diversion of management’s time, attention and resources from managing and marketing our company;

• the failure to retain key acquired personnel;

• the adverse short-term effects on reported operating results from the amortization or write-off of acquired
goodwill and other intangible assets, such as described in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis—
Client Bankruptcy Case”;

• potential impairment of existing relationships with our clients, such as client satisfaction or performance
problems, whether as a result of integration or management difficulties or otherwise;

• the creation of conflicts of interest that require us to decline or resign from engagements that we other-
wise could have accepted;

• the potential need to raise significant amounts of capital to finance a transaction or the potential issuance
of equity securities that could be dilutive to our existing stockholders;

• increased costs to improve, coordinate or integrate managerial, operational, financial and administrative
systems; and
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• difficulties in integrating diverse backgrounds and experiences of consultants, including if we experience a
transition period for newly hired consultants that results in a temporary drop in our utilization rates or
margins.

If we fail to successfully address these risks, our ability to compete may be impaired.

If the number of large bankruptcies declines or other factors cause a decrease in demand for our

corporate advisory services, our revenues and profitability could suffer.

As previously discussed, in January 2007, we acquired Glass, a turnaround and restructuring consulting firm
that we combined with our existing corporate advisory services practice. This practice provides various turn-
around, restructuring and bankruptcy services to companies in financial distress or their creditors, or other stake-
holders. If the number of large bankruptcies declines, the revenues from this practice could decline, which could
harm our ability to sustain profitability and could also limit the effectiveness of our acquisition of Glass.

The profitability of our fixed-fee engagements with clients may not meet our expectations if we

underestimate the cost of these engagements.

Fixed-fee engagements generated approximately 13.4%, 11.5% and 11.8% of our revenues for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. When making proposals for fixed-fee engagements, we
estimate the costs and timing for completing the engagements. These estimates reflect our best judgment regard-
ing the efficiencies of our methodologies and consultants as we plan to deploy them on engagements. Any in-
creased or unexpected costs or unanticipated delays in connection with the performance of fixed-fee
engagements, including delays caused by factors outside our control, could make these contracts less profitable
or unprofitable, which would have an adverse effect on our profit margin.

Revenues from our performance-based engagements are difficult to predict, and the timing and extent of

recovery of our costs is uncertain.

From time to time, primarily in our corporate advisory services and strategic sourcing practices, we enter into
engagement agreements under which our fees include a significant performance-based component.
Performance-based fees are contingent on the achievement of specific measures, such as our clients meeting
cost-saving or other contractually defined goals. The achievement of these contractually-defined goals is often
impacted by factors outside of our control, such as the actions of our client or third parties. Because performance-
based fees are contingent, revenues on such engagements, which are recognized when all revenue recognition
criteria are met, are not certain and the timing of receipt is difficult to predict and may not occur evenly throughout
the year. While performance-based fees comprised 2.8%, 3.7% and 5.1% of our revenues for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, we intend to continue to enter into performance-based fee ar-
rangements and these engagements may impact our revenues to a greater extent in the future. Should
performance-based fee arrangements represent a greater percentage of our business in the future, we may expe-
rience increased volatility in our working capital requirements and greater variations in our quarter-to-quarter re-
sults, which could affect the price of our common stock. In addition, an increase in the proportion of performance-
based fee arrangements may temporarily offset the positive effect on our operating results from increases in our
utilization rate or average billing rate per hour. For example, net deferrals of $1.4 million of performance-based
fees for services rendered had the effect of reducing our average billing rate per hour for the third quarter of 2005
by $6, while net recognition of $1.1 million of performance-based fees had the effect of increasing our average
billing rate per hour for the fourth quarter of 2005 by $5.

Conflicts of interest could preclude us from accepting engagements thereby causing decreased

utilization and revenues.

We provide services in connection with bankruptcy proceedings and litigation proceedings that usually in-
volve sensitive client information and frequently are adversarial. In connection with bankruptcy proceedings, we
are required by law to be “disinterested” and may not be able to provide multiple services to a particular client. In
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litigation we would generally be prohibited from performing services in the same litigation for the party adverse to
our client. In addition, our engagement agreement with a client or other business reasons may preclude us from
accepting engagements with our clients’ competitors or adversaries. As we increase the size of our operations,
the number of conflict situations can be expected to increase. Moreover, in many industries in which we provide
services, there has been a continuing trend toward business consolidations and strategic alliances. These con-
solidations and alliances reduce the number of companies that may seek our services and increase the chances
that we will be unable to accept new engagements as a result of conflicts of interest. If we are unable to accept
new engagements for any reason, our consultants may become underutilized, which would adversely affect our
revenues and results of operations in future periods.

Expanding our service offerings or number of offices may not be profitable.

We may choose to develop new service offerings or open new offices because of market opportunities or cli-
ent demands. Developing new service offerings involves inherent risks, including:

• our inability to estimate demand for the new service offerings;

• competition from more established market participants;

• a lack of market understanding; and

• unanticipated expenses to recruit and hire qualified consultants and to market our new service offerings.

In addition, expanding into new geographic areas and/or expanding current service offerings is challenging
and may require integrating new employees into our culture as well as assessing the demand in the applicable
market. For example, in August 2003, we established a small office in Palo Alto, California to service the Silicon
Valley marketplace and, in September 2003, we established a small office in Miami, Florida to deepen our corpo-
rate finance capabilities. These offices did not meet our expectations and, therefore, we subsequently closed
those offices and incurred a restructuring charge of $2.1 million in 2004. Also in 2004, we decided to eliminate a
service offering of a practice area in our operational consulting segment that was not meeting our expectations
and incurred a restructuring charge of $1.3 million. If we cannot manage the risks associated with new service
offerings or new locations effectively, we are unlikely to be successful in these efforts, which could harm our abil-
ity to sustain profitability and our business prospects.

Our engagements could result in professional liability, which could be very costly and hurt our

reputation.

Our engagements typically involve complex analyses and the exercise of professional judgment. As a result,
we are subject to the risk of professional liability. If a client questions the quality of our work, the client could
threaten or bring a lawsuit to recover damages or contest its obligation to pay our fees. Litigation alleging that we
performed negligently or breached any other obligations to a client could expose us to significant legal liabilities
and, regardless of outcome, is often very costly, could distract our management and could damage our reputa-
tion. We are not always able to include provisions in our engagement agreements that are designed to limit our
exposure to legal claims relating to our services. Even if these limiting provisions are included in an engagement
agreement, they may not protect us or may not be enforceable under some circumstances. In addition, we carry
professional liability insurance to cover many of these types of claims, but the policy limits and the breadth of
coverage may be inadequate to cover any particular claim or all claims plus the cost of legal defense. For exam-
ple, we provide services on engagements in which the impact on a client may substantially exceed the limits of
our errors and omissions insurance coverage. If we are found to have professional liability with respect to work
performed on such an engagement, we may not have sufficient insurance to cover the entire liability.

Our intellectual property rights in our “Huron Consulting Group” name are important, and any inability to

use that name could negatively impact our ability to build brand identity.

We believe that establishing, maintaining and enhancing the “Huron Consulting Group” name is important to
our business. We are, however, aware of a number of other companies that use names containing “Huron.” There
could be potential trade name or service mark infringement claims brought against us by the users of these similar
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names and marks and those users may have trade name or service mark rights that are senior to ours. If another
company were to successfully challenge our right to use our name, or if we were unable to prevent a competitor
from using a name that is similar to our name, our ability to build brand identity could be negatively impacted.

We or some of our professionals could be named in lawsuits because we were founded by former Arthur

Andersen LLP partners and professionals and contracted with Arthur Andersen for releases from

non-competition agreements.

We were founded by a core group of professionals that consisted primarily of former Arthur Andersen LLP
partners and professionals, and we entered into a contract with Arthur Andersen to release these partners and
professionals from non-competition agreements with Arthur Andersen. These circumstances might lead creditors
of Arthur Andersen and other parties to bring claims against us or some of our managing directors or other con-
sultants seeking recoveries for liabilities of Arthur Andersen and we may not be able to successfully avoid liability
for such claims. In addition, litigation of this nature or otherwise could divert the time and attention of our manag-
ing directors and employees, and we could incur substantial defense costs.

As a holding company, we are totally dependent on distributions from our operating subsidiaries to pay

dividends or other obligations and there may also be other restrictions on our ability to pay dividends in

the future.

We are a holding company with no business operations. Our only significant asset is the outstanding equity
interests of our wholly-owned operating subsidiaries. As a result, we must rely on payments from our subsidiaries
to meet our obligations. We currently expect that the earnings and cash flow of our subsidiaries will primarily be
retained and used by them in their operations, including servicing any debt obligations they may have now or in
the future. Accordingly, although we do not anticipate paying any dividends in the foreseeable future, our sub-
sidiaries may not be able to generate sufficient cash flow to distribute funds to us in order to allow us to pay future
dividends on, or make any distribution with respect to, our common stock. Our future credit facilities, other future
debt obligations and statutory provisions may also limit our ability to pay dividends or make any distribution in re-
spect of our common stock.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

Our principal executive offices are located in Chicago, Illinois, consisting of approximately 88,000 square feet
of office space, under a lease that expires in September 2014. We have two five-year renewal options under the
lease that will allow us to continue to occupy this office space until September 2024. This facility accommodates
our executive team and corporate departments, as well as professionals in each of our practices. We also have a
core office located in New York City, New York, consisting of approximately 57,000 square feet of office space,
under a lease that expires in July 2016, with a one five-year renewal option. Additionally, we occupy leased facili-
ties for our other offices located in Boston, Charlotte, Houston, Los Angeles, San Francisco and Washington, D.C.
We also occupy leased facilities for our three document review centers located in Miramar, Florida, Raleigh, North
Carolina and Rock Hill, South Carolina. We do not own any real property. We believe that our leased facilities are
adequate to meet our current needs and that additional facilities are available for lease to meet future needs.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

From time to time, we are involved in legal proceedings and litigation arising in the ordinary course of busi-
ness. As of the date of this annual report on Form 10-K, we are not a party to or threatened with any litigation or
other legal proceeding that, in our opinion, could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results
or financial condition.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2006.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Market Information

Trading in Huron’s common stock commenced on October 13, 2004, under the symbol “HURN.” HURN is traded
on The NASDAQ Global Select Market. The following table sets forth, on a per share basis and for the period indicated,
the high and low closing sales prices for Huron’s common stock as reported by The NASDAQ Stock Market.

High Low

2005:

First Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $25.56 $19.76
Second Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $25.25 $19.46
Third Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $28.30 $23.10
Fourth Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $28.40 $23.45

2006:

First Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $31.31 $23.90
Second Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $36.05 $29.60
Third Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $39.89 $32.09
Fourth Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $45.98 $36.92

Holders

As of February 9, 2007, there were 75 holders of record of Huron’s common stock.

Dividends

Other than a special dividend in 2004, we have not declared or paid any dividends on our common stock
since our inception and do not intend to pay any dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. We
currently expect that we will retain our future earnings, if any, for use in the operation and expansion of our busi-
ness. Future cash dividends, if any, will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend upon, among
other things, our future operations and earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general financial condition,
contractual restrictions and other factors the board of directors may deem relevant. In addition, the bank credit
agreement that we entered into on June 7, 2006 restricts dividends to an amount up to $10 million per fiscal year
plus 50% of consolidated net income (adjusted for non-cash share-based compensation expense) for such fiscal
year, plus 50% of net cash proceeds during such fiscal year with respect to any issuance of capital securities.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The information required by this item appears under “Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Own-
ers and Management and Related Stockholders Matters” included elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

Our 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan permits the netting of common stock upon vesting of restricted stock awards
to satisfy individual tax withholding requirements. During the quarter ended December 31, 2006, we redeemed
52,300 shares of common stock with a weighted-average fair market value of $39.45 as a result of such tax with-
holdings as presented in the table below.

Period

Total Number of
Shares Redeemed

to Satisfy Employee
Tax Withholding

Requirements

Weighted-
Average Fair
Market Value

Per Share
Redeemed

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly
Announced Plans

or Programs

Maximum Number
of Shares that May
Yet Be Purchased
Under the Plans or

Programs

October 1, 2006 – October 31, 2006 . . . . . . . 50,115 $39.41 N/A N/A
November 1, 2006 – November 30, 2006 . . . 1,708 $40.11 N/A N/A
December 1, 2006 – December 31, 2006 . . . 477 $41.14 N/A N/A

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 52,300 $39.45 N/A N/A

N/A – Not applicable.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

We have derived the following selected consolidated financial data as of and for the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2003, and as of the end of and for the period from March 19, 2002 (inception) to
December 31, 2002 from our audited consolidated financial statements. The following data reflects the acquis-
itions that we have completed through December 31, 2006. The results of operations for the acquired entities
have been included in our results of operations since the date of their acquisitions. The information set forth below
is not necessarily indicative of the results of future operations and should be read in conjunction with “Item 7.
Management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations” and the consolidated
financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K.

Consolidated statements of operations data
(in thousands, except per share and other operating data):

Year Ended December 31,

March 19,
2002

(inception)
to Dec 31,

20022006 2005 2004 2003

Revenues and reimbursable expenses:
Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $288,588 $207,213 $159,550 $101,486 $35,101
Reimbursable expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33,330 18,749 14,361 8,808 2,921

Total revenues and reimbursable expenses . . . . . . 321,918 225,962 173,911 110,294 38,022
Direct costs and reimbursable expenses (exclusive

of depreciation and amortization shown in
operating expenses) (1):

Direct costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 163,569 117,768 93,248 69,401 26,055
Intangible assets amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,207 1,314 — — —
Reimbursable expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33,506 18,982 14,281 8,929 2,921

Total direct costs and reimbursable expenses . . . . 199,282 138,064 107,529 78,330 28,976
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 65,926 51,035 40,858 25,185 8,813
Depreciation and amortization (1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,201 5,282 2,365 5,328 3,048
Restructuring charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 3,475 — —
Management and advisory fees paid to related

parties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — 2,750
Loss on lease abandonment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — 1,668 —
Organization costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — 965

Total operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 75,127 56,317 46,698 32,181 15,576

Operating income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 47,509 31,581 19,684 (217) (6,530)
Other income (expense):
Interest income (expense), net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (703) 472 (692) (856) (332)
Other income (expense) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 (37) — (112) (1)

Total other income (expense) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (687) 435 (692) (968) (333)

Income (loss) before provision (benefit) for
income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 46,822 32,016 18,992 (1,185) (6,863)

Provision (benefit) for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,133 14,247 8,128 (122) (2,697)

Net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26,689 17,769 10,864 (1,063) (4,166)
Accrued dividends on 8% preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 931 1,066 646

Net income (loss) attributable to common
stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 26,689 $ 17,769 $ 9,933 $ (2,129) $ (4,812)

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders
per share (2):

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.63 $ 1.13 $ 0.77 $ (0.18) $ (0.41)
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.54 $ 1.05 $ 0.72 $ (0.18) $ (0.41)

Weighted average shares used in calculating net
income (loss) attributable to common stockholders
per share (2):

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,359 15,741 12,820 11,871 11,803
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17,317 16,858 13,765 11,871 11,803

Cash dividend per common share (3) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ — $ 0.09 $ — $ —
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Other operating data (unaudited):

Year Ended December 31,

March 19,
2002

(inception)
to Dec 31,

20022006 2005 2004 2003

Number of revenue-generating professionals (at end of
period) (4) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 842 632 483 477 262

Average number of revenue-generating professionals (for
the period) (4) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 716 564 485 361 247

Number of billable consultants (at end of period) (4) . . . . . 794 632 483 477 262
Average number of billable consultants (for the period)

(4) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 698 564 485 361 247
Utilization rate for billable consultants (5) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 77.8% 76.5% 72.2% 66.1% 57.3%
Average billing rate per hour (6) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 260 $ 249 $ 239 $ 217 $ 206

As of December 31,

Consolidated balance sheet data (in thousands): 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 16,572 $ 31,820 $28,092 $ 4,251 $ 4,449
Working capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 36,047 $ 52,272 $42,898 $10,159 $ 9,780
Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $199,444 $129,699 $83,219 $39,889 $26,583
Long-term debt (7) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,000 $ 2,127 $ — $10,076 $10,076
Total 8% preferred stock (8) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ — $ — $14,212 $13,146
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $116,580 $ 75,532 $49,233 $ (6,624) $ (4,543)

(1) Intangible assets amortization relating to customer contracts is presented as a component of total direct
costs. Depreciation, amortization of leasehold improvements and amortization of intangible assets relating to
customer relationships and non-competition agreements are presented as a component of operating ex-
penses.

(2) Adjusted for a 1 for 2.3 reverse stock split effected on October 5, 2004.
(3) On May 12, 2004, we declared a special dividend on each outstanding share of our common stock and 8%

preferred stock payable to holders of record on May 25, 2004. We paid the special dividend on June 29,
2004. The 8% preferred stock participated on an as converted basis. The aggregate amount of the dividend
was $1.25 million, or $0.09 per share of common stock and $9.64 per share of 8% preferred stock. Other
than the special dividend, we have not declared or paid any dividends on our common stock since our in-
ception and do not intend to pay any dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

(4) Revenue-generating professionals consist of our billable consultants and other professionals. Billable con-
sultants generate revenues primarily based on number of hours worked while our other professionals gen-
erate revenues based on number of hours worked and units produced, such as pages reviewed and data
processed. Revenue-generating professionals exclude interns and independent contractors.

(5) We calculate the utilization rate for our billable consultants by dividing the number of hours all our billable
consultants worked on client assignments during a period by the total available working hours for all of our
billable consultants during the same period, assuming a forty-hour work week, less paid holidays and vaca-
tion days.

(6) For engagements where revenues are based on number of hours worked by our billable consultants, average
billing rate per hour is calculated by dividing revenues for a period by the number of hours worked on client
assignments during the same period.

(7) Consists of notes payable issued in connection with the acquisition of Speltz & Weis LLC at December 31,
2006 and 2005. Also includes capital lease obligations, net of current portions, at December 31, 2005. Con-
sists of 8% promissory notes at December 31, 2003 and 2002.

(8) On October 18, 2004, we used $15.1 million of the proceeds of the initial public offering to redeem all of the
outstanding 8% preferred stock, plus cumulative dividends and a liquidation participation amount totaling
$2.6 million.

22



ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS.

OVERVIEW

We are an independent provider of financial and operational consulting services. Our highly experienced pro-
fessionals employ their expertise in accounting, finance, economics and operations to provide our clients with
specialized analyses and customized advice and solutions that are tailored to address each client’s particular
challenges and opportunities. We commenced operations in May 2002 with a core group of experienced con-
sultants, composed primarily of former Arthur Andersen LLP partners and professionals, along with equity spon-
sorship from a group of investors led by Lake Capital Management LLC.

On October 18, 2004, we completed our initial public offering. In the initial public offering, we sold 3,333,333
shares of common stock and a selling stockholder, HCG Holdings LLC, sold 1,666,667 shares of common stock
at an offering price of $15.50 per share. On October 22, 2004, the underwriters exercised in full their over-
allotment option to purchase an additional 750,000 shares of common stock from the selling stockholder. The ini-
tial public offering generated gross proceeds to us of $51.7 million, or $48.0 million net of underwriting discounts.
We did not receive any proceeds from the shares sold by the selling stockholder. On October 18, 2004, we used
$15.1 million of the net proceeds to redeem the outstanding 8% preferred stock, including cumulative dividends
and a liquidation participation amount totaling $2.6 million. Also on October 18, 2004, the Company used
$10.7 million of the net proceeds to repay the notes payable to HCG Holdings LLC, including accrued and unpaid
interest of $0.6 million. The costs associated with the initial public offering, which totaled $3.3 million, were paid
from the proceeds. On May 9, 2005, we used a portion of the remaining net proceeds from the initial public offer-
ing to pay the cash portion of the purchase price for our acquisition of Speltz & Weis LLC. We used the remaining
initial public offering proceeds for general corporate purposes.

In a secondary offering completed in the first quarter of 2006, HCG Holdings LLC sold 7,245,000 shares of
our common stock at an offering price of $27.00 per share. We did not offer any shares and did not receive any
proceeds from this offering.

We have grown significantly since we commenced operations, nearly quadrupling the number of our revenue-
generating professionals from 213 as of May 31, 2002 to 842 as of December 31, 2006 through hiring and acquis-
itions of complementary businesses. Revenues in 2006 totaled $288.6 million, a 39.3% increase from 2005 and
an 80.9% increase from 2004. These increases resulted from a combination of organic growth as well as our
business acquisitions. Since inception through December 31, 2006, we have completed the following acquisitions:

Speltz & Weis LLC

In May 2005, we acquired 100% of the outstanding membership interests of Speltz & Weis LLC (“Speltz &
Weis”), a specialized consulting firm that provides interim management and crisis management services to
healthcare facilities. With the acquisition of Speltz & Weis, we began to provide full-service offerings to distressed
hospitals and other healthcare facilities. This acquisition was consummated on May 9, 2005 and the results of
operations of Speltz & Weis have been included within our Financial Consulting segment since that date. The
aggregate purchase price of the acquisition was $17.2 million, which consisted of $14.0 million in cash paid at
closing, notes payable totaling $3.0 million payable in three equal annual installments of $1.0 million (together
with accrued interest at 4% per annum) that began on May 8, 2006, and $0.2 million of transaction costs. Addi-
tional purchase consideration may be payable based on the performance of Speltz & Weis over a three-year peri-
od. Such amounts will be recorded as an adjustment to goodwill if payable. No additional purchase consideration
has been earned by Speltz & Weis as of December 31, 2006. Also, additional payments may be made based on
the amount of revenues we receive from certain referrals made by Speltz & Weis employees. Such amounts will
be recorded as an expense if payable.
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MSGalt & Company, LLC

In April 2006, we acquired substantially all of the assets of MSGalt & Company, LLC (“Galt”), a specialized
advisory firm that designs and implements corporate-wide programs to improve shareholder returns. With the
acquisition of Galt, we expanded our value and service offerings to the office of the chief executive officer and
boards of Fortune 500 companies. This acquisition was consummated on April 3, 2006 and the results of oper-
ations of Galt have been included within our Operational Consulting segment since that date. The aggregate pur-
chase price of this acquisition was $28.4 million, which consisted of $20.4 million in cash paid at closing,
$0.3 million of transaction costs, and $7.7 million of additional purchase price earned by Galt during 2006 sub-
sequent to the acquisition, as certain performance targets were met. We financed this acquisition with cash on
hand and borrowings of $6.5 million under our bank credit agreement. Additional purchase consideration may be
payable if specific performance targets are met over a four-year period. Such amounts will be recorded as addi-
tional purchase price and an adjustment to goodwill. Also, additional payments may be made based on the
amount of revenues the Company receives from referrals made by Galt employees over a four-year period. Such
amounts will be recorded as an expense.

Document Review Consulting Services LLC and Aaxis Technologies Inc.

In July 2006, we acquired Document Review Consulting Services LLC (“DRCS”) and Aaxis Technologies Inc.
(“Aaxis”). With the acquisitions of DRCS and Aaxis, we enhanced our service offerings to the office of the general
counsel and law firms by helping them manage information in a comprehensive manner during litigation, inves-
tigations, mergers and acquisitions, and other major transactions. These acquisitions were consummated in two
separate transactions on July 31, 2006 and the results of operations of DRCS and Aaxis have been included
within our Operational Consulting segment since that date.

The aggregate purchase price of the DRCS acquisition was $16.9 million, which consisted of $2.0 million in
cash paid at closing, $0.2 million of transaction costs, $14.4 million of debt and liabilities assumed, the majority of
which we immediately discharged, and $0.3 million of additional purchase price earned by DRCS in 2006 sub-
sequent to the acquisition, as certain performance targets were met. Additional purchase consideration may be
payable if specific performance targets are met over a three-year period. Such amounts will be recorded as addi-
tional purchase price and an adjustment to goodwill.

The aggregate purchase price of the Aaxis acquisition was $7.8 million, which consisted of $5.1 million in
cash paid at closing, $0.1 million of transaction costs, $1.9 million of debt and liabilities assumed, all of which we
immediately discharged, and a $0.7 million working capital adjustment. Additional purchase consideration may be
payable if specific performance targets are met over a three-year period. Such amounts will be recorded as addi-
tional purchase price and an adjustment to goodwill. No additional purchase consideration has been earned by
Aaxis through December 31, 2006.

We financed the DRCS and Aaxis acquisitions with cash on hand and borrowings totaling $22.0 million under
our bank credit agreement.

Subsequent to December 31, 2006, we completed two additional acquisitions:

Wellspring Partners LTD

In January 2007, we acquired Wellspring Partners LTD (“Wellspring”), a management consulting firm specializ-
ing in integrated performance improvement services for hospitals and health systems. With the acquisition of Well-
spring, we expand our national presence in the healthcare provider sector. The results of operations of Wellspring
will be included with the Company’s results of operations beginning on January 2, 2007. The aggregate purchase
price of this acquisition was approximately $65.0 million in cash paid at closing, subject to a working capital
adjustment. We financed this acquisition with a combination of cash on hand and borrowings under our bank credit
agreement. Additional purchase consideration may be payable if specific performance targets are met over a five-
year period. Such amounts will be recorded as additional purchase price and an adjustment to goodwill.
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Glass & Associates, Inc.

Also in January 2007, we acquired Glass & Associates, Inc. (“Glass”), a turnaround and restructuring consult-
ing firm that provides advice and leadership to troubled businesses in the United States and Europe. With the
acquisition of Glass, we expand our position in the consulting and restructuring marketplace, as well as expand
our interim management capabilities to distressed companies in industries beyond healthcare. The results of
operations of Glass will be included with the Company’s results of operations beginning on January 2, 2007. The
aggregate purchase price of this acquisition was approximately $30.0 million in cash, subject to a working capital
adjustment. We financed this acquisition with a combination of cash on hand and borrowings under our bank
credit agreement. Additional purchase consideration may be payable if specific performance targets are met over
a four-year period. Such amounts will be recorded as additional purchase price and an adjustment to goodwill.
Also, additional payments may be made based on the amount of revenues the Company receives from referrals
made by certain employees of Glass over a four-year period. Such amounts will be recorded as an expense.

We provide our services through two segments: Financial Consulting and Operational Consulting. Our Finan-
cial Consulting segment provides services that help clients effectively address complex challenges that arise from
litigation, disputes, investigations, regulation, financial distress and other sources of significant conflict or change.
Our Operational Consulting segment provides services that help clients improve the overall efficiency and effec-
tiveness of their operations, reduce costs, manage regulatory compliance and maximize procurement efficiency.

Revenues

The majority of our revenues are generated by our billable consultants who provide consulting services to our
clients. A smaller portion of our revenues is generated by our other professionals, consisting of our document re-
view and electronic data discovery groups, whom we acquired during 2006 as discussed above and who generate
revenues primarily based on number of hours worked and units produced such as pages reviewed or data proc-
essed. We refer to our billable consultants and other professionals collectively as revenue-generating pro-
fessionals.

Consulting services revenues are primarily driven by the number of billable consultants we employ and their
utilization rates, as well as the billing rates we charge our clients. Revenues generated by our document review
and electronic data discovery groups are largely dependent on the number of professionals and independent con-
tractors we employ, their utilization and billing rates charged, as well as the number of pages reviewed and
amount of data processed.

Most of our revenues are generated based on either the number of hours incurred by our billable consultants
and independent contractors, or the number of hours incurred or units produced by our other professionals at
agreed upon rates. We refer to these types of arrangements collectively as time and expense engagements.
Time-and-expense engagements represented 83.8%, 84.8% and 83.1% of our revenues in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

In fixed-fee engagements, we agree to a pre-established fee in exchange for a pre-determined set of consult-
ing services. We set the fees based on our estimates of the costs and timing for completing the fixed-fee
engagements. It is the client’s expectation in these engagements that the pre-established fee will not be ex-
ceeded except in mutually agreed upon circumstances. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
fixed-fee engagements represented approximately 13.4%, 11.5% and 11.8%, respectively, of our revenues.

Performance-based fee engagements generally tie fees to the attainment of contractually defined objectives.
We enter into performance-based engagements in essentially two forms. First, we generally earn fees that are
directly related to the savings formally acknowledged by the client as a result of adopting our recommendations
for improving cost effectiveness in the procurement area. Second, we have performance-based engagements in
which we earn a success fee when and if certain pre-defined outcomes occur. Often this type of success fee sup-
plements time-and-expense or fixed-fee engagements. For example, our revenues for the second quarter of 2004
included a $1.6 million success fee earned on a time-and-expense engagement that included a performance-
based component related to the completion of a series of asset sales transactions managed on behalf of a single
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financial consulting segment client over a two-year period. While performance-based fee revenues represented
approximately 2.8%, 3.7% and 5.1% of our revenues in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, such revenues in the
future may cause significant variations in quarterly revenues and operating results due to the timing of achieving
the performance-based criteria.

Our quarterly results are impacted principally by our billable consultant’s utilization rate, the number of busi-
ness days in each quarter and the number of our revenue-generating professionals who are available to work.
Our utilization rate can be negatively affected by increased hiring because there is generally a transition period for
new professionals that results in a temporary drop in our utilization rate. Our utilization rate can also be affected
by seasonal variations in the demand for our services from our clients. For example, during the third and fourth
quarters of the year, vacations taken by our clients can result in the deferral of spending on existing and new
engagements, which would negatively affect our utilization rate. The number of business work days are also af-
fected by the number of vacation days taken by our consultants and holidays in each quarter. We typically have
10% to 15% fewer business work days available in the third and fourth quarters of the year, which can impact
revenues during those periods.

Reimbursable expenses

Reimbursable expenses that are billed to clients, primarily relating to travel and out-of-pocket expenses in-
curred in connection with engagements, are included in total revenues and reimbursable expenses, and typically
an equivalent amount of these expenses are included in total direct costs and reimbursable expenses. Re-
imbursable expenses also include subcontractors that are billed to our clients at cost. The amount of reimbursable
expenses included in total revenues and reimbursable expenses may not always correspond with the amount of
these expenses included in total direct costs and reimbursable expenses due to the fact that revenues from re-
imbursable expenses associated with performance-based engagements may be deferred and recognized at a
later date when the revenue on these engagements is recognized. This treatment can result in a timing difference
between when revenue from reimbursable expenses is recognized and when such expenses are recognized in
the statement of operations. Such timing differences are eliminated when the performance-based engagement is
completed, as total cumulative revenues from reimbursable expenses will equal the total cumulative reimbursable
expenses incurred on the engagement. We manage our business on the basis of revenues before reimbursable
expenses. We believe this is the most accurate reflection of our services because it eliminates the effect of these
reimbursable expenses that we bill to our clients at cost.

Total direct costs

Our most significant expenses are costs classified as total direct costs. These total direct costs primarily in-
clude direct costs consisting of salaries, performance bonuses, payroll taxes and benefits for revenue-generating
professionals, as well as fees paid to independent subcontractors that we retain to supplement full-time person-
nel, typically on an as-needed basis for specific client engagements. Direct costs also include share-based com-
pensation, which represents the cost of restricted stock and stock option awards granted to our revenue-
generating professionals. Compensation for share-based awards is amortized on a straight-line basis over the
requisite service period, which is generally four years. As a result of the granting of restricted common stock
awards and anticipated future awards, share-based compensation expense will increase in the future. Total direct
costs also include intangible assets amortization relating to customer contracts.

Operating expenses

Our operating expenses include selling, general and administrative expenses, which consist primarily of sal-
aries, performance bonuses, payroll taxes and benefits, as well as share-based compensation for our
non-revenue-generating professionals. Compensation for share-based awards is amortized on a straight-line ba-
sis over the requisite service period, which is generally four years. As a result of the granting of restricted com-
mon stock awards and anticipated future awards, share-based compensation expense will increase in the future.
Also included in this category are other sales and marketing related expenses, rent and other office-related ex-
penses, and professional fees. Other operating expenses include certain depreciation and amortization expenses
not included in total direct costs
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Segment results

Segment operating income consists of the revenues generated by a segment, less the direct costs of rev-
enue and selling, general and administrative costs that are incurred directly by the segment. Unallocated corpo-
rate costs include costs related to administrative functions that are performed in a centralized manner that are not
attributable to a particular segment. These administrative function costs include corporate office support costs, all
office facility costs, costs relating to accounting and finance, human resources, legal, marketing, information tech-
nology and company-wide business development functions, as well as costs related to overall corporate
management.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations are based upon our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States, or GAAP. The notes to our consolidated financial statements include disclosure of
our significant accounting policies. We review our financial reporting and disclosure practices and accounting
policies to ensure that our financial reporting and disclosures provide accurate information relative to the current
economic and business environment. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make assessments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements, as well as
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Critical accounting policies are those
policies that we believe present the most complex or subjective measurements and have the most potential to
impact our financial position and operating results. While all decisions regarding accounting policies are important,
we believe that there are five accounting policies that could be considered critical. These critical policies relate to
revenue recognition, allowances for doubtful accounts and unbilled services, carrying values of goodwill and other
intangible assets, valuation of net deferred tax assets and share-based compensation.

Revenue recognition

We recognize revenues in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin, or SAB, No. 101, “Revenue Recognition
in Financial Statements,” as amended by SAB No. 104, “Revenue Recognition.” Revenue is recognized when
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the related services are provided, the price is fixed or determi-
nable and collectibility is reasonably assured. Our services are primarily rendered under arrangements that re-
quire the client to pay based on the hours incurred by our revenue-generating professionals, the number of pages
reviewed by our document review group, or the amount of data processed by our electronic data discovery group
at agreed-upon rates and recognized as services are provided. Revenues related to fixed-fee engagements are
recognized based on estimates of work completed versus the total services to be provided under the engage-
ment. Losses, if any, on fixed-fee engagements are recognized in the period in which the loss first becomes
probable and reasonably estimable. To date, such losses have not been significant. Revenues related to
performance-based engagements are recognized when all performance-based criteria are met. We also have
contracts with clients to deliver multiple services that are covered under both individual and separate engagement
letters. These arrangements allow for our services to be valued and accounted for on a separate basis. Re-
imbursable expenses related to time-and-expense and fixed-fee engagements are recognized as revenue in the
period in which the expense is incurred. Reimbursable expenses subject to performance-based criteria are
recognized as revenue when all performance criteria are met. Direct costs incurred on all types of engagements,
including performance-based engagements, are recognized in the period in which incurred.

Differences between the timing of billings and the recognition of revenue are recorded as either unbilled serv-
ices or deferred revenue. Revenues recognized for services performed but not yet billed to clients are recorded as
unbilled services. Amounts billed to clients but not yet recognized as revenues are recorded as deferred revenue.
Client prepayments and retainers that are unearned are also classified as deferred revenue and recognized over
future periods as earned in accordance with the applicable engagement agreement.
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Allowances for doubtful accounts and unbilled services

We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts and for services performed but not yet billed for estimated
losses based on several factors, including the historical percentages of fee adjustments and write-offs by practice
group, an assessment of a client’s ability to make required payments and the estimated cash realization from
amounts due from clients. The allowances are assessed by management on a regular basis. If the financial con-
dition of a client deteriorates in the future, impacting the client’s ability to make payments, an increase to our
allowances might be required or our allowances may not be sufficient to cover actual write-offs.

The provision for doubtful accounts and unbilled services is recorded as a reduction in revenue to the extent
the provision relates to fee adjustments and other discretionary pricing adjustments. To the extent the provision
relates to a client’s inability to make required payments on accounts receivables, the provision is recorded in
operating expenses.

Carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquired entity over the net of the amounts assigned to as-
sets acquired and liabilities assumed. Our goodwill balance as of December 31, 2006 was $53.3 million, which
resulted from our acquisitions. Pursuant to the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or
SFAS, No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” we test goodwill for impairment annually or whenever in-
dications of impairment arise, such as loss of key personnel, unanticipated competition, or other unforeseen
developments. Impairment exists when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, resulting in
an impairment charge for this excess. An impairment test involves considerable management judgment and esti-
mates regarding future operating results and cash flows. Pursuant to our policy, we performed the annual goodwill
assessment as of April 30, 2006 and determined that no impairment of goodwill existed as of that date. Further,
no indications of impairment have arisen since that date.

Intangible assets represent purchased assets that lack physical substance but can be distinguished from
goodwill. Our intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization, totaled $4.2 million at December 31, 2006 and
consist of customer contracts, customer relationships, non-competition agreements and technology and software.
We use valuation techniques in estimating the initial fair value of acquired intangible assets. These valuations are
primarily based on the present value of the estimated net cash flows expected to be derived from the client rela-
tionships, discounted for assumptions about future customer attrition. We evaluate our intangible assets for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not
be recoverable. Therefore, higher or earlier-than-expected customer attrition may result in higher future amor-
tization charges or an impairment charge for customer-related intangible assets. For example, during the third
quarter of 2005, we wrote off a portion of the intangible assets pertaining to a customer contract as described in
“Client Bankruptcy Case” below.

Valuation of net deferred tax assets

We have recorded net deferred tax assets as we expect to realize future tax benefits related to the utilization
of these assets. Although we experienced net losses early in our history, no valuation allowance has been re-
corded relating to these deferred tax assets because we believe that it is more likely than not that future taxable
income will be sufficient to allow us to utilize these assets. Should we determine in the future that we will not be
able to fully utilize all or part of these deferred tax assets, we would need to establish a valuation allowance,
which would be recorded as a charge to income in the period the determination was made. While utilization of
these deferred tax assets will provide future cash flow benefits, they will not have an effect on future income tax
provisions.

Share-based compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment,” which re-
quires that companies recognize compensation expense for grants of stock, stock options and other equity
instruments based on fair value. Given the lack of a public market for our common stock prior to our IPO, we es-
tablished an estimated fair value of the common stock as well as the exercise price for the options to purchase
this stock. We estimated the fair value of our common stock by evaluating our results of business activities and
projections of our future results of operations.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth selected segment and consolidated operating results and other operating data
for the periods indicated.

Segment and Consolidated Operating Results
(in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Revenues and reimbursable expenses:
Financial Consulting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $138,543 $118,178 $ 92,378
Operational Consulting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 150,045 89,035 67,172

Total revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 288,588 207,213 159,550
Total reimbursable expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33,330 18,749 14,361

Total revenues and reimbursable expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $321,918 $225,962 $173,911

Operating income:
Financial Consulting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 58,016 $ 46,676 $ 34,365
Operational Consulting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 51,985 31,680 23,009

Total segment operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 110,001 78,356 57,374

Unallocated corporate costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 53,291 41,493 31,850
Depreciation and amortization expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,201 5,282 2,365
Other operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 3,475

Total operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 62,492 46,775 37,690

Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 47,509 $ 31,581 $ 19,684

Other Operating Data

Number of revenue-generating professionals (at period end) (1):
Financial Consulting – Billable Consultants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 344 306 269
Operational Consulting – Billable Consultants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 450 326 214
Operational Consulting – Other Professionals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 48 — —

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 842 632 483

Average number of revenue-generating professionals (for the period):
Financial Consulting – Billable Consultants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 316 286 279
Operational Consulting – Billable Consultants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 382 278 206
Operational Consulting – Other Professionals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 — —

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 716 564 485

Billable consultant utilization rate (2):
Financial Consulting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 80.5% 79.9% 71.6%
Operational Consulting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 75.6% 73.1% 73.0%

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 77.8% 76.5% 72.2%

Average billing rate per hour (3):
Financial Consulting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 282 $ 275 $ 257
Operational Consulting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 240 $ 222 $ 218

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 260 $ 249 $ 239

(1) Revenue-generating professionals consist of our billable consultants and other professionals. Billable con-
sultants generate revenues primarily based on number of hours worked while our other professionals gen-
erate revenues based on number of hours worked and units produced, such as pages reviewed and data
processed. Revenue-generating professionals exclude interns and independent contractors.

(2) We calculate the utilization rate for our billable consultants by dividing the number of hours all our billable
consultants worked on client assignments during a period by the total available working hours for all of our
billable consultants during the same period, assuming a forty-hour work week, less paid holidays and vaca-
tion days.

(3) For engagements where revenues are based on number of hours worked by our billable consultants, average
billing rate per hour is calculated by dividing revenues for a period by the number of hours worked on client
assignments during the same period.
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Year ended December 31, 2006 compared to year ended December 31, 2005

Revenues

Revenues increased $81.4 million, or 39.3%, to $288.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from
$207.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006 included
revenues generated by Galt since April 3, 2006 and revenues generated by DRCS and Aaxis since July 31, 2006.
Revenues from time-and-expense engagements increased $66.0 million, or 37.5%, to $241.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006 from $175.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. Revenues from fixed-fee
engagements increased $15.0 million, or 63.0%, to $38.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from
$23.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. Revenues from performance-based engagements increased
$0.4 million, or 5.3%, to $7.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $7.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005.

Of the overall $81.4 million increase in revenues, $66.8 million was attributable to an increase in the number
of revenue-generating professionals and usage of independent contractors, particularly within our document re-
view group, $11.3 million was attributable to an increase in the average billing rate per hour, and $3.3 million was
attributable to an increase in the utilization rate of our billable consultants. These increases were reflective of
growing demand for our services from new and existing clients and our acquisitions. The average number of
revenue-generating professionals increased to 716 for the year ended December 31, 2006 from 564 for the year
ended December 31, 2005, as we added a significant number of billable consultants in our Operational Consulting
segment, as well as other professionals from our acquisitions. Revenues generated by independent contractors
increased $12.8 million, or 253.9%, to $17.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $5.0 million for
the same period last year. Our average billing rate per hour for engagements where revenues are based on num-
ber of hours worked by our billable consultants increased 4.4% to $260 for the year ended December 31, 2006
from $249 for the year ended December 31, 2005. Average billing rate per hour for any given period is calculated
by dividing revenues for the period by the number of hours worked on client assignments during the same period.
Our billable consultant utilization rate increased to 77.8% for the year ended December 31, 2006 from 76.5% for
the same period last year. The utilization rate for any given period is calculated by dividing the number of hours all
our billable consultants worked on client assignments during the period by the total available working hours for all
of our billable consultants during the same period, assuming a forty-hour work week, less paid holidays and vaca-
tion days.

Total direct costs

Our direct costs increased $45.8 million, or 38.9%, to $163.6 million in the year ended December 31, 2006
from $117.8 million in the year ended December 31, 2005. Approximately $33.9 million of the increase was attrib-
utable to the increase in the average number of revenue-generating professionals described above, the promotion
of our billable consultants during the year, including nine to the managing director level effective January 1, 2006,
and their related salaries, bonuses and benefit costs. Share-based compensation expense associated with our
revenue-generating professionals increased $1.7 million, or 34.0%, to $6.7 million during 2006 from $5.0 million
during 2005. Additionally, $7.3 million of the increase in direct costs was attributable to higher levels of in-
dependent contractor usage, particularly within our document review group.

Total direct costs for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 included $2.2 million and $1.3 million,
respectively, of intangible assets amortization expense. The increase in 2006 was primarily attributable to the
2006 acquisitions of Galt, DRCS and Aaxis, in which customer contracts totaling $2.1 million were acquired and
fully amortized during the year.

Operating expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $14.9 million, or 29.2%, to $65.9 million in the year
ended December 31, 2006 from $51.0 million in the year ended December 31, 2005. Approximately $3.8 million of
this increase was due to an increase in non-revenue-generating professionals and their related salaries, bonuses
and benefits costs. We added a number of non-revenue-generating professionals during the past year to continue
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to support a public company infrastructure and to support our growth. Share-based compensation expense asso-
ciated with our non-revenue-generating professionals increased $1.2 million, or 63.2%, to $3.1 million during 2006
from $1.9 million during 2005. Another $3.7 million of the increase was primarily due to higher facilities costs
attributable to two new leases that we entered into during the second half of 2005. The remaining increase in sell-
ing, general and administrative costs during 2006 compared to the same period last year was due to a
$1.8 million increase in marketing and promotional expenses and a $1.7 million increase in training and recruiting
costs. During 2005, we incurred costs associated with a secondary offering that was withdrawn in November 2005
and a secondary offering that was completed in February 2006. These costs totaled $0.5 million after tax, or
$0.03 per diluted share. During the first quarter of 2006, we completed our secondary offering and recorded re-
lated costs totaling $0.6 million after tax, or $0.03 per diluted share. These costs were expensed in the period in-
curred because we did not issue new securities in the offering.

Depreciation expense increased $2.5 million, or 56.8%, to $6.9 million in the year ended December 31, 2006
from $4.4 million in the year ended December 31, 2005 as computers, network equipment, furniture and fixtures,
and leasehold improvements were added to support our increase in employees. Amortization of non-direct in-
tangible assets, which include customer relationships and non-competition agreements, was $2.3 million and
$0.9 million, for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Also included in amortization ex-
pense in the year ended December 31, 2005 is a $0.6 million charge representing the write-off of an intangible
asset relating to a Speltz & Weis customer contract, as described in “Client Bankruptcy Case” below.

Operating income

Operating income increased $15.9 million, or 50.4%, to $47.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006
from $31.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in operating income was primarily due to
the increase in revenues, partially offset by the increases in direct costs and operating expenses as discussed
above. Operating margin, which is defined as operating income expressed as a percentage of revenues, was
16.5% in the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to 15.2% in the year ended December 31, 2005.

Due to the costs associated with the factors listed below, combined with continuing growth in our business
activity, we expect our direct costs and operating expenses to continue to increase in 2007 as compared to 2006.

• During the second quarter of 2006 we acquired Galt and during the third quarter of 2006 we acquired
DRCS and Aaxis. As a result of these acquisitions, we added over 100 professionals to our workforce.

• During 2006, we increased the number of our revenue-generating managing directors from 75 at De-
cember 31, 2005 to 99 at December 31, 2006. In addition, in January 2007, we promoted 20 of our em-
ployees to the managing director level, compared to 11 in January 2006. During 2007, we expect to
continue to hire additional managing directors. We anticipate that some of these managing directors may
not be in a position to generate revenues for a period of six months or more, as they will initially focus
their time on new sales efforts. Additionally, a significant number of the managing directors that we will
hire in 2007 may be subject to restrictive covenants and may require additional time to establish new cli-
ent relationships.

• In 2007, we expect to hire additional managers, associates and analysts to expand support for our exist-
ing practices and better leverage our managing directors and directors.

• We completed the acquisitions of Wellspring and Glass during January 2007. As a result of these acquis-
itions, we have added over 120 full-time employees.

• We expect to continue to use independent contractors to supplement our full-time staff, particularly in our
document review and healthcare management businesses.

Net income

Net income increased $8.9 million, or 50.2%, to $26.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from
$17.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. Diluted earnings per share increased 46.7% to $1.54 for the
year ended December 31, 2006 from $1.05 for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase was primarily
attributable to an increase in net income, slightly offset by an increase in weighted-average shares outstanding.

31



Segment results

Financial Consulting

Revenues

Financial Consulting segment revenues, which includes revenues generated by Speltz & Weis since May 9,
2005, increased $20.3 million, or 17.2%, to $138.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from
$118.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. Revenues from time-and-expense engagements increased
$21.8 million, or 19.2%, to $135.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $113.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2005. Revenues from fixed-fee engagements decreased $1.9 million, or 41.3%, to
$2.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $4.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005.
Revenues from performance-based engagements for the year ended December 31, 2006 totaled $0.4 million and
were immaterial for 2005.

Of the overall $20.3 million increase in revenues, $15.8 million was primarily attributable to an increase in the
number of billable consultants, $3.6 million was attributable to an increase in the average billing rate per hour, and
$0.9 million was attributable to an increase in the utilization rate of our billable consultants. These increases were
reflective of growing demand for our services from new and existing clients. The average number of billable con-
sultants increased to 316 for the year ended December 31, 2006 from 286 for the year ended December 31,
2005. The average billing rate per hour increased to $282 for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $275 for
the year ended December 31, 2005. The utilization rate for the Financial Consulting segment increased slightly to
80.5% for the year ended December 31, 2006 from 79.9% for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Operating income

Financial Consulting segment operating income increased $11.3 million, or 24.3%, to $58.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2006 from $46.7 million in the year ended December 31, 2005. The Financial Consult-
ing segment operating margin, defined as segment operating income expressed as a percentage of segment rev-
enues, increased to 41.9% for the year ended December 31, 2006 from 39.5% for the year ended December 31,
2005 primarily due to lower general and administrative costs.

Operational Consulting

Revenues

Operational Consulting segment revenues increased $61.0 million, or 68.5%, to $150.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006 from $89.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. Revenues during 2006 in-
cluded revenues generated by Galt since April 3, 2006 and revenues generated by DRCS and Aaxis since
July 31, 2006. Revenues from time-and-expense engagements increased $44.2 million, or 70.9%, to $106.5 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $62.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. Revenues
from fixed-fee engagements increased $16.8 million, or 87.5%, to $36.0 million for the year ended December 31,
2006 from $19.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. Revenues from performance-based engage-
ments totaled $7.5 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Of the overall $61.0 million increase in revenues, $50.9 million was attributable to an increase in the number
of revenue-generating professionals and usage of independent contractors, particularly within our document re-
view group, $7.6 million was attributable to an increase in the average billing rate per hour, and $2.5 million was
attributable to an increase in the utilization rate of our billable consultants. These increases were reflective of
growing demand for our services from new and existing clients and our acquisitions. The average number of
revenue-generating professionals increased to 400 for the year ended December 31, 2006 from 278 for the year
ended December 31, 2005, as we added a significant number of billable consultants over the past year. The in-
crease in headcount was also reflective of our acquisitions. Independent contractor revenues increased
$11.6 million to $14.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $2.8 million for the year ended De-
cember 31, 2005. The average billing rate per hour for engagements where revenues are based on number of
hours worked by our billable consultants increased 8.1% to $240 for the year ended December 31, 2006 from
$222 for 2005. The billable consultant utilization rate for our Operational Consulting segment increased to 75.6%
for the year ended December 31, 2006 from 73.1% for the year ended December 31, 2005.
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Operating income

Operational Consulting segment operating income increased $20.3 million, or 64.1%, to $52.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2006 from $31.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. Segment operating
margin decreased from 35.6% for the year ended December 31, 2005 to 34.6% for the year ended December 31,
2006 primarily due to higher amortization of intangible assets relating to customer contracts and higher general
and administrative costs, partially offset by lower direct costs as a percentage of revenues.

Year ended December 31, 2005 compared to year ended December 31, 2004

Revenues

Revenues increased $47.6 million, or 29.9%, to $207.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from
$159.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2005 included
$9.8 million of revenues generated by Speltz & Weis. Revenues from time-and-expense engagements increased
$43.3 million, or 32.7%, to $175.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $132.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2004. Revenues from fixed-fee engagements increased $5.0 million, or 26.6%, to $23.8 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $18.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Revenues
from performance-based engagements decreased $0.7 million, or 8.5%, to $7.5 million for the year ended De-
cember 31, 2005 from $8.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Of the overall $47.6 million increase in revenues, $27.4 million was attributable to an increase in the number
of revenue-generating professionals and increased usage of independent contractors, $10.8 million was attribut-
able to an increase in the utilization rate of our billable consultants, and $9.4 million was attributable to an in-
crease in the average billing rate per hour. These increases were reflective of growing demand for our services
from new and existing clients. The average number of revenue-generating professionals increased to 564 for the
year ended December 31, 2005 from 485 for the year ended December 31, 2004, as we added a substantial
number of consultants in our Operational Consulting segment, as well as from our acquisition of Speltz & Weis.
Revenues generated by independent contractors increased $2.9 million, or 138.1%, to $5.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2005 from $2.1 million for the same period last year. Our billable consultant utilization rate
increased to 76.5% for the year ended December 31, 2005 from 72.2% for the same period last year. Additionally,
our average billing rate per hour increased 4.2% to $249 for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $239 for the
year ended December 31, 2004.

Total direct costs

Our direct costs increased $24.5 million, or 26.3%, to $117.8 million in the year ended December 31, 2005
from $93.2 million in the year ended December 31, 2004. This increase was primarily attributable to the increase
in the average number of revenue-generating professionals described above and their related compensation and
benefit costs, increased usage of independent contractors, as well as a $1.8 million increase in signing bonuses.
Share-based compensation expense, a component of direct costs, relating to our revenue-generating pro-
fessionals increased to $5.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $1.0 million for the same period
last year due to the granting of restricted stock awards. On October 12, 2004, immediately prior to our initial public
offering, we granted to our consultants a total of 489,500 shares of restricted common stock with an aggregate
fair market value of $7.6 million. During 2005, we granted to our consultants an additional 558,100 shares of re-
stricted common stock with an aggregate fair market value of $12.2 million. A full year of share-based compensa-
tion relating to the initial public offering grant is reflected in 2005 while only two and one-half months of expense is
reflected in 2004.

Total direct costs in the year ended December 31, 2005 included $1.3 million of intangible assets amor-
tization expense relating to purchased technology valued at $0.5 million, as well as customer contracts valued at
$1.9 million that were acquired as part of the Speltz & Weis acquisition.

Operating expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $10.2 million, or 24.9%, to $51.0 million in the year
ended December 31, 2005 from $40.9 million in the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase was due in
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part to an increase in the average number of non-revenue-generating professionals to 136 for the year ended
December 31, 2005 from 112 for the year ended December 31, 2004 and their related compensation and benefit
costs of $20.3 million in the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to $16.5 million in 2004. We added a
number of non-revenue-generating professionals during 2005 to support a public company infrastructure.

Share-based compensation expense, a component of selling, general and administrative expenses, relating
to our non-revenue-generating professionals increased $1.5 million, or 337.9%, to $1.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005 from $0.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 due to the granting of restricted
stock awards during the latter part of 2004. On October 12, 2004, immediately prior to our initial public offering,
we granted to our non-revenue-generating professionals a total of 278,200 shares of restricted common stock
with an aggregate fair market value of $4.3 million. During 2005, we granted to our non-billable professionals an
additional 179,100 shares of restricted common stock with an aggregate fair market value of $4.1 million. A full
year of share-based compensation relating to the initial public offering grant is reflected in 2005 while only two
and one-half months of expense is reflected in 2004.

The remaining increase in selling, general and administrative costs in the year ended December 31, 2005
compared to the year ended 2004 was due to increases in recruiting costs, promotion and marketing costs, rent
and other facility costs, legal fees, and new costs associated with being a public company, including Sarbanes-
Oxley compliance. Additionally, during 2005 in connection with a secondary offering that was withdrawn in No-
vember 2005 and a secondary offering that was completed in February 2006, we incurred costs totaling $0.5
million after tax, or $0.03 per diluted share. These costs were expensed in the period incurred because we did not
issue securities in either offering. These increases in selling, general and administrative expenses during 2005
were slightly offset by a $1.5 million decrease in severance charges as compared to 2004.

Depreciation expense increased $2.0 million, or 83.3%, to $4.4 million in the year ended December 31, 2005
from $2.4 million in the year ended December 31, 2004 as computers, network equipment, furniture and fixtures,
and leasehold improvements were added to support our increase in employees. In the year ended December 31,
2005, we recognized $0.9 million of intangible assets amortization. In conjunction with the Speltz & Weis acquis-
ition, we recorded $0.7 million of intangible assets representing customer relationships, which was amortized over
a weighted-average life of 15.1 months. Also included in amortization expense in the year ended December 31,
2005 is a $0.6 million charge representing the write-off of an intangible asset relating to a Speltz & Weis customer
contract, as described in “Client Bankruptcy Case” below.

Operating expenses in the year ended December 31, 2004 also included a $2.1 million pre-tax restructuring
charge associated with the closing of two small, underperforming offices in Miami, Florida and Palo Alto, Cal-
ifornia. The charge consisted of approximately $2.0 million for severance payments for the ten employees for-
merly employed at these locations, which were paid by April 30, 2004, and $0.1 million for office lease payments,
which were paid by August 31, 2004. Additionally, during 2004 we eliminated a service offering in a practice area
in the Operational Consulting segment that was not meeting our expectations and we recorded a pre-tax re-
structuring charge of $1.3 million.

Operating income

Operating income increased $11.9 million, or 60.4%, to $31.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005
from $19.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase in operating income was primarily due to
the increase in revenues and the absence of restructuring charges, partially offset by the increases in direct costs
and operating expenses as discussed above. Operating margin, which is defined as operating income expressed
as a percentage of revenues, was 15.2% in the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to 12.3% in the year
ended December 31, 2004.

Net income attributable to common stockholders

Net income attributable to common stockholders increased $7.9 million, or 78.9%, to $17.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2005 from $9.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Diluted earnings per
share increased 45.8% to $1.05 for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $0.72 for the year ended De-
cember 31, 2004. The increase was primarily attributable to an increase in net income, partially offset by an in-
crease in weighted-average shares resulting from our initial public offering.
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Segment results

Financial Consulting

Revenues

Financial Consulting segment revenues, which includes revenues generated by Speltz & Weis since the date
of the acquisition, increased $25.8 million, or 27.9%, to $118.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005
from $92.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Revenues from time-and-expense engagements in-
creased $28.9 million, or 34.1%, to $113.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $84.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2004. Revenues from fixed-fee engagements decreased $1.4 million, or 23.3%, to
$4.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $6.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2004.
Revenues from performance-based engagements for the year ended December 31, 2005 was immaterial, com-
pared to $1.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, which primarily consisted of fees recognized relating
to the successful completion of a series of asset sales transactions managed on behalf of a single client over a
two-year period.

Of the overall $25.8 million increase in revenues, $10.7 million was attributable to an increase in the uti-
lization rate of our billable consultants, $7.9 million was attributable to an increase in the average billing rate per
hour, and $7.2 million was attributable to an increase in the number of revenue-generating professionals and an
increase in the usage of independent contractors. These increases were reflective of growing demand for our
services from new and existing clients. The utilization rate for our Financial Consulting segment increased to
79.9% for the year ended December 31, 2005 from 71.6% for the year ended December 31, 2004. The average
billing rate per hour increased 7.0% to $275 for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $257 for the year ended
December 31, 2004. Independent contractor revenues increased to $2.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2005 from $0.2 million for 2004.

Operating income

Financial Consulting segment operating income increased $12.3 million, or 35.8%, to $46.7 million in the year
ended December 31, 2005 from $34.4 million in the year ended December 31, 2004. Segment operating margin,
defined as segment operating income expressed as a percentage of segment revenues, increased to 39.5% in
the year ended December 31, 2005 from 37.2% in the year ended December 31, 2004.

Operational Consulting

Revenues

Operational Consulting segment revenues increased $21.8 million, or 32.5%, to $89.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2005 from $67.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Revenues from
time-and-expense engagements increased $14.4 million, or 30.1%, to $62.3 million for the year ended De-
cember 31, 2005 from $47.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Revenues from fixed-fee engage-
ments increased $6.4 million, or 50.0%, to $19.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $12.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2004. Revenues from performance-based engagements increased $1.0 million,
or 15.4%, to $7.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $6.5 million for the year ended De-
cember 31, 2004.

Of the overall $21.8 million increase in revenues, $20.2 million was attributable to an increase in the number
of revenue-generating professionals and increased usage of independent contractors, $1.5 million was attribut-
able to an increase in the average billing rate per hour, and $0.1 million was attributable to an increase in the uti-
lization rate of our billable consultants. These increases were reflective of growing demand for our services from
new and existing clients. The average number of revenue-generating professionals increased to 278 for the year
ended December 31, 2005 from 206 for the year ended December 31, 2004, as we added a significant number of
consultants over the past year. Independent contractor revenues increased $1.0 million, or 55.6%, to $2.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $1.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The average bill-
ing rate per hour increased 1.8% to $222 for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $218 for 2004. The billable
consultant utilization rate for our Operational Consulting segment remained fairly steady at 73.1% for the year
ended December 31, 2005 compared to 73.0% for the year ended December 31, 2004.
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Operating income

Operational Consulting segment operating income increased $8.7 million, or 37.7%, to $31.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2005 from $23.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Segment operating
margin increased to 35.6% in the year ended December 31, 2005 from 34.3% in 2004.

Client Bankruptcy Case

On July 5, 2005, one of our clients filed for bankruptcy. Subsequent to the filing of the bankruptcy, we con-
tinued to provide interim management, revenue cycle management and strategic sourcing services under an en-
gagement contract with the client. In addition, we continued to provide services pursuant to a separate
engagement contract with the client’s bankruptcy counsel to assist with the bankruptcy process.

On October 21, 2005, the client filed an application with the Bankruptcy Court to authorize our retention dur-
ing the bankruptcy process. In connection with the application, new financial terms and conditions of the engage-
ment contracts, including billing terms and rates for our services, were negotiated and agreed to with the client
and certain other interested parties retroactive to July 5, 2005 pursuant to a new engagement contract that super-
seded the original contracts. At a hearing held on October 28, 2005, the Bankruptcy Court approved on an interim
basis our retention based on these agreed upon terms. On December 14, 2005, the Bankruptcy Court approved
our retention on a permanent basis. There could be challenges during the bankruptcy process to the fees earned
by us and Speltz & Weis, as well as challenges during and after the bankruptcy process to fees earned by us and
Speltz & Weis prior to the bankruptcy filing on July 5, 2005, as several parties to the bankruptcy proceeding have
reserved their right to challenge those fees. Although no such claim has been brought to date, if a claim is brought
in the future, the claim could have a material adverse impact on our financial position, results of operations, earn-
ings per share or cash flows in the period in which such claim were resolved.

The change in financial terms approved by the Bankruptcy Court on December 14, 2005 resulted in
$2.2 million and $2.1 million less revenues than the amounts provided for under the original terms of the interim
management contract for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The results for the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 also reflect legal and related costs totaling approximately $0.6 million and
$0.9 million, respectively, associated with the bankruptcy process.

Based on the projected cash flows under the new financial terms and conditions approved by the Bankruptcy
Court, the intangible value that we assigned to the interim management contract in connection with the Speltz &
Weis acquisition decreased. Accordingly, we wrote off the remaining carrying value of this contract in the third
quarter of 2005. This charge, totaling $0.6 million, is included in depreciation and amortization for the year ended
December 31, 2005 and is attributable to the Financial Consulting segment.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our primary sources of liquidity are cash flows from operations and debt capacity available under our credit
facility. Cash and cash equivalents decreased $15.2 million, from $31.8 million at December 31, 2005, to
$16.6 million at December 31, 2006 primarily due to cash paid for our acquisitions and purchases of property and
equipment, partially offset by an increase in cash from operations. Cash and cash equivalents increased
$3.7 million, from $28.1 million at December 31, 2004, to $31.8 million at December 31, 2005 primarily due to in-
creased cash from operations generated by growth in our business, partially offset by cash paid for our acquisition
of Speltz & Weis.

Operating activities

Cash flows generated by operating activities totaled $42.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 and
$26.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. Our operating assets and liabilities consist primarily of
receivables from billed and unbilled services, accounts payable and accrued expenses, and accrued payroll and
related benefits. The volume of billings and timing of collections and payments affect these account balances. The
increase in cash provided by operations for the year ended December 31, 2006 was primarily attributable to an
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increase in revenues and improved financial results due to the general growth of our business, which was partially
offset by growth in our accrued liabilities, as well as an increase in our income tax receivable. Accrued payroll and
related benefits at December 31, 2006 increased by $9.6 million compared to December 31, 2005, which is pri-
marily related to accrued bonuses that we will pay out in the first quarter of 2007. Accrued bonuses at De-
cember 31, 2006 were higher than the prior year due to an increase in employees and improved financial results.

Cash flows generated by operating activities totaled $26.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 and
$12.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase in cash provided by operations for the year
ended December 31, 2005 was primarily attributable to an increase in revenues and improved financial results
due to the general growth of our business, which was partially offset by growth in our receivables from clients and
unbilled services. Receivables from clients and unbilled services increased $14.8 million during 2005, as com-
pared to $11.4 million during 2004. This increase in client balances was substantially offset by a $11.6 million in-
crease in accrued payroll and related benefits, which is primarily related to accrued bonuses that we paid out in
the first quarter of 2006.

Investing activities

Cash used in investing activities was $69.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to
$21.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. During 2006, we used $51.1 million for business acquis-
itions. Use of cash in both periods also pertained to the purchase of computer hardware and software, furniture
and fixtures and leasehold improvements needed to meet the ongoing needs relating to the hiring of additional
employees and the expansion of office space. We estimate that our cash utilized for capital expenditures in 2007
will be approximately $20 million primarily for leasehold improvements and computer equipment.

Cash used in investing activities was $21.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to
$6.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. During 2005, we used $12.5 million to acquire Speltz & Weis,
net of cash acquired of $1.8 million. Use of cash in both periods also pertained to the purchase of computer
hardware and software, furniture and fixtures and leasehold improvements needed to meet the ongoing needs
relating to the hiring of additional employees and the expansion of office space.

Financing activities

Cash provided by financing activities in 2006 was $11.4 million compared to cash used in financing activities
of $1.2 million in 2005. During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 upon the vesting of restricted stock
awards, we redeemed 99,471 and 56,145, respectively, shares of our common stock at an average stock price of
$34.78 and $24.16, respectively, to satisfy employee tax withholding requirements. Cash provided by financing
activities was $18.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 due to cash proceeds generated by our initial
public offering, of which we used a portion to redeem the outstanding 8% preferred stock and repay the 8% prom-
issory notes as discussed below. On June 29, 2004, we paid a special dividend to our stockholders. The special
dividend was declared on May 12, 2004 for each outstanding share of common stock and 8% preferred stock
payable to holders of record on May 25, 2004. The 8% preferred stock participated on an as-converted basis. The
aggregate amount of the dividend was $1.3 million, or $0.09 per share of common stock and $9.64 per share of
8% preferred stock. The payment of the special dividend was funded by our available cash balance and by
borrowing availability under our credit agreement described below, which we repaid the following day.

Upon the consummation of our initial public offering on October 18, 2004, we used $15.1 million of our net
proceeds from the initial public offering to redeem the outstanding 8% preferred stock, plus cumulative dividends
and a liquidation participation amount totaling $2.6 million. Also on October 18, 2004, we used $10.7 million of our
net proceeds from the initial public offering to repay the 8% promissory notes, including accrued and unpaid inter-
est of $0.6 million.

We had a bank credit agreement that originally expired on February 10, 2006. On January 17, 2006, we ex-
tended the credit agreement for ninety days to May 10, 2006. On March 28, 2006, we further extended the credit
agreement for another sixty days to July 10, 2006, and also amended certain terms of the original agreement.
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On June 7, 2006, we entered into a new credit agreement with various financial institutions that replaced the
aforementioned credit agreement. Under the terms of this new unsecured revolving credit facility, we could have
borrowed up to $75.0 million. On December 29, 2006, we amended this credit agreement so that the maximum
amount of principal that may be borrowed is increased to $130.0 million. Fees and interest on borrowings vary
based on total debt to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) ratio as set forth
in the credit agreement and will be based on a spread over LIBOR or a spread over or under the base rate, which
is the greater of the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5% or the Prime Rate, as selected by the Company. All out-
standing principal is due upon expiration of the credit agreement on May 31, 2011. The credit agreement includes
financial covenants that require the maintenance of certain interest coverage ratio, total debt to EBITDA ratio and
net worth levels. In addition, certain acquisitions and similar transactions will need to be approved by the lenders.

Throughout 2006, we borrowed against our credit facility to fund our operations and for business acquisitions.
During the year ended December 31, 2006, the average daily outstanding balance under our credit facility was
$11.9 million. At December 31, 2006, borrowings outstanding totaled $8.0 million and bear interest at 5.9%. We
had no borrowings outstanding as of December 31, 2005. We were in compliance with our debt covenants as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005. Subsequent to December 31, 2006, we borrowed against our credit facility to fund
our acquisitions of Wellspring and Glass, as well as to fund our operations. As of February 15, 2006, borrowings
outstanding totaled $82.5 million. Additionally, we anticipate we will further borrow against our credit facility in the
latter half of February 2007 to fund our bonus payments.

Future needs

Our primary financing need has been to fund our growth. Our growth strategy includes hiring additional
revenue-generating professionals and expanding our service offerings through existing professionals, new hires
or acquisitions of new businesses. We intend to fund such growth over the next twelve months with funds gen-
erated from operations and borrowings under our credit agreement. Because we expect that our future annual
growth rate in revenues and related percentage increases in working capital balances will moderate, we believe
cash generated from operations, supplemented as necessary by borrowings under our credit facility, will be ad-
equate to fund this growth. Our ability to secure short-term and long-term financing in the future will depend on
several factors, including our future profitability, the quality of our accounts receivable and unbilled services, our
relative levels of debt and equity and the overall condition of the credit markets.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following table represents our obligations and commitments to make future payments under contracts,
such as lease agreements, and under contingent commitments as of December 31, 2006 (in thousands).

Less than
1 year

1-3
years

4-5
years

After 5
years Total

Notes payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ — $ — $ 2,000
Interest on notes payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 80 40 — — 120
Capital lease obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 282 — — — 282
Operating lease obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,761 32,035 16,432 20,216 80,444
Additional purchase price . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,400 — — — 3,400
Purchase obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,573 110 — — 1,683

Total contractual obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $18,096 $33,185 $16,432 $20,216 $87,929

We lease our facilities and certain equipment under operating lease arrangements expiring on various dates
through 2016, with various renewal options. We lease office facilities under noncancelable operating leases that
include fixed or minimum payments plus, in some cases, scheduled base rent increases over the term of the
lease. Certain leases provide for monthly payments of real estate taxes, insurance and other operating expense
applicable to the property. Some of the leases contain provisions whereby the future rental payments may be ad-
justed for increases in operating expense above the specified amount.
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In connection with our business acquisitions, we may be required to pay additional purchase consideration to
the sellers if specific performance targets are met over a number of years as specified in the related purchase
agreements. There is no limitation to the maximum amount of additional purchase consideration and such amount
is not determinable at this time, but the aggregate amount that potentially may be paid could be significant. We
would expect, however, to fund such payments using cash flows generated from our operations.

Purchase obligations include sponsorships, subscriptions to research tools and other commitments to pur-
chase services where we cannot cancel or would be required to pay a termination fee in the event of cancellation.

OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We have not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Financial Accounting Standards
Board Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109.” FIN No. 48 provides a comprehensive model for the recognition, measurement, and dis-
closure in the financial statements of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return. We
adopted FIN No. 48 effective beginning on January 1, 2007. The adoption of this interpretation did not have a
cumulative material impact on our financial statements. We are currently evaluating the impact this interpretation
may have on our future financial position, results of operations, earnings per share and cash flows.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued SAB No. 108, “Considering the Effects
of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements.” SAB
No. 108 was issued to address diversity in practice in quantifying financial statement misstatements. Current
practice allows for the evaluation of materiality on the basis of either (1) the error quantified as the amount by
which the current year income statement was misstated (“rollover method”) or (2) the cumulative error quantified
as the cumulative amount by which the current year balance sheet was misstated (“iron curtain method”). The
guidance provided in SAB 108 requires both methods to be used in evaluating materiality (“dual approach”). SAB
No. 108 permits companies to initially apply its provisions either by (1) restating prior financial statements as if the
dual approach had always been used or (2) recording the cumulative effect of initially applying the “dual ap-
proach” as adjustments to the carrying values of assets and liabilities as of January 1, 2006 with an offsetting ad-
justment recorded to the opening balance of retained earnings. There were no matters warranting our
consideration under the provisions of SAB No. 108 and, therefore, it did not have an impact on our financial posi-
tion, results of operations, earnings per share or cash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value under generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”),
and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 does not require any new fair value
measurements in financial statements, but standardizes its definition and guidance in GAAP. Thus, for some enti-
ties, the application of this statement may change current practice. SFAS No. 157 will be effective for us begin-
ning on January 1, 2008. We are currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of this statement may have on
our financial position, results of operations, earnings per share and cash flows.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

As previously discussed, in January 2007 we acquired Wellspring pursuant to a stock purchase agreement.
Under the terms of the agreement, we acquired Wellspring for a purchase price at closing of approximately
$65 million in cash, subject to a working capital adjustment. As described in detail in the agreement, additional
purchase consideration is payable in cash if specific performance targets are met over the next five years.

Also in January 2007, we acquired Glass. Pursuant to a stock purchase agreement and joinder agreements
between certain Glass shareholders and Huron Consulting Group Holdings LLC, we acquired Glass for an ag-
gregate purchase price at closing of approximately $30 million in cash, subject to a working capital adjustment. As
described in detail in the agreements, additional purchase consideration is payable in cash if specific performance
targets are met over the next four years. Also, additional payments may be made based on the amount of rev-
enues we receive from referrals made by certain employees of Glass over the next four years.
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In response to our continued growth and acquisitions of complementary businesses, effective January 1,
2007 we have reorganized our practice areas and service lines to better align ourselves to meet market demands
and serve our clients. Under our new organizational structure, we will have four operating segments as follows:

• Legal Financial Consulting. This segment assists corporations with complex accounting and financial
reporting matters, financial analysis in business disputes and litigation, as well as valuation analysis re-
lated to business acquisitions. This segment is comprised of certified public accountants, economists, cer-
tified fraud examiners, chartered financial analysts and valuation experts that serve attorneys and
corporations as expert witnesses and consultants in connection with business disputes, as well as in
regulatory or internal investigations.

• Legal Operational Consulting. This segment provides guidance and business services to corporate law
departments, law firms and government agencies by helping to reduce legal spending, enhance client
service delivery and increase operational effectiveness. These services include digital evidence and dis-
covery services, document review, law firm management services, records management, and strategy
and operational improvements.

• Health and Education Consulting. This segment provides consulting services to hospitals, health sys-
tems, physicians, managed care organizations, academic medical centers, colleges, universities, and
pharmaceutical and medical device manufacturers. This segment’s professionals help healthcare and
higher education clients effectively address their financial, operational and organizational, research enter-
prise, strategic, technology and compliance requirements.

• Corporate Consulting. This segment leads clients through various stages of transformation that result in
measurable and sustainable performance improvement. This segment works with clients to solve complex
business problems and implements strategies and solutions to effectively address and manage stagnant
or declining stock price, acquisitions and divestitures, process inefficiency, third party contracting diffi-
culties, lack of or misaligned performance measurements, margin and cost pressures, performance is-
sues, bank defaults, covenant violations and liquidity issues.

We will begin to report our financial results under the new operating segments beginning on January 1, 2007.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

We are exposed to market risks related to interest rates and changes in the market value of our investments.
We do not enter into interest rate caps or collars or other hedging instruments.

Our exposure to changes in interest rates is limited to borrowings under our bank credit agreement, which
has variable interest rates tied to the LIBOR, Federal Funds rate or prime rate. At December 31, 2006 we had
borrowings outstanding totaling $8.0 million that bear interest at 5.9%. A one percent change in this interest rate
would not have a material effect on our financial position or operating results.

At December 31, 2006, we had notes payable totaling $2.0 million, of which $1.0 million is payable on May 8,
2007 and another $1.0 million is payable on May 8, 2008. We are not exposed to significant interest rate risks in
respect to these notes as they bear a fixed interest rate at 4% per annum.

From time to time, we invest excess cash in marketable securities. These investments principally consist of
overnight sweep accounts and short-term commercial paper. Due to the short maturity of our investments and
debt obligations, we have concluded that we do not have material market risk exposure.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

The Company’s consolidated financial statements and supplementary data begin on page F-1 of this annual
report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL

DISCLOSURE.

None.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) as of
December 31, 2006. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have con-
cluded that, as of December 31, 2006, our disclosure controls and procedures are effective in recording, process-
ing, summarizing and reporting, on a timely basis, information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file
or submit under the Exchange Act. Such information is accumulated and communicated to management as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial re-
porting for the Company. Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures
that:

(i) Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the trans-
actions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(ii) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and ex-
penditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and direc-
tors of the Company; and

(iii) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Due to its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstate-
ments. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we con-
ducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on the
framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, we have concluded that the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2006.

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2006 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public
accounting firm, as stated in their report appearing on page F-2 of this annual report on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2006 that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.

41



PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

Directors, Executive Officers, Promoters and Control Persons

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from portions of our definitive proxy state-
ment for our annual meeting of stockholders to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A by April 30, 2007
(the “Proxy Statement”) under “Nominees to Board of Directors,” “Directors Not Standing For Election” and
“Executive Officers.”

Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from a portion of the Proxy Statement un-
der “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.”

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (the “Code”) that is applicable to all of our employ-
ees, officers and directors. The Code is available on our website at www.huronconsultinggroup.com. If we make
any amendments to or grant any waivers from the Code which are required to be disclosed pursuant to the Secu-
rities Exchange Act of 1934, we will make such disclosures on our website.

Corporate Governance

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from a portion of the Proxy Statement un-
der “Board Meetings and Committees.”

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from a portion of the Proxy Statement un-
der “Executive Compensation.”

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from a portion of the Proxy Statement un-
der “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation.”

Compensation Committee Report

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from a portion of the Proxy Statement un-
der “Report of the Compensation Committee on Executive Compensation.”
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND

RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table summarizes information as of December 31, 2006 with respect to equity compensation
plans approved by shareholders. We do not have equity compensation plans that have not been approved by
shareholders.

Plan Category

Number of Shares to
be Issued Upon

Exercise of
Outstanding Options

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price of

Outstanding Options

Number of Shares
Remaining Available
for Future Issuance
(excluding shares in

1st column)

Equity compensation plans approved by
shareholders (1):

2002 Equity Incentive Plan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 155,818 $ 0.02 — (2)
2002 Equity Incentive Plan (California) . . . . . . . . 15,655 $ 1.06 — (2)
2003 Equity Incentive Plan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 529,951 $ 1.15 — (2)
2004 Omnibus Stock Plan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 102,581 $17.22 2,305,605

Equity compensation plans not approved by
shareholders: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . N/A N/A N/A

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 804,005 $ 2.98 2,305,605

(1) Our equity compensation plans were approved by the existing shareholders prior to our initial public offering.
At our annual meeting of stockholders on May 2, 2006 our stockholders approved an amendment to our 2004
Omnibus Stock Plan to increase the number of shares available for issuance by 2,100,000 shares.

(2) Prior to the completion of our initial public offering, we established the 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan. We termi-
nated the 2002 Equity Incentive Plan, 2002 Equity Incentive Plan (California) and 2003 Equity Incentive Plan
with respect to future awards and no further awards will be granted under these plans.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The other information required by this item is incorporated by reference from a portion of the Proxy Statement
under “Stock Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.”

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from a portion of the Proxy Statement un-
der “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.”

Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from a portion of the Proxy Statement un-
der “Nominees to Board of Directors,” “Directors Not Standing For Election,” and “Board Meetings and
Committees.”

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from a portion of the Proxy Statement un-
der “Audit and Non-Audit Fees.”
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

(a) Documents filed as part of this annual report on Form 10-K.

1. Financial Statements – Our independent registered public accounting firm’s report and our con-
solidated financial statements are listed below and begin on page F-1 of this annual report on Form 10-K.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Consolidated Statements of Income
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedules – The financial statement schedules required by this item are in-
cluded in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes.

3. Exhibit Index

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

Filed
here-
with Form

Period
Ending Exhibit

Filing
Date

2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement by and between
MSGalt & Company, LLC, Huron Consulting
Services LLC, M. Scott Gillis, Joseph R. Shalleck
and Leroy J. Mergy, dated as of March 31, 2006.

8-K 2.1 4/6/06

2.2 Membership Interest Purchase and Sale
Agreement by and among Huron Consulting Group
Holdings LLC, Document Review Consulting
Services LLC and Robert Rowe, dated as of July
31, 2006.

8-K 2.1 8/3/06

2.3 Stock Purchase Agreement by and among
Wellspring Partners LTD, the Shareholders of
Wellspring Partners LTD and Huron Consulting
Group Holdings LLC, dated as of December 29,
2006.

8-K 2.1 1/8/07

2.4 Stock Purchase Agreement by and among Glass &
Associates, Inc., the Shareholders of Glass &
Associates, Inc. and Huron Consulting Group
Holdings LLC and Huron Consulting Group Inc.,
dated as of January 2, 2007.

8-K 2.2 1/8/07

2.5 Joinder Agreement by and between John DiDonato
and Huron Consulting Group Holdings LLC.

8-K 2.3 1/8/07

2.6 Joinder Agreement by and between Anthony Wolf
and Huron Consulting Group Holdings LLC.

8-K 2.4 1/8/07

2.7 Joinder Agreement by and between Shaun Martin
and Huron Consulting Group Holdings LLC.

8-K 2.5 1/8/07

2.8 Joinder Agreement by and between Sanford Edlein
and Huron Consulting Group Holdings LLC.

8-K 2.6 1/8/07

2.9 Joinder Agreement by and between Dalton Edgecomb
and Huron Consulting Group Holdings LLC.

8-K 2.7 1/8/07
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Filed Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

here-
with Form

Period
Ending Exhibit

Filing
Date

3.1 Third Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation of Huron Consulting Group Inc.

10-K 12/31/04 3.1 2/16/05

3.2 Bylaws of Huron Consulting Group Inc. S-1
(File No.

333-115434)

3.2 10/5/04

4.1 Specimen Stock Certificate. S-1
(File No.

333-115434)

4.1 10/5/04

10.1 Office Lease, dated December 2003, between
Union Tower, LLC and Huron Consulting Services
LLC (formerly known as Huron Consulting Group
LLC).

S-1
(File No.

333-115434)

10.1 10/5/04

10.2 Senior Management Agreement, effective as of
May 13, 2002, between Huron Consulting Services
LLC (formerly known as Huron Consulting Group
LLC) and Gary E. Holdren.

S-1
(File No.

333-115434)

10.2 10/5/04

10.3 First Amendment to Senior Management
Agreement between Huron Consulting Services
LLC (formerly known as Huron Consulting Group
LLC) and Gary E. Holdren.

S-1
(File No.

333-115434)

10.3 10/5/04

10.4 Second Amendment to Senior Management
Agreement between Huron Consulting Services
LLC (formerly known as Huron Consulting Group
LLC) and Gary E. Holdren.

S-1
(File No.

333-115434)

10.4 10/5/04

10.5 Restricted Shares Award Agreement, dated
December 10, 2002, between Huron Consulting
Group Inc., Huron Consulting Services LLC
(formerly known as Huron Consulting Group LLC),
HCG Holdings LLC and Gary E. Holdren.

S-1
(File No.

333-115434)

10.5 10/5/04

10.6 Restricted Shares Award Agreement, dated
December 31, 2002, between Huron Consulting
Group Inc. and Gary E. Holdren.

S-1
(File No.

333-115434)

10.6 10/5/04

10.7 Senior Management Agreement, effective as of
August 12, 2002, between Huron Consulting
Services LLC (formerly known as Huron Consulting
Group LLC) and George E. Massaro.

S-1
(File No.

333-115434)

10.7 10/5/04

10.8 First Amendment to Senior Management
Agreement between Huron Consulting Services
LLC (formerly known as Huron Consulting Group
LLC) and George E. Massaro.

S-1
(File No.

333-115434)

10.7 10/5/04

10.9 Senior Management Agreement, effective as of
May 15, 2002, between Huron Consulting Services
LLC (formerly known as Huron Consulting Group
LLC) and Daniel Broadhurst.

S-1
(File No.

333-115434)

10.9 10/5/04

45



Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

Filed
here-
with Form

Period
Ending Exhibit

Filing
Date

10.10 First Amendment to Senior Management
Agreement between Huron Consulting Services
LLC (formerly known as Huron Consulting Group
LLC) and Daniel Broadhurst.

S-1
(File No.

333-115434)

10.9 10/5/04

10.11 Senior Management Agreement, effective as of
May 1, 2002, between Huron Consulting Services
LLC (formerly known as Huron Consulting Group
LLC) and Mary Sawall.

S-1
(File No.

333-115434)

10.11 10/5/04

10.12 First Amendment to Senior Management
Agreement between Huron Consulting Services
LLC (formerly known as Huron Consulting Group
LLC) and Mary Sawall.

S-1
(File No.

333-115434)

10.12 10/5/04

10.13 Huron Consulting Group Inc. 2002 Equity Incentive
Plan and form of option agreement thereunder.

S-1
(File No.

333-115434)

10.13 10/5/04

10.14 Amendment No. 1 to Huron Consulting Group Inc.
2002 Equity Incentive Plan.

S-1
(File No.

333-115434)

10.14 10/5/04

10.15 Amended and Restated Huron Consulting Group
Inc. 2002 Equity Incentive Plan (California) and
form of option agreement thereunder.

S-1
(File No.

333-115434)

10.15 10/5/04

10.16 Huron Consulting Group Inc. 2003 Equity Incentive
Plan and form of option agreement thereunder.

S-1
(File No.

333-115434)

10.16 10/5/04

10.17 Huron Consulting Group Inc. 2004 Omnibus Stock
Plan and form of option and restricted stock
agreement thereunder.

S-1
(File No.

333-115434)

10.17 10/5/04

10.18 Senior Management Agreement, effective as of
November 25, 2002, between Huron Consulting
Services LLC (formerly known as Huron Consulting
Group LLC) and Gary L. Burge.

10-K 12/31/04 10.22 2/16/05

10.19 First Amendment to Senior Management
Agreement between Huron Consulting Services
LLC (formerly known as Huron Consulting Group
LLC) and Gary L. Burge.

10-K 12/31/04 10.23 2/16/05

10.20 Executive Officers’ Compensation for 2006 and
2007 Summary Sheet.

X

10.21 Directors’ Compensation for 2006 and 2007
Summary Sheet.

X

10.22 Senior Management Change of Control Agreement,
effective as of November 2, 2004, between Huron
Consulting Services LLC, Huron Consulting Group
Inc. and Natalia Delgado.

S-1
(File No.

333-115434)

10.30 10/5/04
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Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

Filed
here-
with Form

Period
Ending Exhibit

Filing
Date

10.23 Second Amendment to Senior Management
Agreement between Huron Consulting Services
LLC (formerly known as Huron Consulting Group
LLC) and George E. Massaro.

S-1
(File No.

333-130951)

10.29 2/2/06

10.24 Credit Agreement Dated as of June 7, 2006,
among Huron Consulting Group Inc., as the
Company, the Various Financial Institutions Party
Hereto, as Lenders, LaSalle Bank National
Association, as Administrative Agent, LaSalle Bank
National Association, as Arranger, and JPMorgan
Chase Bank National Association, as Syndication
Agent.

8-K 10.1 6/12/06

10.25 Guaranty Agreement dated as of June 7, 2006
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Huron Consulting Group Inc.:

We have completed integrated audits of Huron Consulting Group Inc.’s 2006 and 2005 consolidated financial
statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, and an audit of its 2004
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Huron Consulting Group Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2006
and 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2006 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those stan-
dards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which
it accounts for share-based compensation in 2006.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A, that the Company maintained effective internal control over finan-
cial reporting as of December 31, 2006 based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all
material respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’s management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on management’s assessment and on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our
audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Account-
ing Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of in-
ternal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary
in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accord-
ance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide rea-
sonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstate-
ments. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chicago, IL
February 22, 2007
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HURON CONSULTING GROUP INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

December 31,
2006

December 31,
2005

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 16,572 $ 31,820
Receivables from clients, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41,848 29,164
Unbilled services, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22,627 18,187
Income tax receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,637 232
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,290 12,553
Other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,435 5,799

Total current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 106,409 97,755
Property and equipment, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27,742 13,162
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,433 2,154
Deposits and other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,294 1,147
Intangible assets, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,238 844
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 53,328 14,637

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $199,444 $129,699

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,684 $ 2,671
Accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,712 4,357
Accrued payroll and related benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41,649 32,073
Income tax payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 491
Deferred revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,035 4,609
Borrowings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,000 —
Current portion of notes payable and capital lease obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,282 1,282

Total current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 70,362 45,483
Non-current liabilities:

Deferred compensation and other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,169 274
Notes payable and capital lease obligations, net of current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,000 2,127
Deferred lease incentives . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10,333 6,283

Total non-current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,502 8,684
Commitments and contingencies . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — —
Stockholders’ equity

Common stock; $0.01 par value; 500,000,000 shares authorized; 18,470,623 and
17,397,312 shares issued at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively . . . . . . . . . 178 174

Treasury stock, at cost, 398,783 and 148,933 shares at December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (9,396) (3,061)

Additional paid-in capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 79,598 58,908
Retained earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 46,200 19,511

Total stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 116,580 75,532

Total liabilities and stockholders equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $199,444 $129,699

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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HURON CONSULTING GROUP INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Revenues and reimbursable expenses:

Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $288,588 $207,213 $159,550
Reimbursable expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33,330 18,749 14,361

Total revenues and reimbursable expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 321,918 225,962 173,911
Direct costs and reimbursable expenses (exclusive of depreciation and

amortization shown in operating expenses):

Direct costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 163,569 117,768 93,248
Intangible assets amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,207 1,314 —
Reimbursable expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33,506 18,982 14,281

Total direct costs and reimbursable expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 199,282 138,064 107,529

Operating expenses:

Selling, general and administrative . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 65,926 51,035 40,858
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,201 5,282 2,365
Restructuring charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 3,475

Total operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 75,127 56,317 46,698

Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 47,509 31,581 19,684
Other income (expense):

Interest income (expense), net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (703) 472 (692)
Other income (expense) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 (37) —

Total other income (expense) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (687) 435 (692)

Income before provision for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 46,822 32,016 18,992
Provision for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,133 14,247 8,128

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26,689 17,769 10,864
Accrued dividends on 8% preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 931

Net income attributable to common stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 26,689 $ 17,769 $ 9,933

Net income attributable to common stockholders per share*:
Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.63 $ 1.13 $ 0.77
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.54 $ 1.05 $ 0.72

Weighted average shares used in calculating net income attributable to
common stockholders per share*:

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,359 15,741 12,820
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17,317 16,858 13,765

* Adjusted to reflect a 1 for 2.3 reverse stock split effected on October 5, 2004.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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HURON CONSULTING GROUP INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 26,689 $ 17,769 $ 10,864
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,408 6,596 2,365
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6,463) (5,338) (5,090)
Share-based compensation expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,839 6,943 1,412
Tax benefit from share-based compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 2,762 980
Allowances for doubtful accounts and unbilled services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 569 279 1,873
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 194 39 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of businesses acquired:

Increase in receivables from clients . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6,962) (6,322) (7,943)
Increase in unbilled services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4,429) (8,480) (3,446)
(Increase) decrease in income tax receivable / payable, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3,896) (197) 2,741
Increase in other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,229) (2,903) (2,096)
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,821 2,095 3,901
Increase in accrued payroll and related benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,575 11,579 6,580
(Decrease) increase in deferred revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (574) 1,172 330

Net cash provided by operating activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 42,542 25,994 12,471

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (18,110) (8,166) (6,943)
Purchases of a businesses, net of cash acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (51,073) (12,450) —
Acquisition of intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (475) —

Net cash used in investing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (69,183) (21,091) (6,943)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock options . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 388 157 53
Shares redeemed for employee tax withholdings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3,460) (1,357) —
Tax benefit from share-based compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,592 — —
Proceeds from borrowings under line of credit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 114,700 — 37,200
Repayments on line of credit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (106,700) — (37,200)
Principal payments of notes payable and capital lease obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,127)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock (previously named Class A common

stock), net of offering costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 44,729
Refund of initial public offering costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 25 —
Redemption of notes issued to HCG Holdings LLC . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (10,076)
Redemption of 8% preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (12,500)
Payment of accrued dividends on 8% preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (2,643)
Dividends paid on common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (1,250)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,393 (1,175) 18,313

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (15,248) 3,728 23,841
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31,820 28,092 4,251

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 16,572 $ 31,820 $ 28,092

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Non-cash investing and financing activities:

Issuance of notes payable for purchase of a business . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ 3,000 $ —
Capitalized lease obligation incurred . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ 409 $ —
Accrued dividends on 8% preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — — $ 931

Cash paid during the year for:
Cash paid for interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,071 $ 80 $ 1,647
Cash paid for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 23,038 $ 17,088 $ 9,497

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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HURON CONSULTING GROUP INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Tabular amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

1. Description of Business

Huron Consulting Group Inc. was formed on March 19, 2002. Huron Consulting Group Inc., together with its
wholly-owned operating subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”), is an independent provider of financial and
operational consulting services, whose clients include Fortune 500 companies, medium-sized businesses, leading
academic institutions, healthcare organizations and the law firms that represent these various organizations.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect the results of operations and cash flows for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Huron Consulting Group Inc. and its wholly
owned subsidiaries. All material intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts that
are reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying disclosures. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenues in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 101, “Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statements,” as amended by SAB No. 104, “Revenue Recognition.” Revenue is recog-
nized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the related services are provided, the price is fixed or
determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. These services are primarily rendered under arrangements
that require the client to pay based on the hours incurred by our revenue-generating professionals, the number of
pages reviewed by our document review group, or the amount of data processed by our electronic data discovery
group at agreed-upon rates and recognized as services are provided. Revenues related to fixed-fee engagements
are recognized based on estimates of work completed versus the total services to be provided under the
engagement. Losses, if any, on fixed-fee engagements are recognized in the period in which the loss first be-
comes probable and reasonably estimable. The Company also earns revenues on a performance-based fee basis
and recognizes such revenues when all performance criteria are met. The Company also has contracts with cli-
ents to deliver multiple services that are covered under both individual and separate engagement letters. These
arrangements allow for the Company’s services to be valued and accounted for on a separate basis. Direct costs
incurred on engagements, including performance-based fee engagements, are expensed in the period incurred.

Provisions are recorded for the estimated realization adjustments on all engagements, including engage-
ments for which fees are subject to review by the bankruptcy courts. Expense reimbursements that are billable to
clients are included in total revenues and reimbursable expenses, and typically an equivalent amount of re-
imbursable expenses are included in total direct costs and reimbursable expenses. Reimbursable expenses re-
lated to time-and-expense and fixed-fee engagements are recognized as revenue in the period in which the
expense is incurred. Reimbursable expenses subject to performance-based criteria are recognized as revenue
when all performance criteria are met. Subcontractors that are billed to clients at cost are also included in re-
imbursable expenses.
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HURON CONSULTING GROUP INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(Tabular amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

Differences between the timing of billings and the recognition of revenue are recognized as either unbilled
services or deferred revenue in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Revenues recognized for serv-
ices performed but not yet billed to clients are recorded as unbilled services. Client prepayments and retainers are
classified as deferred (i.e., unearned) revenue and recognized over future periods as earned in accordance with
the applicable engagement agreement.

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts and Unbilled Services

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts and for services performed but not yet billed for
estimated losses based on several factors, including the estimated cash realization from amounts due from cli-
ents, an assessment of a client’s ability to make required payments, and the historical percentages of fee adjust-
ments and write-offs by practice group. The allowances are assessed by management on a regular basis.

The provision for doubtful accounts and unbilled services is recorded as a reduction in revenue to the extent
the provision relates to fee adjustments and other discretionary pricing adjustments. To the extent the provision
relates to a client’s inability to make required payments on accounts receivables, the provision is recorded in
operating expenses.

Direct Costs and Reimbursable Expenses

Direct costs and reimbursable expenses consists primarily of revenue-generating employee compensation
and their related benefit and share-based compensation costs, the cost of outside consultants or subcontractors
assigned to revenue generating activities and direct expenses to be reimbursed by clients.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments, including overnight investments and commercial paper,
with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

To the extent receivables from clients become delinquent, collection activities commence. No single client
balance is considered large enough to pose a significant credit risk. The allowances for doubtful accounts and
unbilled services are based upon the expected ability to collect accounts receivable, and bill and collect unbilled
services. Management does not anticipate incurring losses on accounts receivable in excess of established
allowances. See note 17 for concentration of accounts receivable and unbilled services.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair market value. The carrying values for
receivables from clients, unbilled services, accounts payable, deferred revenue and other accrued liabilities rea-
sonably approximate fair market value due to the nature of the financial instrument and the short term maturity of
these items.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of property and equip-
ment is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset. Software, computers and re-
lated equipment are depreciated over an estimated useful life of 2 to 4 years. Furniture and fixtures are
depreciated over 5 years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the estimated useful life of
the asset or the initial term of the lease.
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HURON CONSULTING GROUP INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(Tabular amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, other than goodwill, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circum-
stances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets.” For the
year ended December 31, 2005, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $0.6 million pertaining to an in-
tangible asset as described in note 4. No impairment charges were recorded in 2006 or 2004.

Intangible Assets Other Than Goodwill

The Company accounts for intangible assets in accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other In-
tangible Assets.” This statement requires that certain identifiable intangible assets be amortized over their ex-
pected useful lives.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquired entity over the net of the amounts assigned to as-
sets acquired and liabilities assumed. Under the provisions of SFAS No. 142, goodwill is required to be tested for
impairment on an annual basis and between annual tests whenever indications of impairment exist. Impairment
exists when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, resulting in an impairment charge for
this excess. Pursuant to the Company’s policy, management performed the annual goodwill impairment assess-
ment as of April 30, 2006 and determined that no impairment of goodwill existed as of that date. Further, no in-
dications of impairment have arisen since that date.

Non-Current Liabilities

The Company records certain liabilities that are expected to be settled over a period that exceeds one year
as non-current liabilities. The Company has recorded in accrued expenses the losses on abandonment of its
leases as a non-current liability for the payments that are expected to exceed a one-year term. The Company has
also recorded as non-current the portion of the deferred lease incentive liability that the Company expects to rec-
ognize over a period greater than one year. The deferred lease incentive liability at December 31, 2006 and 2005
totaled $10.3 million and $6.3 million, respectively, primarily generated from tenant improvement allowances and
rent abatement. Deferred lease incentives are amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease. The
payments that will be paid within twelve months of the balance sheet date related to the lease abandonment and
the deferred lease incentive are classified as current liabilities. The Company monitors the classification of such
liabilities based on the expectation of their utilization periods.

Sponsorship and Advertising Costs

Sponsorship and advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Such expenses for 2006, 2005 and 2004 to-
taled $1.7 million, $1.2 million and $1.1 million, respectively.

Income Taxes

Current tax liabilities and assets are recognized for the estimated taxes payable or refundable on the tax re-
turns for the current year. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and
their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or set-
tled.
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HURON CONSULTING GROUP INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(Tabular amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

Share-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, “Share-based Payment,”
using the modified prospective application transition method. Under this method, compensation cost for the por-
tion of awards for which the requisite service has not yet been rendered that are outstanding as of the adoption
date is recognized over the remaining service period. The compensation cost for that portion of awards is based
on the grant-date fair value of those awards as calculated for pro forma disclosures under SFAS No. 123, as
originally issued. All new awards and awards that are modified, repurchased or cancelled after the adoption date
are accounted for under the provisions of SFAS No. 123R. Prior periods have not been restated under this tran-
sition method. The Company recognizes share-based compensation ratably using the straight-line attribution
method over the requisite service period. In addition, pursuant to SFAS No. 123R, the Company estimates the
amount of expected forfeitures when calculating share-based compensation, instead of accounting for forfeitures
as they occur, which was the Company’s practice prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R. As of January 1, 2006,
the cumulative effect of adopting the estimated forfeiture method was not material.

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for share-based compensation using the intrinsic value
method prescribed by Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (“APB 25”), “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and related interpretations and elected the disclosure option of SFAS No. 123, as amended by SFAS
No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure.” SFAS No. 123 requires that
companies either recognize compensation expense for grants of stock, stock options and other equity instruments
based on fair value, or provide pro forma disclosure of net income and earnings per share in the notes to the
financial statements. Accordingly, the Company measured compensation expense for stock options as the ex-
cess, if any, of the estimated fair market value of the Company’s stock at the date of grant over the exercise price.

The following table details the effect on net income attributable to common stockholders and net income at-
tributable to common stockholders per share if compensation expense for the stock plans had been recorded
based on the fair value method under SFAS No. 123.

2005 2004

Net income attributable to common stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $17,769 $9,933
Add: Total share-based employee compensation expense included in reported net income, net

of related tax effects . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,075 844
Deduct: Total share-based employee compensation expense determined under the fair value

method for all awards, net of related tax effects . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4,268) (943)

Pro forma net income attributable to common stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $17,576 $9,834

Earnings per share:
Basic – as reported . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.13 $ 0.77
Basic – pro forma . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.12 $ 0.77
Diluted – as reported . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.05 $ 0.72
Diluted – pro forma . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.04 $ 0.71

Segment Reporting

SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,” establishes annual and
interim reporting standards for an enterprise’s business segments and related disclosures about its products, serv-
ices, geographic areas and major customers. The Company provides services through two segments: Financial
Consulting and Operational Consulting. The Financial Consulting segment provides services that help clients effec-
tively address complex challenges that arise from litigation, disputes, investigations, regulation, financial distress
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HURON CONSULTING GROUP INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(Tabular amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

and other sources of significant conflict or change. The Operational Consulting segment provides services that help
clients improve the overall efficiency and effectiveness of their operations by enhancing revenue, reducing costs,
managing regulatory compliance and maximizing procurement efficiency.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Financial Accounting Standards
Board Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109.” FIN No. 48 provides a comprehensive model for the recognition, measurement and dis-
closure in the financial statements of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return. The
Company adopted FIN No. 48 effective beginning on January 1, 2007. The adoption of this interpretation did not
have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements. The Company is currently evaluating the impact
this interpretation may have on its future financial position, results of operations, earnings per share, or cash
flows.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued SAB No. 108, “Considering the Effects
of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements.” SAB
No. 108 was issued to address diversity in practice in quantifying financial statement misstatements. Current
practice allows for the evaluation of materiality on the basis of either (1) the error quantified as the amount by
which the current year income statement was misstated (“rollover method”) or (2) the cumulative error quantified
as the cumulative amount by which the current year balance sheet was misstated (“iron curtain method”). The
guidance provided in SAB 108 requires both methods to be used in evaluating materiality (“dual approach”). SAB
No. 108 permits companies to initially apply its provisions either by (1) restating prior financial statements as if the
dual approach had always been used or (2) recording the cumulative effect of initially applying the “dual ap-
proach” as adjustments to the carrying values of assets and liabilities as of January 1, 2006 with an offsetting ad-
justment recorded to the opening balance of retained earnings. There were no matters warranting the Company’s
consideration under the provisions of SAB No. 108 and, therefore, it did not have an impact on the Company’s
financial position, results of operations, earnings per share or cash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”), and
expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 does not require any new fair value
measurements in financial statements, but standardizes its definition and guidance in GAAP. Thus, for some enti-
ties, the application of this statement may change current practice. SFAS No. 157 will be effective for the Com-
pany beginning on January 1, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of this
statement may have on its financial position, results of operations, earnings per share, and cash flows.

3. Business Combinations

During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company completed the acquisitions described
below. The Company did not complete any business acquisitions during 2004.

2006 Acquisitions

MSGalt & Company, LLC

On April 3, 2006, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of MSGalt & Company, LLC (“Galt”), a
specialized advisory firm that designs and implements corporate-wide programs to improve shareholder returns.
With the acquisition of Galt, the Company expanded its value and service offerings to the office of the chief
executive officer and boards of Fortune 500 companies. This acquisition was consummated on April 3, 2006 and
the results of operations of Galt have been included within the Operational Consulting segment since that date.
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HURON CONSULTING GROUP INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(Tabular amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

The aggregate purchase price of this acquisition was $28.4 million, which consisted of $20.4 million in cash
paid at closing, $0.3 million of transaction costs, and $7.7 million of additional purchase price earned by Galt in
2006 subsequent to the acquisition, as certain performance targets were met. The Company financed this acquis-
ition with cash on hand and borrowings of $6.5 million under the Company’s bank credit agreement. Additional
purchase consideration may be payable if specific performance targets are met over a four-year period. Such
amounts will be recorded as additional purchase price and an adjustment to goodwill. Also, additional payments
may be made based on the amount of revenues the Company receives from referrals made by Galt employees
over a four-year period. Such amounts will be recorded as an expense.

The identifiable intangible assets that were acquired totaled $4.3 million and have an estimated weighted
average useful life of 20.0 months, which consisted of customer contracts totaling $1.7 million (3.2 months
weighted average useful life), customer relationships totaling $1.4 million (6.1 months weighted average useful
life), and non-competition agreements totaling $1.2 million (60.0 months weighted average useful life). The Com-
pany assigned relatively short lives to the customer contracts and customer relationships due to the short-term
nature of the services and relationships provided under these contracts. Additionally, the Company recorded
$24.1 million of goodwill, which the Company intends to deduct for income tax purposes.

Document Review Consulting Services LLC and Aaxis Technologies Inc.

On July 31, 2006, the Company acquired Document Review Consulting Services LLC (“DRCS”) and Aaxis
Technologies Inc. (“Aaxis”). With the acquisitions of DRCS and Aaxis, the Company enhanced its service offer-
ings to the office of the general counsel and law firms by helping them manage information in a comprehensive
manner during litigation, investigations, mergers and acquisitions, and other major transactions. These acquis-
itions were consummated in two separate transactions on July 31, 2006 and the results of operations of DRCS
and Aaxis have been included within the Operational Consulting segment since that date.

The aggregate purchase price of the DRCS acquisition was $16.9 million, which consisted of $2.0 million in
cash paid at closing, $0.2 million of transaction costs, $14.4 million of debt and liabilities assumed, the majority of
which we immediately discharged, and $0.3 million of additional purchase price earned by DRCS in 2006 sub-
sequent to the acquisition, as certain performance targets were met. Additional purchase consideration may be
payable if specific performance targets are met over a three-year period. Such amounts will be recorded as addi-
tional purchase price and an adjustment to goodwill.

The aggregate purchase price of the Aaxis acquisition was $7.8 million, which consisted of $5.1 million in
cash paid at closing, $0.1 million of transaction costs, $1.9 million of debt and liabilities assumed, all of which we
immediately discharged, and a $0.7 million working capital adjustment. Additional purchase consideration may be
payable if specific performance targets are met over a three-year period. Such amounts will be recorded as addi-
tional purchase price and an adjustment to goodwill. No additional purchase consideration has been earned by
Aaxis through December 31, 2006.

The Company financed the DRCS and Aaxis acquisitions with cash on hand and borrowings totaling
$22.0 million under the Company’s bank credit agreement.

2005 Acquisition

Speltz & Weis LLC

On May 5, 2005, the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding membership interests of Speltz & Weis LLC
(“Speltz & Weis”), a specialized consulting firm that provides interim management and crisis management services
to healthcare facilities. With the acquisition of Speltz & Weis, the Company began to provide full-service offerings to
distressed hospitals and other healthcare facilities. This acquisition was consummated on May 9, 2005 and the re-
sults of operations of Speltz & Weis have been included within the Financial Consulting segment since that date.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(Tabular amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

The aggregate purchase price of the acquisition was $17.2 million, which consisted of $14.0 million in cash
paid at closing, notes totaling $3.0 million payable in three equal annual installments of $1.0 million (together with
accrued interest at 4% per annum) that began on May 8, 2006, and $0.2 million of transaction costs. Additional
purchase consideration may be payable based on the performance of Speltz & Weis over a three-year period.
Such amounts will be recorded as an adjustment to goodwill if payable. No additional purchase consideration has
been earned by Speltz & Weis as of December 31, 2006. Also, additional payments may be made based on the
amount of revenues the Company receives from certain referrals made by Speltz & Weis employees. Such
amounts will be recorded as an expense.

The identifiable intangible assets that were acquired totaled $2.6 million and have an estimated weighted
average useful life of 10.2 months, which consisted of customer contracts of $1.9 million (8.4 months weighted
average useful life) and customer relationships of $0.7 million (15.1 months weighted average useful life). The
Company assigned relatively short lives to the customer contracts and customer relationships due to the short-
term nature of the services and relationships provided under these contracts. During the third quarter of 2005, the
Company wrote off a portion of the intangible assets pertaining to a customer contract as described in note 4 be-
low. The Company also recorded $14.6 million of goodwill, which the Company intends to deduct for income tax
purposes.

Purchase Price Allocations

The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed for the Compa-
ny’s significant business acquisitions.

Galt
April 3, 2006

Speltz &
Weis

May 9, 2005

Assets Acquired:
Current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ 2,291
Equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 16
Intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,300 2,600
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24,069 14,637

28,380 19,544
Liabilities Assumed:

Current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 2,307

Net Assets Acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $28,380 $17,237
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Pro Forma Financial Data

The following unaudited pro forma financial data gives effect to the acquisitions of Galt and Speltz & Weis as
if they had been completed at the beginning of the period presented. The acquisitions of DRCS and Aaxis had an
immaterial impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations and, thus, pro forma financial information
is not presented. The unaudited pro forma financial data are not necessarily indicative of the operating results that
would have been achieved if the acquisition had occurred on the dates indicated, nor are they necessarily in-
dicative of future results.

Historical Huron and
Historical Galt

Historical Huron and
Historical Speltz & Weis

2006
Pro Forma

2005
Pro Forma

2006
Actual

2005
Pro Forma

Revenues, net of reimbursable expenses . . . . . . . . . . $292,657 $223,335 $288,588 $215,495
Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 49,229 $ 35,958 $ 47,509 $ 32,450
Income before provision for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . $ 48,329 $ 35,539 $ 46,822 $ 32,848
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 27,590 $ 19,876 $ 26,689 $ 18,140
Earnings per share:

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.69 $ 1.26 $ 1.63 $ 1.15
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.59 $ 1.18 $ 1.54 $ 1.08

Acquisitions Subsequent to December 31, 2006

Wellspring Partners LTD

In January 2007, the Company acquired Wellspring Partners LTD (“Wellspring”), a management consulting
firm specializing in integrated performance improvement services for hospitals and health systems. With the ac-
quisition of Wellspring, the Company expands its national presence in the healthcare provider sector. The results
of operations of Wellspring will be included with the Company’s results of operations beginning on January 2,
2007.

The aggregate purchase price of this acquisition was approximately $65 million in cash paid at closing, sub-
ject to a working capital adjustment. The Company financed this acquisition with a combination of cash on hand
and borrowings under the Company’s bank credit agreement. Additional purchase consideration may be payable
if specific performance targets are met over a five-year period. Such amounts will be recorded as additional pur-
chase price and an adjustment to goodwill.

Based on a preliminary valuation that is subject to refinement, the Company expects to record approximately
$13 million of identifiable intangible assets, which represents approximately 20% of the initial purchase price.
Additionally, the Company expects to record approximately $52 million of goodwill, which the Company does not
intend to deduct for income tax purposes.

Glass & Associates, Inc.

Also in January 2007, the Company acquired Glass & Associates, Inc. (“Glass”), a turnaround and restructur-
ing consulting firm that provides advice and leadership to troubled businesses in the United States and Europe.
With the acquisition of Glass, the Company expands its position in the consulting and restructuring marketplace,
as well as expands its interim management capabilities to distressed companies in industries beyond healthcare.
The results of operations of Glass will be included with the Company’s results of operations beginning on Jan-
uary 2, 2007.
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The aggregate purchase price of this acquisition was approximately $30 million in cash, subject to a working
capital adjustment. The Company financed this acquisition with a combination of cash on hand and borrowings
under the Company’s bank credit agreement. Additional purchase consideration may be payable if specific per-
formance targets are met over a four-year period. Such amounts will be recorded as additional purchase price
and an adjustment to goodwill. Also, additional payments may be made based on the amount of revenues the
Company receives from referrals made by certain employees of Glass over a four-year period. Such amounts will
be recorded as an expense.

Based on a preliminary valuation that is subject to refinement, the Company expects to record approximately
$5 million of identifiable intangible assets, which represents approximately 17% of the initial purchase price. Addi-
tionally, the Company expects to record approximately $25 million of goodwill, which the Company intends to
deduct for income tax purposes.

4. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment for the year ended December 31, 2006 were as
follows:

Financial
Consulting

Operational
Consulting Total

Balance as of December 31, 2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ — $ —
Goodwill acquired in connection with a business combination . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,739 2,898 14,637

Balance as of December 31, 2005 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $11,739 $ 2,898 $14,637
Goodwill acquired in connection with business combinations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 851 37,840 38,691

Balance as of December 31, 2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $12,590 $40,738 $53,328

Intangible assets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 consisted of the following:

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005

Gross Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Gross Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Customer contracts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3,960 $3,960 $1,900 $1,848
Customer relationships . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,366 2,411 700 359
Non-competition agreements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,105 273 — —
Technology and software . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 585 134 475 24

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $11,016 $6,778 $3,075 $2,231

In connection with the 2007 acquisitions of Wellspring and Glass as described in note 3 above, the Company
expects to record approximately $77 million of goodwill and $18 million of intangible assets in the first quarter of
2007. Intangible assets amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $4.5 million and for the
year ended December 31, 2005 was $2.2 million, which included a charge of $0.6 million pertaining to the
write-off of a customer contract as described below. Including the estimated intangible assets acquired related to
the acquisitions of Wellspring and Glass, estimated intangible assets amortization expense is $12.2 million for
2007, $5.6 million for 2008, $1.6 million for 2009, $1.5 million for 2010, and $1.0 million for 2011. Actual amor-
tization expense could differ from these estimated amounts as a result of the finalization of the Wellspring and
Glass valuations, future acquisitions and other factors.

On July 5, 2005, one of the Company’s clients filed for bankruptcy. On October 21, 2005, the client filed an
application with the Bankruptcy Court to authorize the retention of the Company during the bankruptcy process,
which was approved in December 2005. In connection with the application, new financial terms and conditions of
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the engagement contracts, including billing terms and rates for the Company’s services, were negotiated and
agreed to with the client and certain other interested parties retroactive to July 5, 2005 pursuant to a new
engagement contract that superseded the original contracts. Based on the projected cash flows under the new
financial terms and conditions approved by the Bankruptcy Court, the intangible value that the Company assigned
to the interim management contract in connection with the Speltz & Weis acquisition decreased. Accordingly, the
Company wrote off the remaining carrying value of this contract in 2005. See note 15 for further details.

There was no intangible asset amortization during the year ended December 31, 2004.

5. Property and Equipment

Depreciation expense for property and equipment was $6.9 million, $4.4 million and $2.4 million for 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively. Property and equipment at December 31, 2006 and 2005 are detailed below:

December 31,

2006 2005

Computers, related equipment and software . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 15,799 $ 9,747
Furniture and fixtures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,092 3,721
Leasehold improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17,353 6,122
Assets under capital lease . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 409 409
Assets under construction . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 191 1,229

Property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41,844 21,228
Accumulated depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (14,102) (8,066)

Property and equipment, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 27,742 $13,162

6. Restructuring Charges

In March 2004, the Company incurred a $2.1 million pre-tax restructuring charge associated with the closing
of two offices. The charge included approximately $2.0 million for severance payments, which were paid by
April 30, 2004, and $0.1 million for office lease payments, which were paid by August 31, 2004.

In September 2004, the Company eliminated a service offering of a practice area in the Operational Consult-
ing segment that was not meeting its expectations and recorded a pre-tax restructuring charge of $1.3 million in
the third quarter of 2004. The Company has utilized the restructuring reserve through cash payments for sev-
erance.

7. Notes Payable

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, notes payable outstanding totaled $2.0 million and $3.0 million, re-
spectively, including a current portion of $1.0 million at the end of both periods. As described in note 3, the Com-
pany issued notes totaling $3.0 million in connection with the acquisition of Speltz & Weis. These notes are
payable in three equal annual installments of $1.0 million, together with accrued interest at 4% per annum, that
began on May 8, 2006. Accrued interest was $0.1 million at both December 31, 2006 and 2005. Scheduled matur-
ities under these notes are $1.0 million in each of 2007 and 2008.

8. Line of Credit

The Company had a bank credit agreement that originally expired on February 10, 2006. On January 17,
2006, the Company extended the credit agreement for ninety days to May 10, 2006. On March 28, 2006, it was
further extended for another sixty days to July 10, 2006, and certain terms of the original agreement were
amended.
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On June 7, 2006, the Company entered into a new credit agreement with various financial institutions that
replaced the aforementioned credit agreement. Under the terms of this new unsecured revolving credit facility, the
Company could have borrowed up to $75.0 million. On December 29, 2006, the Company amended this credit
agreement so that the maximum amount of principal that may be borrowed is increased to $130.0 million. Fees
and interest on borrowings vary based on total debt to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amor-
tization (“EBITDA”) ratio as set forth in the credit agreement and will be based on a spread over LIBOR or a
spread over or under the base rate, which is the greater of the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5% or the Prime Rate,
as selected by the Company. All outstanding principal is due upon expiration of the credit agreement on May 31,
2011. The credit agreement includes financial covenants that require the maintenance of certain interest coverage
ratio, total debt to EBITDA ratio and net worth levels. In addition, certain acquisitions and similar transactions will
need to be approved by the lenders. At December 31, 2006, borrowings outstanding totaled $8.0 million and bear
interest at 5.9%. Accrued interest under the credit agreement was $0.2 million at December 31, 2006. The Com-
pany had no borrowings outstanding as of December 31, 2005. The Company was in compliance with its debt
covenants as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.

9. Capital Structure and Public Offerings

Prior to its initial public offering, the Company’s capital structure consisted of 8% preferred stock, preferred
stock and Class A and Class B common stock.

8% Preferred Stock

The 8% preferred stock had a stated value of $1,000 per share and accrued dividends on a daily basis, com-
pounded annually, at the rate of 8% per annum on the stated value. Between April and June 2002, in connection
with the Company’s initial capitalization, the Company issued to HCG Holdings LLC an aggregate of 12,500
shares of the Company’s 8% preferred stock for an aggregate consideration of $12.5 million. Upon the con-
summation of the Company’s initial public offering on October 18, 2004, the Company used $15.1 million of the
initial public offering proceeds to redeem all outstanding 8% preferred stock, plus cumulative dividends and a
liquidation participation amount totaling $2.6 million. The 8% preferred stock was retired upon this redemption.

Preferred Stock

The Company is expressly authorized to issue up to 50,000,000 shares of preferred stock. The Company’s
certificate of incorporation authorizes the Company’s board of directors, without any further stockholder action or
approval, to issue these shares in one or more classes or series, to establish from time to time the number of
shares to be included in each class or series, and to fix the rights, preferences and privileges of the shares of
each wholly unissued class or series and any of its qualifications, limitations or restrictions. As of December 31,
2006 and 2005, no such preferred stock has been approved or issued.

Common Stock

Prior to the initial public offering, the Company had issued and outstanding Class A voting and Class B non-
voting common stock. Pursuant to the terms of the Company’s certificate of incorporation, each share of the
Company’s Class B common stock was automatically converted into one share of Class A common stock
immediately prior to the consummation of the initial public offering and the Company’s Class A common stock was
renamed to “common stock.”

The Company is authorized to issue up to 500,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $.01 per share.
The holders of common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held of record on each matter submitted to a
vote of stockholders. Subject to the rights and preferences of the holders of any series of preferred stock that may
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at the time be outstanding, holders of common stock are entitled to such dividends as the Company’s board of
directors may declare. In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company’s affairs, after
payment of all of the Company’s debts and liabilities and subject to the rights and preferences of the holders of
any series of preferred stock that may at the time be outstanding, holders of common stock will be entitled to re-
ceive the distribution of any of the Company’s remaining assets.

Dividends

On May 12, 2004, the Company declared a special dividend for each outstanding share of common stock
and 8% preferred stock payable to holders of record on May 25, 2004. The 8% preferred stock participated on an
as converted basis. The aggregate amount of the dividend was $1.3 million, or $0.09 per share of common stock
and $9.64 per share of 8% preferred stock, and was paid on June 29, 2004.

Public Offerings

In October 2004, the Company completed its initial public offering. In the initial public offering, the Company
sold 3,333,333 shares of common stock and a selling stockholder, HCG Holdings LLC, sold 1,666,667 shares of
common stock at an offering price of $15.50 per share. On October 22, 2004, the underwriters exercised in full
their over-allotment option to purchase an additional 750,000 shares of common stock from the selling stock-
holder. The initial public offering generated gross proceeds to the Company of $51.7 million, or $48.0 million net
of underwriting discounts. The Company did not receive any proceeds from the shares sold by the selling stock-
holder.

In a secondary offering completed in the first quarter of 2006, HCG Holdings LLC sold 7,245,000 shares of
the Company’s common stock at an offering price of $27.00 per share. The Company did not offer any shares
and did not receive any proceeds from this offering. In connection with this offering, the Company paid costs total-
ing $0.6 million and $0.5 million during the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

10. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share excludes dilution and is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding for the period, excluding unvested restricted common stock. Diluted earn-
ings per share reflects the potential reduction in earnings per share that could occur if securities or other contracts
to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock under the treasury stock method. Earn-
ings per share under the basic and diluted computations are as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $26,689 $17,769 $10,864
Dividends accrued on 8% preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (931)

Net income attributable to common stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $26,689 $17,769 $ 9,933

Weighted average common shares outstanding – basic . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,359 15,741 12,820
Weighted average common stock equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 958 1,117 945

Weighted average common shares outstanding – diluted . . . . . . . . . . . 17,317 16,858 13,765

Basic net income attributable to common stockholders per share . . . . $ 1.63 $ 1.13 $ 0.77

Diluted net income attributable to common stockholders per share . . . $ 1.54 $ 1.05 $ 0.72
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Prior to the redemption of the 8% preferred stock in 2004, the 8% preferred stockholders participated in divi-
dends paid to common stockholders on an as converted basis using the current period estimated fair market
value of a share of common stock. Net loss is not allocated to preferred stockholders.

There were no anti-dilutive securities for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

11. Employee Benefit and Deferred Compensation Plans

The Company sponsors a qualified defined contribution 401(k) plan covering substantially all of its employ-
ees. Under the plan, employees are entitled to make pre-tax contributions. The Company matches an amount
equal to the employees’ contributions up to 6% of the employees’ salaries. The Company’s matching contributions
for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 were $5.0 million, $3.9 million and $3.3 million, re-
spectively.

During 2006, the Company adopted the Huron Consulting Group Deferred Compensation Plan (the “Plan”),
which is administered by the Company’s board of directors or a committee designated by the board of directors.
Under the Plan, members of the board of directors and a select group of employees of the Company may elect to
defer the receipt of their director retainers and meeting fees or base salary and bonus, as applicable. Additionally,
the Company may credit amounts to a participant’s deferred compensation account in accordance with employ-
ment or other agreements entered into between the Company and the participant. The Company, at its sole dis-
cretion, may, but is not required to, credit any additional amount it desires to any participant’s deferred
compensation account. Amounts credited by the Company are subject to vesting schedules set forth in the Plan,
employment agreement or any other agreement entered into between the Company and the participant. The de-
ferred compensation liability at December 31, 2006 was $0.6 million.

12. Equity Incentive Plans

In connection with its initial public offering, the Company adopted the 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan (the
“Omnibus Plan”), which replaced the Company’s then-existing equity plans for grants of share-based awards. The
Omnibus Plan permits the grant of stock options, restricted stock, and other share-based awards valued in whole
or in part by reference to, or otherwise based on, the Company’s common stock. Under the Omnibus Plan, as
originally adopted, a total of 2,141,000 shares of common stock were reserved for issuance to eligible employees,
executive officers, independent contractors and outside directors. The Plan was amended effective as of May 2,
2006 to increase the number of shares of common stock available for issuance by 2,100,000. As of December 31,
2006, 2,305,605 shares remain available for future issuance.

The Compensation Committee of the board of directors has the responsibility of interpreting the Omnibus
Plan and determining all of the terms and conditions of awards made under the Omnibus Plan, including when the
awards will become exercisable or otherwise vest. Subject to acceleration under certain conditions, the majority of
the Company’s stock options and restricted stock vest annually, pro-rata over 4 years. All stock options have a
ten-year contractual term.

The weighted average fair values of options granted during 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $23.69, $28.59 and
$7.34, respectively, which were estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following
weighted average assumptions for each period:

December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2003

Expected dividend yield . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0% 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 40% 40% 12% 1%
Risk-free interest rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4.7% 4.7% 2.6% 2.3%
Expected option life (in years) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 4 4 4
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Stock option activity for the year ended December 31, 2006 was as follows:

Number of
Options

(in thousands)

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price
(in dollars)

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Term
(in years)

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value
(in millions)

Outstanding at January 1, 2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,305 $ 2.15
Granted:

Exercise price = fair market value . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 $30.29
Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (426) $ 0.91
Forfeited or expired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (83) $ 3.34

Outstanding at December 31, 2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 804 $ 2.98 6.8 $34.1

Exercisable at December 31, 2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 480 $ 2.49 6.5 $20.6

The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised during 2006 and 2005 was $13.4 million and $6.1 million,
respectively.

The grant date fair values of the Company’s restricted stock awards are measured pursuant to SFAS 123R.
Restricted stock activity for the year ended December 31, 2006 was as follows:

Number of
Shares

(in thousands)

Weighted
Average

Grant-Date
Fair Value
(in dollars)

Restricted stock at January 1, 2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,279 $19.24
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 651 $30.15
Vested . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (360) $19.37
Forfeited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (154) $19.03

Restricted stock at December 31, 2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,416 $23.33

The aggregate fair value of restricted stock that vested during the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
was $12.5 million and $4.9 million, respectively. On July 1, 2006, the Company issued a total of 504,500 shares
of restricted stock to certain employees. Although these restricted shares were not issued to the grantees until
July 1, 2006, a grant date was established for measurement purposes under SFAS No. 123R on February 28,
2006, the date that the Company’s Compensation Committee approved the award. As such, the Company began
to recognize the expense relating to this award effective February 28, 2006.

Total share-based compensation cost recognized for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
was $9.8 million, $6.9 million and $1.4 million, respectively, with related income tax benefits of $4.0 million,
$2.9 million, and $0.6 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2006, there was $28.6 million of total unrecog-
nized compensation cost related to nonvested share-based awards. This cost is expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 2.7 years.
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13. Income Taxes

The income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 consists of the following:

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Current:
Federal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $15,170 $12,784 $ 9,592
State . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,803 4,038 2,647
Foreign . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 70 — —

Total current . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19,043 16,822 12,239

Deferred:
Federal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 878 (2,000) (3,162)
State . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 212 (575) (949)

Total deferred . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,090 (2,575) (4,111)

Income tax expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $20,133 $14,247 $ 8,128

A reconciliation of the U.S. statutory income tax rate to the Company’s effective tax rate is as follows. Other
non-deductible items include taxes not deductible for federal income tax purposes.

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Percent of pretax income:
At U.S. statutory tax rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5.2 6.3 5.2
Meals and entertainment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.1 1.8 2.5
Secondary offering . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.5 0.7 —
Other non-deductible items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.2 0.7 0.1

Effective income tax expense (benefit) rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 43.0% 44.5% 42.8%

Deferred tax assets at December 31, 2006 and 2005 consist of the following:

Year ended
December 31,

2006 2005

Deferred tax assets:
Accrued payroll and other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $12,504 $ 9,412
Deferred lease incentives . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,694 2,723
Share-based compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,873 1,744
Amortization of intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,564 2,507
Revenue recognition . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,363 1,514
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 35

Total deferred assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24,007 17,935

Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,747) (2,213)
Prepaid expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,537) (1,015)

Total deferred liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3,284) (3,228)

Net deferred tax asset . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $20,723 $14,707

F-22



HURON CONSULTING GROUP INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(Tabular amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

Although realization of the net deferred tax asset is not assured, management believes, based upon current
estimates, that it is more likely than not that all of the net deferred tax assets will be realized. Accordingly, the
Company determined that no valuation allowance against deferred tax assets at December 31, 2006 and 2005
was necessary.

14. Related Party Transactions

Pursuant to a registration rights agreement with HCG Holdings LLC, which owned a majority of the issued
and outstanding common stock of the Company at December 31, 2005 and was a related party, the Company is
obligated to pay all of the expenses relating to any public offerings. In connection with the initial public offering, in
which HCG Holdings LLC participated as a selling stockholder, the Company paid all of the offering expenses of
HCG Holdings LLC, other than underwriting discounts and commissions and transfer taxes with respect to the
shares sold by HCG Holdings LLC. The Company also paid costs associated with an offering that was withdrawn
in November 2005 and the secondary offering that was completed in February 2006. During the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, these costs totaled $0.6 million, $0.5 million and $3.3 million, respectively.

Huron Consulting Services LLC entered into an agreement, effective as of September 3, 2003, with Highline
Technology LLC, an entity in which one of the Company’s former board members owns 50%. Pursuant to the
agreement, Highline Technology provides certain management and information technology services to the Com-
pany. During 2004, the Company terminated the original agreement and entered into a new agreement with High-
line Technology to provide limited consulting services. During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, the Company paid to Highline Technology fees totaling $0.1 million, $0.1 million and $0.2 million, re-
spectively.

15. Client Bankruptcy Case

On July 5, 2005, one of the Company’s clients filed for bankruptcy. Subsequent to the filing of the bankruptcy,
the Company continued to provide interim management, revenue cycle management and strategic sourcing serv-
ices under an engagement contract with the client. In addition, the Company continued to provide services pur-
suant to a separate engagement contract with the client’s bankruptcy counsel to assist with the bankruptcy
process.

On October 21, 2005, the client filed an application with the Bankruptcy Court to authorize the retention of the
Company during the bankruptcy process. In connection with the application, new financial terms and conditions of
the engagement contracts, including billing terms and rates for the Company’s services, were negotiated and
agreed to with the client and certain other interested parties retroactive to July 5, 2005 pursuant to a new
engagement contract that superseded the original contracts. At a hearing held on October 28, 2005, the Bank-
ruptcy Court approved on an interim basis the Company’s retention based on these agreed upon terms. On De-
cember 14, 2005, the Bankruptcy Court approved the Company’s retention on a permanent basis. There could be
challenges during the bankruptcy process to the fees earned by us and Speltz & Weis, as well as challenges dur-
ing and after the bankruptcy process to fees earned by us and Speltz & Weis prior to the bankruptcy filing on
July 5, 2005, as several parties to the bankruptcy proceeding have reserved their right to challenge those fees.
Although no such claim has been brought to date, if a claim is brought in the future, the claim could have a
material adverse impact on our financial position, results of operations, earnings per share or cash flows in the
period in which such claim were resolved.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect the effects of the new financial terms and con-
ditions approved by the Bankruptcy Court. The change in financial terms approved by the Bankruptcy Court on
December 14, 2005 resulted in $2.2 million and $2.1 million less revenues than the amounts provided for under
the original terms of the interim management contract for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, re-
spectively. The results for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 also reflect legal and related costs total-
ing approximately $0.6 million and $0.9 million, respectively, associated with the bankruptcy process.
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Based on the projected cash flows under the new financial terms and conditions approved by the Bankruptcy
Court, the intangible value that the Company assigned to the interim management contract in connection with the
Speltz & Weis acquisition decreased. Accordingly, the Company wrote off the remaining carrying value of this
contract in the third quarter of 2005. This charge, totaling $0.6 million, is included in depreciation and amortization
on the Company’s consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2005 and is attributable to
the Financial Consulting segment.

16. Commitments, Contingencies and Guarantees

Lease Commitments

The Company leases office space and certain equipment and software under noncancelable operating and
capital lease arrangements expiring on various dates through 2016, with various renewal options. The Company’s
principal executive offices located in Chicago, Illinois are under a lease that expires in September 2014, with two
five-year renewal options. The Company also has office facilities located in New York City, New York under a
lease that expires in July 2016, with one five-year renewal option. Office facilities under operating leases include
fixed or minimum payments plus, in some cases, scheduled base rent increases over the term of the lease. Cer-
tain leases provide for monthly payments of real estate taxes, insurance and other operating expense applicable
to the property. Some of the leases contain provisions whereby the future rental payments may be adjusted for
increases in operating expense above the specified amount. Rental expense, including operating costs and taxes,
for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $8.7 million, $5.0 million and $4.1 million, re-
spectively. Future minimum rental commitments under non-cancelable leases and sublease income as of De-
cember 31, 2006, are as follows:

Capital
Lease

Obligations

Operating
Lease

Obligations
Sublease
Income

2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $282 $11,761 $(1,207)
2008 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 11,298 (1,029)
2009 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 10,620 (1,030)
2010 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 10,117 (1,032)
2011 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 8,492 (18)
Thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 28,156 —

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $282 $80,444 $(4,316)

Legal Contingencies

From time to time, the Company is involved in various legal matters arising out of the ordinary course of busi-
ness. Although the outcome of these matters cannot presently be determined, in the opinion of management, dis-
position of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations of
the Company.

Guarantees

Guarantees in the form of letters of credit totaling $6.3 million and $6.5 million were outstanding at De-
cember 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, to support certain office lease obligations.

In connection with its business acquisitions, the Company may be required to pay additional purchase
consideration to the sellers if specific performance targets are met over a number of years as specified in the re-
lated purchase agreements. There is no limitation to the maximum amount of additional purchase consideration
and such amount is not determinable at this time, but the aggregate amount that potentially may be paid could be
significant. Additional purchase consideration earned by certain sellers totaled $8.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006. No additional purchase consideration was earned by any sellers for the year ended De-
cember 31, 2005 or 2004.
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To the extent permitted by law, the Company’s by-laws and articles of incorporation require that the Com-
pany indemnify its officers and directors against judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement, including attor-
ney’s fees, incurred in connection with civil or criminal action or proceedings, as it relates to their services to the
Company if such person acted in good faith. Although there is no limit on the amount of indemnification, the
Company may have recourse against its insurance carrier for certain payments made.

17. Segment Information

Segments are defined by SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information,” as components of a company in which separate financial information is available and is evaluated
regularly by the chief operating decision maker, or decision-making group, in deciding how to allocate resources
and in assessing performance.

The Company provides services through two segments: Financial Consulting and Operational Consulting.
The Financial Consulting segment provides services that help clients effectively address complex challenges that
arise from litigation, disputes, investigations, regulation, financial distress and other sources of significant conflict
or change. The Operational Consulting segment provides services that help clients improve the overall efficiency
and effectiveness of their operations by enhancing revenue, reducing costs, managing regulatory compliance and
maximizing procurement efficiency.

Segment operating income consists of the revenues generated by a segment, less the direct costs of rev-
enue and selling, general and administrative costs that are incurred directly by the segment. Unallocated corpo-
rate costs include costs related to administrative functions that are performed in a centralized manner that are not
attributable to a particular segment. These administrative function costs include costs for corporate office support,
all office facility costs, costs relating to accounting and finance, human resources, legal, marketing, information
technology and company-wide business development functions, as well as costs related to overall corporate
management.
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The following table presents information about reported segments along with the items necessary to reconcile
the segment information to the totals reported in the accompanying consolidated financial statements:

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Financial Consulting:

Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $138,543 $118,178 $ 92,378
Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 58,016 $ 46,676 $ 34,365
Segment operating income as a percent of segment revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41.9% 39.5% 37.2%
Operational Consulting:

Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $150,045 $ 89,035 $ 67,172
Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 51,985 $ 31,680 $ 23,009
Segment operating income as a percent of segment revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34.6% 35.6% 34.3%
Total Company:

Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $288,588 $207,213 $159,550
Reimbursable expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33,330 18,749 14,361

Total revenues and reimbursable expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $321,918 $225,962 $173,911

Statement of operations reconciliation:

Segment operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $110,001 $ 78,356 $ 57,374
Charges not allocated at the segment level:

Other selling, general and administrative expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 53,291 41,493 31,850
Depreciation and amortization expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,201 5,282 2,365
Restructuring charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 3,475
Interest (income) expense, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 703 (472) 692
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (16) 37 —

Net income before provision for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 46,822 $ 32,016 $ 18,992

Segment assets:

Financial Consulting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 24,120 $ 24,825 $ 18,921
Operational Consulting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 40,355 22,526 13,659
Unallocated assets (1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 134,969 82,348 50,639

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $199,444 $129,699 $ 83,219

(1) Goodwill and intangible assets are included in unallocated assets, as the Company’s chief operating decision
maker does not allocate these items in assessing segment performance or in allocating resources.

All long-lived assets are in the United States.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, one client generated $29.3 million, or 10.2%, of the Company’s
consolidated revenues. Of the $29.3 million, $25.8 million was generated by the Financial Consulting segment
and $3.5 million was generated by the Operational Consulting segment. No client accounted for 10% or more of
total receivables and unbilled services of the Company at December 31, 2006.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, one client generated $23.0 million, or 11.1%, of the Company’s
consolidated revenues. Of the $23.0 million, $19.5 million was generated by the Financial Consulting segment
and $3.5 million was generated by the Operational Consulting segment. At December 31, 2005, a separate cli-
ent’s total receivables and unbilled services balance represented 11.3% of the Company’s total receivables and
unbilled services balance.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(Tabular amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

F-26



HURON CONSULTING GROUP INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(Tabular amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

During 2004, no client in either segment accounted for 10% or more of total revenues or 10% or more of total
receivables and unbilled services of the Company.

18. Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

The following summarizes the activity of the allowances for doubtful accounts and unbilled services:

Beginning
balance Additions* Deductions

Ending
balance

Year ended December 31, 2004:
Allowances for doubtful accounts and unbilled services . . . . . . . . . $1,792 9,051 7,178 $3,665

Year ended December 31, 2005:
Allowances for doubtful accounts and unbilled services . . . . . . . . . $3,665 7,444 7,165 $3,944

Year ended December 31, 2006:
Allowances for doubtful accounts and unbilled services . . . . . . . . . $3,944 8,928 8,359 $4,513

* Additions include provisions for fee adjustments related to estimated overruns on fixed and capped fee
engagements and other discretionary pricing adjustments, as well as write-offs of accounts receivables.

19. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

Quarter Ended

2006 Mar. 31 Jun. 30 Sep. 30 Dec. 31

Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $62,187 $67,769 $75,194 $83,438
Reimbursable expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 5,439 $ 6,691 $ 7,921 $13,279
Total revenues and reimbursable expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $67,626 $74,460 $83,115 $96,717
Gross profit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $26,022 $28,589 $31,768 $36,257
Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 9,673 $11,307 $12,123 $14,406
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 5,596 $ 6,280 $ 6,785 $ 8,028
Earnings per share:

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.35 $ 0.39 $ 0.41 $ 0.48
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.33 $ 0.36 $ 0.39 $ 0.46

Weighted average shares used in calculating earnings per share:
Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,077 16,309 16,424 16,616
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,995 17,244 17,415 17,607

Quarter Ended

2005 Mar. 31 Jun. 30 Sep. 30 Dec. 31

Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $46,760 $50,517 $54,309 $55,627
Reimbursable expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,370 4,691 4,840 4,848
Total revenues and reimbursable expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 51,130 55,208 59,149 60,475
Gross profit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,799 21,365 22,897 22,837
Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,229 8,150 7,218 7,984
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,827 4,657 3,766 4,519
Earnings per share:

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.31 $ 0.30 $ 0.24 $ 0.28
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.29 $ 0.28 $ 0.22 $ 0.27

Weighted average shares used in calculating earnings per share:
Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,547 15,646 15,777 15,990
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,677 16,773 16,950 17,027

20. Subsequent Events (unaudited)

In January 2007, the Company acquired Wellspring Partners LTD and Glass & Associates, Inc in two sepa-
rate transactions. See note 3 above for further details regarding these transactions.

F-27



[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



Value of Investment

10/13/04 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 % Return

Huron Consulting Group Inc. $100.00 $143.23 $154.77 $292.52 193%
The NASDAQ Stock Market Index $100.00 $113.27 $114.83 $125.76 26%
Peer Group Index $100.00 $117.98 $115.28 $131.01 31%
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forward-looking statements. Please see “Risk Factors” in our Form 10-K and in other documents we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission
for a complete description of the material risks we face. 
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Stock Performance

The following graph and table compare the cumulative total shareholder return on our common stock from October 13, 2004 (the day we began trading
as a public company), through December 31, 2006, against the cumulative total shareholder return of The NASDAQ Stock Market Index and the stocks
making up an industry peer group. The peer group is comprised of the following companies: CRA International, Inc., FTI Consulting, Inc., LECG
Corporation, Navigant Consulting, Inc. and Resources Connection, Inc. The graph and table assume a $100 investment in Huron Consulting Group Inc.
common stock, The NASDAQ Stock Market Index, and an index of our peer group on October 13, 2004, and any dividends are assumed to be reinvested.
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